Planning Commission

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

Date: 6/24/2019
Time: 7:00 p.m.
City Council Chambers
701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025

CITY OF

MENLO PARK

A. Call To Order

B. Roll Call

C. Reports and Announcements

Under “Reports and Announcements,” staff and Commission members may communicate general
information of interest regarding matters within the jurisdiction of the Commission. No Commission
discussion or action can occur on any of the presented items.

D. Public Comment

Under “Public Comment,” the public may address the Commission on any subject not listed on the
agenda, and items listed under Consent Calendar. Each speaker may address the Commission
once under Public Comment for a limit of three minutes. Please clearly state your name and
address or political jurisdiction in which you live. The Commission cannot act on items not listed on
the agenda and, therefore, the Commission cannot respond to non-agenda issues brought up
under Public Comment other than to provide general information.

E. Consent Calendar
El. Approval of minutes from the June 3, 2019, Planning Commission meeting. (Attachment)

F. Regular Business
F1. New Real Property Conflict of Interest Regulation. (Attachment)
G. Public Hearing

G1. Architectural Control, Variance, Sign Review and Below Market Rate (BMR) In-Lieu Fee
Agreement/Sagar Patel/1704 ElI Camino Real:
Request for architectural control approval to demolish an existing hotel and construct a new 70-
room hotel consisting of three stories with below grade parking in the SP-ECR/D (El Camino
Real/Downtown Specific Plan) zoning district. The project would incorporate an eight-foot tall fence
along the majority of the site perimeter. The project includes a variance request to permit reduced
floor-to-floor height on the first floor. In addition, the applicant is requesting sign review, including
review of a shared monument sign located on 1706 El Camino Real, and approval of a Below
Market Rate (BMR) In-Lieu Fee Agreement. The proposal also includes a request for a Public
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Benefit Bonus, with the benefit consisting of Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) revenue. As part of
the proposed project, five heritage trees are proposed for removal and 20 heritage tree
replacements would be planted, in addition to six replacement trees that have already been
planted, to provide a two-to-one replacement ratio for the five heritage trees proposed for removal
and the eight heritage trees previously removed. (Staff Report #19-046-PC)

G2 and H1 are associated items with a single staff report

G2. Environmental Impact Report (EIR) Scoping Session/SP Menlo LLC/111 Independence Drive:
Request for a use permit, architectural control, environmental review and density bonus to
redevelop the site with approximately 105 multi-family dwelling units and an approximately 712
square foot potential commercial space in one building with an above grade multi-story parking
garage integrated into the proposed eight-story building, located in the R-MU-B (Residential Mixed
Use, Bonus) zoning district. The project site currently contains an approximately 15,000 square
foot single-story office building that would be demolished. The proposed residential building would
contain approximately 95,056 square feet of gross floor area. The proposal includes a request for a
use permit to modify certain R-MU design standards and a request for an increase in height,
density, and floor area ratio (FAR) under the bonus level development allowance in exchange for
community amenities. The proposal also includes a request to use the City’s Below Market Rate
(BMR) density bonus, including an increase in units, FAR, and height, in exchange for BMR units.
(Staff Report #19-047-PC)

H. Study Session

H1.  Study Session/SP Menlo LLC/111 Independence Drive:
Request for a use permit, architectural control, environmental review and density bonus to
redevelop the site with approximately 105 multi-family dwelling units and an approximately 712
square foot potential commercial space in one building with an above grade multi-story parking
garage integrated into the proposed eight-story building, located in the R-MU-B (Residential
Mixed Use, Bonus) zoning district. The project site currently contains an approximately 15,000
square foot single-story office building that would be demolished. The proposed residential
building would contain approximately 95,056 square feet of gross floor area. The proposal
includes a request for a use permit to modify certain R-MU design standards and a request for an
increase in height, density, and floor area ratio (FAR) under the bonus level development
allowance in exchange for community amenities. The proposal also includes a request to use the
City’s Below Market Rate (BMR) density bonus, including an increase in units, FAR, and height,
in exchange for BMR units. (Staff Report #19-047-PC)

H2. Study Session/Andrew Morcos/110 Constitution Drive, 104 Constitution Drive, and
115 Independence Drive:
Request for a study session review for a future application for use permit, architectural control,
environmental review, lot line adjustment, and lot merger to redevelop three sites with
approximately 320 multi-family dwelling units, 33,100 square feet of office and 1,608 square feet
of neighborhood benefit space split between two buildings with above grade two-story parking
garages integrated into the proposed seven-story residential building and three-story commercial
building, located in the R-MU-B (Residential Mixed Use, Bonus) zoning district. The project sites
currently contain three single-story office buildings that would be demolished. The proposed
residential building would contain approximately 311,341 square feet of gross floor area with a
floor area ratio of 223 percent. The proposed commercial building would contain approximately
34,708 square feet of gross floor area with a floor area ratio of 25 percent. The proposal includes
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a request for an increase in height, density, and floor area ratio (FAR) under the bonus level
development allowance in exchange for community amenities. (Staff Report #19-048-PC)

Informational ltems

Future Planning Commission Meeting Schedule — The upcoming Planning Commission meetings
are listed here, for reference. No action will be taken on the meeting schedule, although individual
Commissioners may notify staff of planned absences.

e Regular Meeting: July 15, 2019
e Regular Meeting: July 29, 2019
e Regular Meeting: August 12, 2019

Adjournment

At every Regular Meeting of the Commission, in addition to the Public Comment period where the public shall have the
right to address the Commission on any matters of public interest not listed on the agenda, members of the public have
the right to directly address the Commission on any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the Chair, either
before or during the Commission’s consideration of the item.

At every Special Meeting of the Commission, members of the public have the right to directly address the Commission on
any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the Chair, either before or during consideration of the item.

For appeal hearings, appellant and applicant shall each have 10 minutes for presentations.

If you challenge any of the items listed on this agenda in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or
someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the City of
Menlo Park at, or prior to, the public hearing.

Any writing that is distributed to a majority of the Commission by any person in connection with an agenda item is a
public record (subject to any exemption under the Public Records Act) and is available for inspection at the City Clerk’s
Office, 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 during regular business hours.

Persons with disabilities, who require auxiliary aids or services in attending or participating in Commission meetings, may
call the City Clerk’s Office at 650-330-6620.

Agendas are posted in accordance with Government Code §54954.2(a) or §54956. Members of the public can view
electronic agendas and staff reports by accessing the City website at menlopark.org/agenda and can receive email

notification of agenda and staff report postings by subscribing to the “Notify Me” service at menlopark.org/notifyme.

Agendas and staff reports may also be obtained by contacting City Clerk at 650-330-6620. (Posted: 06/19/2019
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Planning Commission

DRAFT
Date: 6/3/2019
Time: 7:00 p.m.
City Council Chambers
MENLO PARK 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025

A. Call To Order
Chair Andrew Barnes called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.

B. Roll Call
Present: Andrew Barnes (Chair), Chris DeCardy, Michael Doran, Katherine Strehl
Absent: Camille Kennedy, Henry Riggs (Vice Chair), Michele Tate

Staff: Fahteen Khan, Contract Assistant Planner; Ori Paz, Assistant Planner; Kyle Perata, Principal
Planner; Tom Smith, Senior Planner

C. Reports and Announcements

Principal Planner Kyle Perata said the City Council at its June 4, 2019 meeting would consider the
proposed budget and the Capital Improvement Program for Fiscal Year 2019-2020.

D. Public Comment
There was none.

E. Consent Calendar

E1l.  Approval of minutes from the May 20, 2019, Planning Commission meeting. (Attachment)
Commissioner Chris DeCardy noted on pages 21 and 22 references to “shock clock,” which should
be referenced as “shot clock.” Planner Perata said he would confirm all instances and do a global
edit.
ACTION: Motion and second (Michael Doran/DeCardy) to approve the minutes from the May 20,
2019 Planning Commission meeting with the following modifications; passes 3-0 with
Commissioner Katherine Strehl abstaining and Commissioners Camille Kennedy, Henry Riggs,
and Michele Tate absent.
o Pages 18 through 22, replace “shock clock” with “shot clock” globally.

F. Public Hearing

F1. Use Permit/Chris Dolan/119 Baywood Avenue: Request for a use permit to demolish an existing
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single-family residence and a detached garage and construct a new two-story single-family
residence with an attached front-loading one-car garage and adjacent uncovered space on a
substandard lot with respect to lot area and width in the R-1-U (Single-Family Urban Residential)
zoning district. Two heritage-size tree of heaven trees are proposed for removal. Continued by
the Planning Commission at the May 6, 2019 meeting. (Staff Report #19-042-PC)

Staff Comment: Assistant Planner Ori Paz said staff received additional correspondence after the
publication of the staff report, which had been forwarded to the Commission by email earlier in the
day and were available for the public on the table in the back of the Council Chambers.

Applicant Presentation: Chris Dolan, project sponsor, said new modifications to the proposed
project included an increase to the first floor porch parapet, creation of an architectural wing wall,
addition of green wall on the garage, addition of an awning over the first floor patio door,
modification of the landscape plan with the addition of a front yard courtyard, recess of the garage
door further into the structure, changing the glass garage door to solid wood, and stepping the
garage back some. He provided a visual timeline of the neighbor outreach they had done.

Chair Barnes opened the public hearing and closed it as there were no speakers.

Commission Comment: Commissioner Doran said the project was much improved since the
Commission last saw it. He said he particularly liked that the garage was pushed back from the
street.

Commissioner Strehl said the project was supportable and that she appreciated the work done to
improve the project.

Commissioner DeCardy said he appreciated the work done on the project since the Commission
last saw it.

Chair Barnes said the project was well done and supportable. He asked about the fence and its
potential impact for visibility of the neighbor’s driveway. Planner Paz said that the fence actually
dropped in height noting fences in front setbacks were limited to four feet in height.

Chair Barnes said the design improvements were arduous but made the project much better for the
neighborhood. He said for the record that there was no bias for the proposed modern architecture.
He said it was more the siting of the garage and the layout as well as choices about what type of
construction that were problematic. He moved to approve; Commissioner Strehl seconded the
motion.

ACTION: Motion and second (Barnes/Strehl) to approve the project as recommended in
Attachment A to the staff report; passes 4-0 with Commissioners Kennedy, Riggs, and Tate
absent.

1. Make a finding that the project is categorically exempt under Class 3 (Section 15303, “New

Construction or Conversion of Small Structures”) of the current California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines.
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2. Make findings, as per Section 16.82.030 of the Zoning Ordinance pertaining to the granting of
use permits, that the proposed use will not be detrimental to the health, safety, morals, comfort
and general welfare of the persons residing or working in the neighborhood of such proposed
use, and will not be detrimental to property and improvements in the neighborhood or the
general welfare of the City.

3.

Approve the use permit subject to the following standard conditions:

a.

Development of the project shall be substantially in conformance with the plans prepared by
Connect-homes, consisting of 14 plan sheets, dated received May 29, 2019 and approved
by the Planning Commission on June 3, 2019, subject to review and approval by the
Planning Division.

Prior to building permit issuance, the applicants shall comply with all Sanitary District,
Menlo Park Fire Protection District, and utility companies’ regulations that are directly
applicable to the project.

Prior to building permit issuance, the applicants shall comply with all requirements of the
Building Division, Engineering Division, and Transportation Division that are directly
applicable to the project.

Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall submit a plan for any new utility
installations or upgrades for review and approval by the Planning, Engineering and Building
Divisions. All utility equipment that is installed outside of a building and that cannot be
placed underground shall be properly screened by landscaping. The plan shall show exact
locations of all meters, back flow prevention devices, transformers, junction boxes, relay
boxes, and other equipment boxes.

Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant
shall submit plans indicating that the applicant shall remove and replace any damaged and
significantly worn sections of frontage improvements. The plans shall be submitted for
review and approval of the Engineering Division.

Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant
shall submit a Grading and Drainage Plan for review and approval of the Engineering
Division. The Grading and Drainage Plan shall be approved prior to the issuance of
grading, demolition or building permits.

Heritage and street trees in the vicinity of the construction project shall be protected
pursuant to the Heritage Tree Ordinance and the arborist report prepared by Kielty Arborist
Services, LLC. on June 21, 2018. Revised April 24, 2019.

4. Approve the use permit subject to the following project specific conditions:

a. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicants shall provide an updated site plan and

landscape plan identifying the species of the two proposed street trees at the front, subject
to review and approval of the City Arborist.
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F2.

Use Permit/Flury Bryant Design Group/958 Hobart Street:

Request for a use permit for excavation within the required right side setback for a basement light
well and rear setback for a mechanical automobile turntable, in association with a new one-story
residence with a basement in the R-1-S (Single Family Suburban Residential) district. (Staff Report
#19-043-PC)

Staff Comment: Contract Assistant Planner Fahteen Khan said staff had no additions to the written
report.

Commissioner Strehl confirmed that the project was a residential home noting that its square
footage was small.

Chair Barnes opened the public hearing and closed it as there were no speakers.

Commission Comment: Commissioner Strehl asked how many vehicles would be stored in the
garage. Mr. Flury said the homeowner would store three vehicles.

ACTION: Motion and second (DeCardy/Doran) to approve the project as recommended in
Attachment A to the staff report; passes 3-0 with Commissioner Strehl abstaining and
Commissioners Kennedy, Riggs, and Tate absent.

1. Make a finding that the project is categorically exempt under Class 3 (Section 15303, “New
Construction or Conversion of Small Structures”) of the current California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines.

2. Make findings, as per Section 16.82.030 of the Zoning Ordinance pertaining to the granting of
use permits, that the proposed use will not be detrimental to the health, safety, morals, comfort
and general welfare of the persons residing or working in the neighborhood of such proposed
use, and will not be detrimental to property and improvements in the neighborhood or the
general welfare of the City.

3. Approve the use permit subject to the following standard conditions:

a. Development of the project shall be substantially in conformance with the plans prepared by
Flury Bryant Design Group, Inc., consisting of 13 plan sheets, dated received May 22,
2019, subject to review and approval by the Planning Division.

b. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicants shall comply with all Sanitary District,
Menlo Park Fire Protection District, and utility companies’ regulations that are directly
applicable to the project.

c. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicants shall comply with all requirements of the
Building Division, Engineering Division, and Transportation Division that are directly
applicable to the project.
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d. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall submit a plan for any new utility
installations or upgrades for review and approval by the Planning, Engineering and Building
Divisions. All utility equipment that is installed outside of a building and that cannot be
placed underground shall be properly screened by landscaping. The plan shall show exact
locations of all meters, back flow prevention devices, transformers, junction boxes, relay
boxes, and other equipment boxes.

e. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant
shall submit plans indicating that the applicant shall remove and replace any damaged and
significantly worn sections of frontage improvements. The plans shall be submitted for
review and approval of the Engineering Division.

f. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant
shall submit a Grading and Drainage Plan for review and approval of the Engineering
Division. The Grading and Drainage Plan shall be approved prior to the issuance of
grading, demolition or building permits.

g. Heritage and street trees in the vicinity of the construction project shall be protected
pursuant to the Heritage Tree Ordinance and the arborist report by Wayne Tree Expert
Company, Inc., dated February 12, 2019.

F3. Use Permit/Sally and Barry Karlin/308 Arbor Road:
Request for a use permit to demolish an existing one-story residence and detached garage, and
construct a new two-story residence with an attached garage and a basement on a substandard lot
with regard to minimum lot width and area in the R-1-U (Single Family Urban Residential) zoning
district. One heritage sized Siberian elm tree is proposed to be removed as part of the project.
(Staff Report #19-044-PC)

Staff Comment: Planning Technician Chris Turner said staff had no updates to the written report.

Questions of Staff: Replying to Commissioner DeCardy, Mr. Turner said the applicant would be
responsible for the removal and replacement of the three trees in the public right of way.
Commissioner DeCardy confirmed with Mr. Turner that the City Arborist would be the approving
entity for the replacement tree type and planting location.

Applicant Presentation: Barry Karlin, project applicant, said he and his wife wanted to build a
beautiful home in the Allied Arts area, noting they had previously lived there. He said their goal was
to have a style and design that fit the area. He said they reached out to all of the neighbors and
most were supportive.

Commissioner DeCardy noted the removal of a heritage elm tree to accommodate the light well
and asked if they had looked at a design that would have preserved the heritage tree. Mr. Karlin
said the tree in question was in very bad shape and the City Arborist recommended its removal. He
said they would replace with a heritage tree near where the existing tree was. He said that also
met that side neighbor’s desire for a shade tree over their property.

Chair Barnes opened the public hearing and closed it as there were no speakers.

Commission Comment: Commissioner Strehl said the project seemed to maximize to the allowable
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development on the property. She said she was concerned that the second story was not setback
from the five-foot setback. She said the project seemed boxy and massive.

Recognized by the Chair, Jim Malikski, project architect, said the lot was very narrow with a
buildable area of 40 feet. He noted that bedrooms 1 and 2 were setback and the second floor was
designed so it did not line up with the first floor. He said it was sounder structurally to have the first
and second floor walls line up or at least parts of it. He said they tried to solve the massing toward
the front, so the home was not as big there. Commissioner Strehl said that the second story was
stepped back for bedrooms 1 and 2 but that the house still looked big. Mr. Malikski said they
lowered the plate height on the second floor from eight to seven feet and had dormer windows for
interest on the side.

Chair Barnes noted the neighborhood outreach and response. He said he had no reason to
disapprove the project. He moved to approve; Commissioner Doran seconded the motion.

ACTION: Motion and second (Barnes/Doran) to approve the project as recommended in
Attachment A to the staff report; passes 3-1 with Commissioner Strehl opposing and
Commissioners Kennedy, Riggs, and Tate absent.

1. Make a finding that the project is categorically exempt under Class 3 (Section 15303, “New
Construction or Conversion of Small Structures”) of the current California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines.

2. Make findings, as per Section 16.82.030 of the Zoning Ordinance pertaining to the granting of
use permits, that the proposed use will not be detrimental to the health, safety, morals, comfort
and general welfare of the persons residing or working in the neighborhood of such proposed
use, and will not be detrimental to property and improvements in the neighborhood or the
general welfare of the City.

3. Approve the use permit subject to the following standard conditions:

a. Development of the project shall be substantially in conformance with the plans prepared by
J Maliksi & Associates Architecture, consisting of 17 plan sheets, dated received May 13,
2019, and approved by the Planning Commission on June 3, 2019, except as modified by
the conditions contained herein, subject to review and approval of the Planning Division.

b. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicants shall comply with all Sanitary District,
Menlo Park Fire Protection District, and utility companies’ regulations that are directly
applicable to the project.

c. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicants shall comply with all requirements of the

Building Division, Engineering Division, and Transportation Division that are directly
applicable to the project.
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d. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall submit a plan for any new utility
installations or upgrades for review and approval by the Planning, Engineering and Building
Divisions. All utility equipment that is installed outside of a building and that cannot be
placed underground shall be properly screened by landscaping. The plan shall show exact
locations of all meters, back flow prevention devices, transformers, junction boxes, relay
boxes, and other equipment boxes.

e. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant
shall submit plans indicating that the applicant shall remove and replace any damaged and
significantly worn sections of frontage improvements. The plans shall be submitted for
review and approval of the Engineering Division.

f. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant
shall submit a Grading and Drainage Plan for review and approval of the Engineering
Division. The Grading and Drainage Plan shall be approved prior to the issuance of
grading, demolition or building permits.

g. Heritage trees in the vicinity of the construction project shall be protected pursuant to the
Heritage Tree Ordinance and the arborist report prepared by Mayne Tree Expert Company,
Inc., dated January 21, 2019.

F4 and G1 are associated items with a single staff report

F4. Environmental Impact Report (EIR) Scoping Session/Rich Truempler/162-164 Jefferson Drive:
Request for a conditional development permit amendment, architectural control, below market rate
housing agreement, and environmental review to construct a new four-story office building,
approximately 249,500 square feet in size, and a new four-story parking structure. The new office
building and parking structure would be constructed on a parcel with two existing four-story office
buildings, each of which is approximately 130,000 square feet in size. The property is located in
the O-B (Office, Bonus) zoning district. The total existing and proposed office development on the
parcel would be approximately 510,000 square feet of gross floor area with a total proposed floor
area ratio (FAR) of 88 percent for the project site. The proposal includes a request for an increase
in height and FAR under the bonus level development provisions in exchange for community
amenities. (Staff Report #19-045-PC)

Transcript prepared for item F4.
G. Study Session

Gl. Study Session/Rich Truempler/162-164 Jefferson Drive:
Request for a conditional development permit amendment, architectural control, below market rate
housing agreement, and environmental review to construct a new four-story office building,
approximately 249,500 square feet in size, and a new four-story parking structure. The new office
building and parking structure would be constructed on a parcel with two existing four-story office
buildings, each of which is approximately 130,000 square feet in size. The property is located in
the O-B (Office, Bonus) zoning district. The total existing and proposed office development on the
parcel would be approximately 510,000 square feet of gross floor area with a total proposed floor
area ratio (FAR) of 88 percent for the project site. The proposal includes a request for an increase
in height and FAR under the bonus level development provisions in exchange for community
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amenities. (Staff Report #19-045-PC)

Staff Comment: Planner Smith said staff had two questions with one about the parking ratios and
whether the Commission found either parking ratio alternative acceptable. He said regarding the
bird-friendly guidelines waiver request the Commission was asked to weigh in on whether
additional information or further clarification was needed to act upon that request when the project
entittements came forward.

Chair Barnes opened the public comment period and closed it as there were no speakers.

Commission Comment: Commissioner Strehl asked how many employees were anticipated in the
new building. Mr. Truempler said it was one employee per 125 square feet. Planner Smith said he
recalled the estimated employee count was in the Initial Study. Commissioner Strehl confirmed
housing mitigations would come later after studies were done. She said the biggest concern was
the infrastructure and the transportation infrastructure in particular that supported development in
the ConnectMenlo area. She said with adding more employees and not sufficient housing that
traffic became much more of a bottleneck. She said that not only impacted the residents of Belle
Haven and East Palo Alto but other parts of Menlo Park significantly. She said she hoped the City
could move forward with a more significant infrastructure plan to help alleviate the traffic and make
investments that would help. Planner Smith said the employee count was one employee per 125
square feet, which equated to just under 2,000 employees.

Commissioner DeCardy said it would be helpful to know what the project would look like without
the need for the bird-friendly guidelines waiver and the impacts to the applicant in terms of cost,
design or some other area that made following those problematic. Mr. Truempler said it was cost
and also the pleasantness of the employee spaces. He said typically ceramic gridding was done
for bird-friendly glazing. He said if it was not required, they would like to avoid it, but they
understood the need to study it. He said they asked for a waiver because according to the bird safe
design guidelines their project was not near the area where birds would be affected.

Commissioner Strehl said she appreciated that the applicant had downsized the garage although it
and the building were still significant in size. She said she supported a 2.5 parking space per 1,000
square feet ratio as opposed to the 3.0 space per 1,000 square feet as she thought that everything
would be needed to eliminate vehicle trips in addition to infrastructure improvements.

Commissioner DeCardy asked about the parking space reduction and if they had looked at it in
terms of mitigating the entire set of additional trips or parking through other shifts in the current
TDM plan. Mr. Truempler said the EiR would study these things more specifically. He said as a
developer they preferred the higher parking ratio and part of that related to the occupancy of the
building. He said they would have to have a significant TDM plan just for the building to live at 3.0
parking spaces per 1,000 square feet with the anticipated employee count. He said they wanted
their development to have an appropriate amount of parking and for cost benefit analysis they
would prefer the 3.0 parking spaces per 1,000 square feet.

Chair Barnes said the current project proposal was well-conceptualized for the parcel in the size
and locating of the building as well as the scale, massing and screening perspective of the parking
garage. He said the proposed building would be homogenous with the existing two buildings that
were also well designed. He said the 2.5 parking ratio per 1,000 square feet was better for the
community in terms of reducing car trips. He said based on the anticipated employee count that a
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robust TDM program would be needed at that parking ratio. He said he did not like below ground
parking in the Bayfront area and thought eliminating it and using the 2.5 parking ratio was the best
idea.

Chair Barnes asked staff to explain the bird safety guidelines. Planner Smith said for this relatively
new office zoning district there were bird-friendly guidelines for development. He said the
guidelines had an exemption request that would allow for a waiver from those standards. He said
as part of the Initial Study a biologist did a study of the proposed design of the building and
determined the building would follow the majority of the guidelines except for not having more than
10% non-bird-friendly glass on the building. He said he thought the applicant’s intent was to design
the building in a way that was completely compatible with the other two buildings on the site that
were constructed prior to these bird-friendly standards being in place. He said the first request by
the applicant was to exceed the 10% non-bird-friendly glazing. He said the second request was
regarding building corners as well as railings. He said the proposed building had balconies and the
corners were transparent glass. He said the railings would have the fritting pattern that made it
easier for birds to distinguish the glass. He said that was one of the things the biologist had
mentioned would help birds to be able to distinguish the railings, but the corners of the building
would be glass. He said the biologist indicated the vegetation on the site was low quality and not
likely an area where large numbers of birds would be nesting, so it seemed the incidence of bird
strikes would be relatively low for this building.

Chair Barnes asked if staff had a position on the waiver. Planner Smith noted that he was not
qualified as a biologist. He said a professional biologist performed the study as part of ICF’s review
for the Initial Study. He said they peer reviewed the study and felt comfortable with it as well. He
said staff would rely on the two professionals’ opinions and concur with it unless the Commission
had a different opinion or requested more information.

Chair Barnes said the project was the right one for ConnectMenlo. He said whether ConnectMenlo
was right for Menlo Park was a different discussion that was being taken up by the City Council. He
said he was inclined to go with the biologists’ opinions regarding the bird-friendly guidelines waiver
request.

Chair Barnes closed the study session hearing.

H. Informational ltems

H1. Future Planning Commission Meeting Schedule

e Regular Meeting: June 24, 2019

Principal Planner Perata said for the June 24 meeting, it appeared the 1704 El Camino Real hotel
project would come back for the Commission for review as well as a study session and EIR
scoping session for 111 Independence Drive, and a study session for the neighboring 115
Independence Drive project.

Replying to Commissioner Strehl, Planner Perata said the 201 EI Camino Real project would
tentatively be planned for one of the July meetings.

e Regular Meeting: July 15, 2019

City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 tel 650-330-6600 www.menlopark.org
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e Regular Meeting: July 29, 2019
l. Adjournment

Chair Barnes adjourned the meeting at 8:52 p.m.

Staff Liaison: Kyle Perata, Principal Planner

Recording Secretary: Brenda Bennett

City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 tel 650-330-6600 www.menlopark.org
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ATTENDEES
THE PLANNING COMMISSION:
Andrew Barnes - Chairperson
Henry Riggs - Vice Chairperson (Absent)
Katherine Strehl
Camille Kennedy (Absent)
Chris Decardy
Michele Tate (Absent)
Michael C. Doran
THE CITY STAFF:

Kyle Perata - Principal Planner
Thomas Smith - Senior Planner

SUPPORT CONSULTANT:

Kirsten Chapman, Project Manager, ICF Consultants
PROJECT PRESENTERS:

Richard Truempler

Evan Sockalosky
Nick Samuelson

---00o---

BE IT REMEMBERED that, pursuant to Notice
of the Meeting, and on June 3, 2019, 7:37 PM at the Menlo
Park City Council Chambers, 701 Laurel Street, Menlo
Park, California, before me, MARK I. BRICKMAN, CSR No.
5527, State of California, there commenced a Planning
Commission meeting under the provisions of the City of
Menlo Park.

---00o---
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JUNE 3, 2019 7:37 PM
PROCEEDTINGS
-—--00o---
CHATRPERSON BARNES: We're progressing to F4.

Let me check in with staff. We're going to take F4 or

how should we start this? Hello, Tom.

MR. SMITH: Hi.
CHATRPERSON BARNES: Mr. Smith.
MR. SMITH: I'm here to give a brief

recommendation here on in that the staff has on the
proceedings for public hearing, and I'll turn it over to
the applicant for presentation as well as our consultant
ICF.

CHAIRPERSON BARNES: And I would introduce it
as public hearing agenda item F4. We'll take it from
there.

Great. So F4. This is Environmental Impact
Report (EIR) Scoping Session for 162 to 164 Jefferson
Drive.

It's a request for a Conditional Development
Permit Amendment, Architectural Control, Below Market
Rate Housing Agreement, and Environmental Review to
construct a new four-story office building, approximately
249,500 square feet in size, and a new four-story parking

structure.

Emerick and Finch, Certified Shorthand Reporters
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1 The new office building and parking structure
2 will be constructed on a parcel with two existing
3 four-story office buildings, each of which is
4 approximately 130,000 square feet in size.
5 The property is located in the O-B (Office,

6 Bonus) zoning district. The total existing and proposed
7 office development on the parcel would be approximately

8 510,000 square feet of gross floor area with a total

9 proposed Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of 88 percent for the
10 project site.
11 The proposal includes a request for an increase

12 in height and FAR under the bonus level development

13 provisions in exchange for community amenities.

14 Good evening. Mr. Smith.

15 MR. SMITH: Good evening, Planning

16 Commissioners.

17 So this evening we have two hearings, and the
18 first one is an Environmental Impact Report Scoping

19 Session, and that's at an opportunity for the public and
20 Commissioners to comment on the EIR topics that will be

21 studied as part of the project going forward.

22 Second is a Study Session which gives public
23 and Commission the opportunity to provide feedback on the
24 project plans, design, and two previous study sessions

25 were held for this project in 2018.
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1 So there are just a couple of questions that

2 staff has about updates since the last time, but feel

3 free to comment on any aspect of the project if you have
4 questions as you like.
5 There are no actions scheduled for this

6 evening. Project entitlements will happen after the EIR
7 has been completed and then further developed for the

8 project.

9 So a recommended meeting format is laid out for
10 you at the beginning of the staff report. I'll just run

11 through that quickly.

12 So first I would recommend that you hold the

13 EIR Scoping Session. First we'd have a presentation by
14 the applicant to give the project's overview, followed by
15 a present organizes ICF, our EIR consultant who will be

16 working on this EIR for the project.

17 Following that, any Commissioner questions to
18 clarify, public comments and then returning back for a
19 Commissioner comments.

20 Finally close -- closing the Scoping Session

21 Public Hearing and then opening the Study Session with

22 Commissioner questions, followed by public comments and
23 then Commissioner comments.
24 That's the recommended format. If -- if you

25 have any questions for staff at this time, I'm happy to

Emerick and Finch, Certified Shorthand Reporters
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1 answer them. Otherwise, I will turn it over to project
2 applicant to present.
3 CHAIRPERSON BARNES: Great. Let the record
4 show that I'm in agreement with that progression agenda.
5 So would the applicant -- I'm sorry. Any
6 clarifying questions to staff with regards to how we're

7 going to walk through this? The EIR piece, the EIR
8 scoping piece and then there's the Study Session. We'll

9 take them one after the other.

10 Seeing no questions, good evening. Please step
11 forward.

12 MR. TRUEMPLER: Thank you.

13 Is there a clicker? How does that work?

14 MR. SMITH: There's a clicker here.

15 MR. TRUEMPLER: All right. I'm happy to do

16 the -- good evening, Planning Commissioners. First and
17 foremost, thank you for your time this evening. I'm

18 happy to be before you again.

19 I'm Richard Truempler, vice-president of the
20 Sobrato Organization, and also, I brought a principal

21 architect, a landscape architect and the ecologist in an
22 effort to answer any questions that you may have.

23 I've prepared a short series of slides to take
24 you through the evolution of this project, when we

25 purchased the property, from where we first conceived it
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1 to where we've taken it today from input from Planning
2 Commission, and let's see if I can bring it up.
3 No. That's not working. Sorry about that.
4 So the first slide that we'll see of the M-2 or

5 what was formerly referred to as the M-2 area, and I

6 think as everyone is aware of, the site -- subject site

7 has two office buildings that are on it right now, each

8 about 130,000 square feet.

9 We developed the site in about 2014, and that
10 was at a .5 FAR. And so when the Connect Menlo process
11 started and engaged with the City and we asked
12 specifically for that to apply to our site, as well,

13 because we got more development capacity and we felt it
14 would be a good candidate, as well, just because it's an
15 infill site, and so we thought it would bring some

16 balance to the development landscape and also bring

17 community benefits.
18 Can we go to the next slide?
19 So the next step I think as Tom talked about --

20 and this is important just to try to clarify for
21 everyone —-- that this is the continuation of the
22 development process, and it isn't a hearing about
23 approval, but our next step here is to kickoff the
24 project EIR and then move on to the appraisal to

25 establish what kind of money is available from community
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benefits, and then we'll be doing community outreach
about both the EIR and to the appropriate community
benefit package.

And then it will culminate in a series of
public hearings.

So from where we started, we have reduced the
project scope after meeting with staff and the Planning
Commissioners.

We eliminated two floors from the office. We
reduced the office square footage by 70,000 square feet
and then we also took a floor off the parking garage.

Next slide.

So what that did is that enhanced our open
area. 1t provided a neat opportunity by allowing us to
add a community park, and through some outreach, we also
learned of our neighbor, which is the TIDE Academy, that
they needed to have community facilities or outdoor
facilities to conduct state required PE classes and also
they had a parking issue, because parking was removed
from the street. They needed some additional parking for
their staff.

And so we've been working with them to make
that work, and later on to landscape a park and we'll
talk about some other engagement and how we designed the

park to benefit the community need, but also the TIDE
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Academy.

And then also important we improved the
architecture. So there's a couple of things that we've
done with that.

Number one, we reduced it by one floor. The
other is that we've added some articulation and we've
also helped come up with an architecture that we think
frames Kelly Park, and the architect will show you that,
and we hope to have some more input on -- there's a
screen there with some lighting, that what can be. We
want to work with the community and staff on it.

So here we won't dwell too much on this, but
this is what our original concept was, which is to add
two buildings, maximum FAR, and we brought this to 1.0
FAR, which was just over 300,000 square feet, and the
comment was we really needed to have more publicly
accessible open space.

And so what we ended up doing was we took the
building that was along Jefferson and we consolidated it
to a third building, and we increased that building by
two stories.

But since that time, we've reduced that, and
now I want to talk about the current proposal.

And so before I do that, this is probably a

good time actually for Evan, if you could get up and
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1 start talking about the proposal.
2 MR. SOCKALOSKY: Commissioners, Evan
3 Sockalosky, the architect. Thank you for your time.
4 As Rich mentioned, we've evolved from the two

5 buildings to a single building, and we've listened to our

6 comments, and we've progressed to our current proposal,
7 which is a four-story building.

8 CHAIRPERSON BARNES: Can you move the

9 microphone closer?
10 MR. SOCKALOSKY: Which is a four-story

11 building at 249,500 square feet. We also added the

12 community park along Jefferson, which you can see, which
13 is the opening into our site.

14 And with that, we were focused on connections
15 as are required, and so we have a sale connection that

16 draws you into the site and we have kind of two arrival

17 points: One is the community park along Jefferson and we
18 also have some open space along the end of the garage.

19 We located that to give our project a stand-

20 alone site that you can loop all the way around as a

21 walkway as well as potential future connections to an

22 alternate transportation corridor along Menlo Park has

23 been envisioned.

24 And so we have points that you can connect to
25 and throughout our site and across Menlo Park.
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1 As Rich mentioned, the community park is
2 utilized by the high school, the parking. The 23 spaces
3 that we've included are not part of our parking ratio,

4 but rather dedicated to the high school during school

5 hours and for community use during off hours.
6 The evolution of the site also you can see in
7 the architecture, our initial program with the six-story

8 building, you can see the background as well as the

9 taller garage, which is a pretty strong feature.
10 Thanks to input, we reduced the density of the
11 project, and you can see the building in the background

12 is reduced, the height of the garage is reduced. Also

13 stepped the architecture.

14 You can see the concept we have now, which is a
15 nice decorative screen that faces Kelly Park.

16 Right now we're showing oak trees that kind of
17 references Menlo Park, but we're open to input on that,
18 creatively screening that garage and putting a nice front

19 on Kelly Park.

20 As far as the entry to the site, we felt the
21 open space was important. It's also welcoming as you
22 approach our site, so you can see the community park and

23 the high school parking that we've included as you
24 approach Jefferson, and you can see the four-story

25 building in the background.
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1 As you approach, it was important to fully
2 develop this site. Our third building -- and this is a

3 three-building campus, and this building finishes that

4 development.

5 The architecture is complementary what is

6 there, so it fits within the concept itself and as well
7 as scale, by reducing the two stories that we did. It

8 really ties it all together.

9 And the last thing that Rich mentioned. Right
10 now we're showing occupancy as 2.5 per thousand, which is
11 a discussion point in our last Study Session. The other

12 is a 3.0 per thousand.

13 We're asking to study both. The 3.0 is wvalid
14 for our site, and generally speaking, increasing the 3.0,
15 we wouldn't increase the garage as Rich mentioned. We'd
16 simply be going below grade to add our parking.

17 So from the exterior it would look the same.

18 We think that's important, that we don't increase the

19 scale of the garage.

20 And next we'll have Nick do the landscape and

21 the park.

22 MR. SAMUELSON: Hi. I'm Nick Samuelson from
23 the Sobrato Partnership, the architect. So, you know, a
24 while ago we had a meeting with some members from the

25 school. I went over their goal, the needs they had for
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1 this site and what we thought had been on here. So we
2 talked about several programs and elements. One was to
3 have a hard court surface, some grass area where they
4 could do some type of games on it to outdoor classrooms,
5 some storage and also the ability to have some kind of
6 track.
7 So after that meeting, we came back and saw

8 what we could fit in there. We're showing a full size

9 basketball court and then the basketball court, so they

10 can set up half court games, too, for PE classes, and

11 there's some terrace seating areas and a paved area which
12 can be used for outdoor classrooms.

13 And the center of that paved area is potential
14 for some restrooms and storage areas. They can store

15 some of their supplies in there, and then they have the

16 grass field, and we talked about the size of that.

17 We thought that was good for what they were
18 going to be doing for their classes. And the active
19 areas, we open up a fence to help keep balls from going

20 into the street.

21 And also we were discussing circulation through
22 the site with some important parts, too, so we're looking
23 at it in connection over on the left side, the public

24 sidewalk into the school and walkway.

25 We did have an iteration where there was a
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1 track that went around there, too. It was decided that

2 that conflicted with the sidewalk, so the goal was to use

3 that as a track to run around the site. A walkway around
4 the entire site, too.

5 The plan is still in progress. We're

6 continuing discussing with them and on the site with.

7 MR. TRUEMPLER: So a few things. We can move
8 on to the next slide.

9 Being involved in the community over the last
10 several years, we are still studying the impact of

11 development.

12 This project will be one of the first projects
13 that will be permitted under those development

14 stipulations. The new development at the proposed level
15 will be assessing the community benefit. In additional
16 to addition impacts to the community as defined by the
17 EIR.

18 So this project would result in a public/

19 private park which will be utilized by the immediate

20 school which provides State required PE classes, provide
21 parking for the school staff during school hours, provide

22 funding for affordable housing, help create traffic

23 improvements, and provide a community benefit to the
24 Belle Haven, and enhance revenue to the City General
25 Fund.
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1 We understand the next steps will be the

2 commencement of the project EIR to help define what the

3 impact of the mitigation project will be, commence bonus
4 value appraisal and then we'll be working with staff and
5 Belle Haven on an appropriate community benefits package.
6 We appreciate your time this evening and we're
7 available to answer any questions that you may have.

8 CHATRPERSON BARNES: Thank you.

9 Any questions? Commissioner Doran.
10 COMMISSIONER DORAN: I'd like to understand

11 the park ownership and use a little bit better.

12 Public/private park, you know, who owns it, who's

13 responsible for maintenance and will the school, you

14 know, use be permitted, permit used by the school?

15 Please clarify those issues.

16 MR. TRUEMPLER: Sure. Not all of them are

17 worked out, but I can tell you what they're striving for

18 and what the intent is.
19 And so the intent is a public park that we
20 would own and we would enter into a long-term agreement

21 with the joint use of that park by the school.

22 Does that help?

23 COMMISSIONER DORAN: Yeah. Thank you.

24 CHAIRPERSON BARNES: Commissioner Strehl.
25 COMMISSTIONER STREHL: Does that mean that
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you're responsible for the maintenance and --

MR. TRUEMPLER: So I think that that's
something that we're going to be talking to the school
about a little bit. I think initially our thoughts is
that we find a way to prorate the maintenance of it so
that we would be responsible for the public maint --
maintenance of it, but the specific school maintenance
that they would be responsible for, be it a joint use
agreement, but we have to work the agreements out.

And it will be subject to City review, as well.
This is something that will be going on.

COMMISSIONER STREHL: And so I want to commend
you for working with the school, because when the school
was there, they were informed that they couldn't park on
the street.

MR. TRUEMPLER: Mm-hmm.

COMMISSIONER STREHL: They had all kinds of
restrictions on them. The fact that you stepped up to
provide parking during day hours of the school and the
park I think is really commendable.

So will the school be limited to the number of
hours that they can use that parking area?

MR. TRUEMPLER: That -- so at least that's the
intent. The intent --

COMMISSIONER STREHL: Okay.
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1 MR. TRUEMPLER: The idea is when school's out
2 when the park's not being used, the public can use the

3 park.

4 COMMISSIONER STREHL: So it's a public park.
5 MR. TRUEMPLER: Yes.

6 COMMISSIONER STREHL: Thank you. That's the
7 only questions I have.

8 CHAIRPERSON BARNES: Great. Thank you.

9 Do I have any more questions?
10 So with that, we will progress to the EIR
11 consultant. I'll hand it back to Mr. Smith.
12 MR. SMITH: So I will introduce Kirsten
13 Chapman from ICF who will be giving a brief presentation
14 about CEQA process and here's her presentation.
15 MS. CHAPMAN: Good evening, Commissioners and

16 members of the public. Thank you for coming tonight for
17 the Scoping Session for the Commonwealth Building 3

18 project.

19 My name is Kirsten Chapman and I work for the

20 environmental consulting firm ICF. We will be preparing
21 the environmental review component of the project, and I
22 am project manager.

23 Should you have any questions after the

24 presentation, I will respond to them accordingly.

25 So my presentation will cover the scoping
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1 process and the environmental review process. I will
2 also provide a very brief overview of the proposed

3 project, but the applicant has already provided that, so
4 it will be quick, explain how the public comments on the
5 scope of the EIR and describe the next steps.

6 So our EIR team consists of the City of Menlo
7 Park as the lead agency, meaning that they have the

8 principal responsibility of carrying out the project.

9 ICF will be the lead EIR consultant, will --
10 and will prepare all sections of the EIR with assistance
11 from Kittelson for the transportation component and Keyser

12 Marston & Associates for the housing needs assessment.
13 This is a very quick overview of the conditions

14 which will be considered the baseline in the EIR. The

15 Commonwealth Corporate Center, which is the project site,
16 includes the Commonwealth site and the Jefferson site.
17 The Commonwealth site includes two four-story

18 buildings which were constructed in 2015 and each

19 building is approximately 67 feet tall.

20 They are surrounded by certain parking
21 landscape accessories and paths and water features.
22 And the Jefferson site is currently occupied by

23 the surface parking lot with approximately 87 parking
24 spots.

25 So the project sponsor will develop the
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Commonwealth site, replacing most of the existing surface
parking, and as shown in this diagram, the proposed
building 3 would be to the north of buildings 1 and 2.

The proposed building would have a maximum height
of 69 feet and then also construct the parking structure.

And then in addition to the building and the
parking structure, there will be on the Jefferson site a
community park that will be privately owned, but publicly
accessible, as we've just discussed.

The project site is within the Connect Menlo
Study Area. The Connect Menlo EIR was prepared as the
program EIR which applies to the EIR process for future
projects which incorporates by reference the analysis and
discussion of the program EIR.

By hearing from the Connect Menlo EIR, the
environmental analysis for the project relies on the
Connect Menlo EIR for the following: General background
insetting, overall growth-related issues, issues that
were evaluated in Connect Menlo for which there have been
no significant new information that will require further
analysis, assessment of cumulative impacts and mitigation
measures adopted and incorporated into the Connect Menlo
ETIR.

However, due to the 2017 City of East Palo Alto

versus City of Menlo Park Settlement Agreement, certain
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topics are required to be fully analyzed in the project
level EIR regardless of whether subsequent activities are
found to be within the scope of the program EIR, and
we'll discuss those in the next slide.

Just a quick overview of the CEQA process.

This show -- this slide shows the general staff involved.
As most of you know, the NOP was released along with the
initial study, which we'll discuss next on May 24th. The
NOP comment period ends on June 28th.

Following the scoping period, we will begin
preparing the Focus Draft EIR. When the Draft EIR is
released for public review, a public hearing will be
held, similar to this one, to solicit comments on the
adequacy of the EIR.

The Focus Final EIR will then be prepared to
address all the comments received during the Draft EIR
review period.

A hearing for the Final EIR will be held in
front of the Planning Commission and City Council, and
after the EIR is certified, that can then be approved,
and following a project approval, a Notice of
Determination will be issued.

As I mentioned previously, an initial study was
prepared to evaluate the potential environmental impacts

of the project and to determine what level of additional
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analysis is required.

The initial study was prepared to disclose the
relevant impacts and mitigation measures covered in the
Connect Menlo EIR.

The initial study also discussed whether the
project is within the parameters of the Connect Menlo
EIR.

Based on the checklist, the following projects
will be scoped out of the EIR and no longer -- they don't
need to be analyzed, and that's biological resources,
historic resources, geology and soils, hazards, land use,
mineral resources, public services and utilities, except
for water.

So due to the 2017 settlement agreement with
East Palo Alto and other potentially significant impacts
as a result of the project, the focused EIR will be
prepared.

The EIR is a tool for identifying physical
impacts to the environment by using the analysis conducted
by our EIR team.

The EIR is also used to inform the public as
decision-makers about a project prior to project approval,
recommending ways to reduce impacts and to consider

alternatives to lessen the environmental impact.

As shown here, air quality, cultural and tribal

Emerick and Finch, Certified Shorthand Reporters
Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings



800-331-9029 emerickfinch@emerickfinch.com

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 23

resources, greenhouse gas, noise, population and housing,
transportation, water supply will all be studied in the
focused EIR.

In addition, alternatives to the project will
be analyzed to reduce potentially identified impacts.

CEQA guidelines will also look at a no project
alternative, and that will be considered and will also
comply with CEQA.

As discussed previously, we're currently in the
scoping phase of the project. This is the initial stage
of the EIR process.

The purpose of this scoping phase is to gather
input, identify key environmental issues, early
identification of possible mitigation measures and to
consider possible project alternatives.

Although my presentation included an overview
of the project, I want to note that the intent of this
portion of tonight's meeting as well as the entire
scoping phase that lasts until the end of June is not
going to give comments on the project itself or its
merits.

Instead the comments should be focused on the
environmental capacity of the project.

You can submit comments on the scope of the EIR

via e-mail or letter to Tom Smith, Senior Planner with
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the City of Menlo Park.

You can also speak tonight and we will note
your comments and consider them during the preparation of
the Draft EIR.

All comments must be received by June 28th.
Note that the comment period has been extended beyond the
thirty-day typical review period due to the Memorial Day
holiday.

Thank you again for coming tonight and we will
look forward to receiving your comments.

CHATRPERSON BARNES: Thank you.

Are there any specific clarifying type
questions as it relates to the EIR scope? Commission
Decardy?

COMMISSIONER DECARDY: Ms. Chapman, thank you
very much. That was really helpful.

I have a question about determination about
what is in the table of less than significant impacts and
the table of topics to be addressed.

One of the items looks like comments for the
request for waiver of regulations regarding the building
and the potential for birds to crash into it.

I wondered if -- how that's taken into
consideration and are birds in biological resources or

what are birds under, I guess?

Emerick and Finch, Certified Shorthand Reporters
Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings



800-331-9029 emerickfinch@emerickfinch.com

Page 25

1 MS. CHAPMAN: Yes. They're under biological
2 resources and a biological, by the Applicant's

3 consultant, and that is per mitigation measure that was
4 in the Connect Menlo EIR, and the biological resources
5 assessment is summarized in the initial study and it is
6 provided as an appendix to the initial study.

7 And the BRA did determine that the -- the

8 project as proposed would conflict with the -- is the

9 bird friendly guidelines.
10 However, a waiver will be submitted and that

11 would be part of the conditions of approval for the

12 project, I believe, going forward.

13 COMMISSIONER DECARDY: This may be for you or
14 staff. So if I have this right, essentially this has

15 already been looked at and addressed by two different

16 experts?

17 MS. CHAPMAN: Correct.
18 COMMISSIONER DECARDY: But if it's asking for
19 a waiver, I guess my question is: Does this close off

20 the opportunity for the public to be able to have input
21 into potentially have their voices heard about this issue
22 in a different way that was actually on table 27

23 So my question is not so much questioning

24 whether or not these experts have rightly looked at the

25 situation about the birds, but whether this -- because
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it's been addressed earlier as opposed to what might be
the consideration, that will have a different impact on
the public ability later on in this process to be able to
have input, and again, I don't know if that's you or the
staff.

MS. CHAPMAN: I can say —-- so this is the
public scoping period to comment on the EIR, but then
also to comment on the initial study.

This is addressed in the initial study and part
of the project is the waiver.

And so if you're submitting comments right now,
as you are, then yes, we will discuss those going forward
and address them accordingly in the EIR.

We're not closed for comments on the waiver.

COMMISSIONER DECARDY: I was trying to do my
best to ask clarifying questions as opposed to make
comments, which I will do at some point.

I was trying to ask a clarifying question, but
I appreciate your comments on that.

CHAIRPERSON BARNES: We can always come back
should you need more information.

Staff.

MR. SMITH: I think the only other thing that
we'll mention, in addition to what Kirsten said, is that

there's a provision in the zoning ordinance that does
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1 permit further request for waivering and granting by the
2 Planning Commission. That is an avenue that is
3 permitted.
4 CHAIRPERSON BARNES: Commissioner Decardy?
5 COMMISSIONER DECARDY: A separate clarifying
6 question, I think. So the -- this EIR is meant to meet

7 the program EIR for Connect Menlo, which helps a lot, it

8 looks like, to be able to clear stuff. It makes a lot of

9 sense to do it in that way.
10 At -- at several points reading through this
11 document, there are essentially references to "no
12 significant new information since that program EIR was in

13 place,”™ and I can either ask the question generally, like

14 how do you determine what information is significant and
15 who determines what information is significant, or is it
16 a specific aspect of the project?

17 MS. CHAPMAN: I can address your first

18 question and then you can ask specific questions after

19 that.

20 So the EIR consultant, ICF, we determine

21 with -- in coordination with the City what is considered
22 a significant change since the Connect Menlo EIR has been
23 released, and we definitely work close with the City in

24 determining that.

25 And I guess -- I guess specific questions will

Emerick and Finch, Certified Shorthand Reporters
Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings



800-331-9029 emerickfinch@emerickfinch.com

Page 28
1 be addressed.
2 COMMISSIONER DECARDY: Maybe I'1ll just ask a
3 clarifying question and then we can come back for
4 comments.
5 So I'm interested in this specific instance in

6 energy use, specifically in the use of electricity wversus
7 the use of natural gas.
8 And so my understanding the program EIR for

9 Connect Menlo relies on local government operations

10 Provision 1.1, which is a 2010 document from the State,
11 and that is what by reference is setting the parameters
12 for what the impacts of the emissions are from these

13 various energy sources.

14 And so my question is: If we're referencing

15 back to 2010, then I do have questions about significant

16 new information about total impacts of greenhouse gas

17 emissions and also the relative impacts of where
18 electricity comes from given all of the new information
19 that we have since that time and how that issue -- so

20 first of all, do I have that right? The reference point

21 is back in 2010.

22 MS. CHAPMAN: I don't have the document in
23 front of me, but if you're citing it, then yes.
24 COMMISSIONER DECARDY: It is local operations

25 protocol 1.1. I don't know if that's been updated since
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2010.

For reasons I don't understand, the last time
that was in place in 2010. That raises a host of
questions for me about energy use and about significant
new information which at some point I would like to ask.

For a clarifying question, that's very helpful
for me right now.

MS. CHAPMAN: Okay, yes. Also if you submit
specific questions in writing, then that would be good,
because I could take that back of our team and we could
address those specifically.

But we will be analyzing greenhouse gases in
the EIR, so we will take a closer look at those aspects.

CHAIRPERSON BARNES: Great. Thank you.

Seeing no other clarifying questions related to
the EIR scope, I will move to -- so thank you.

I will move to open for public comment, and
there's two public -- just the folks here tonight,
there's two opportunities for public comment.

One is this EIR piece of it, and the second
part there is opportunity for public comment as it
relates to the proposal itself.

So the public comment I'm opening now is
specific to the EIR.

And I do have a public comment card from Pamela
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1 Jones, and this is the public comment you would like for
2 the EIR?
3 Perfect. Please come forward. You have three
4 minutes. Please state your name and your address.
5 MS. JONES: Good evening. Pamela Jones,

6 resident of Menlo Park, and thank you for letting me

7 speak, and I want to thank the staff for the new picture
8 boards that they have created.

9 They've updated them, so it was really helpful,

10 which is how I put together this sheet. It's not a

11 hundred percent accurate, and it goes along with how can
12 we do an EIR where we don't know where we are now?

13 And the other piece that I think is important
14 to understand is that there has been an update on the

15 CEQA guide -- guidelines, and that was in May of 2007.

16 So our Connect Menlo missed that. So our --

17 our Connect Menlo i1s operating on very old information.
18 We also have never measured the air quality in
19 the closest residential area, and there's nothing in here
20 that talks about environmental justice, and environmental

21 justice is part of what is going on with FEMA today,

22 surprisingly, but it is a component that's recommended to
23 be included when we're doing environmental impact

24 reports.

25 We also have not had any kind of housing study.
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So we can't compare a housing study now to something that
was never done.

We do not know the impact of all the
development in the M-2 area at this time, and it is
significant.

And it's interesting that East Palo Alto gets
theirs, but we don't know what we're going to get in this
area that's most affected by all of this development in
M-2, and that's the Belle Haven neighborhood.

We know that we have been significantly
gentrified. People are living multiple families to a
house.

We have no information on that because no study
has been done, and nothing has been done to protect the
residents from what has happened with all of the
development.

Moving forward with even trying to put an EIR
together, what we don't have is traffic data. We don't
have traffic mitigation data, which is now getting to
implementing a traffic calming study.

So what I am concerned with is moving forward
when we don't have all the information as to what's
happening now, and I'd like to strongly urge you to have
a joint meeting with the City Council to look over all of

the things that we're trying to do with regards to
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Connect Menlo and what we want to do in the M-2 project.

I am not against construction, and, you know,
moving forward. I'm not against increasing the coffers
of the City of Menlo Park, because I live here, too.

So I want to see as much wealth come into our
community as everybody else does, but I do not want to
see it continue to be on the backs of the people.

And the last thing that I want to say is I had
no idea that they had already opened up the comment
period on this EIR project because I've never seen the
document.

It's never been publicized in a way in which
we, the most affected people, are going to be able to see
that information, and I think all of you know me well
enough is that I really try and keep track of these
things.

I'm really looking for where's that piece of
information so I can go through the document.

So with that, again, thank you. Like I said,
it's not about construction. 1It's about everything as a
whole, and if you notice on here, this -- you can't even
get accurate data on who's in what building, how many
people are there. We don't know that.

I came up with 18,000 people currently working

in the M-2 area and nobody says anything to the contrary.
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1 So I may be close to being right, and I can't even access
2 the information.
3 So I hope that we will stop. I hope that you

4 will meet with the City Council and I hope that, you
5 know, all of you together can come up with something
6 that's really going to be healthy, environmentally

7 healthy and healthy for people in the City of Menlo Park.

8 Thank you.

9 CHATRPERSON BARNES: Thank you.
10 That is the only card that I have for public
11 comment. If anyone like to offer public comment, please
12 fill out a card and come forward.
13 Seeing no one coming forward and having no
14 other comment cards, I will close public comment for the
15 EIR portion of the scoping session.
16 I will move into Commissioner comments as it

17 relates to the EIR scope, and I will close the public
18 hearing on the EIR.

19 Commissioner Strehl.

20 COMMISSIONER STREHL: I have a clarifying
21 question for staff.

22 CHATRPERSON BARNES: Please.

23 COMMISSIONER STREHL: Or is that something
24 that was prepared by Miss Jones?

25 MR. SMITH: It was prepared by Miss Jones, not
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staff.

COMMISSIONER STREHL: Is that something that
the staff can set and clarify so we have a better
understanding of what's going on in District 17?

MR. PERATA: Sure. So we are currently
working on a cable that shows our pending projects as a
whole in District 1 and clarifying information in this
right now, the document that you have, accordingly, but
we can clarify as we go forward.

COMMISSIONER STREHL: Will you list the number
of employees that are existing and the number of
employees that are anticipated? There's the pending and
then there's the occupied at this point.

MR. PERATA: Yeah. So estimates may be
available. Employment fluctuates. It's often difficult
to identify existing employment as being accurate by
building by building.

We currently do have estimates, and I believe
it's part of Connect Menlo and projected employment, and
it's a snapshot in time because it fluctuates.

It is difficult to clarify. I have access to
that information. It is coming specific, not necessarily
reported, to the City of Menlo Park.

COMMISSIONER STREHL: Thank you.

So we can clarify that information. It would
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be useful as we move forward through this process to
understand what's going in this part of Menlo Park.

CHAIRPERSON BARNES: Commissioner Decardy.

COMMISSIONER DECARDY: I'll defer to either of
you if you want to go first. Otherwise, I have a whole
list of questions.

CHAIRPERSON BARNES: I'm sorry. I did not see
your light on.

COMMISSIONER DORAN: I would like to echo
Commissioner Strehl's concern about employment there and,
you know, provide my viewpoint that even, you know,
estimates are imprecise and uncertainty. See whatever
you can get on that.

CHAIRPERSON BARNES: Commissioner Decardy.

COMMISSIONER DECARDY: Thank you.

So I will go actually to the comment part and
give some of my clarifying questions. I do want to ask
questions about how this project is going forward and
will consider strongly those to make sure that.

Whether it's in table 1 or in table 2, it does
not diminish the opportunity for residents to be able to
raise questions in this project, whether mitigation is
going to be acceptable or not acceptable.

If you're asking for a waiver, almost by

definition, it should be meaningful. So that's one.
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1 Building on the questions that I had about the
2 energy use, and this builds on my question, I guess I do

3 have a clarifying question about the alternatives, and
4 the way that they are being presented right now says that
5 you will develop project alternatives that will quote

6 minimize the effects of potentially significant

7 environmental impacts, can I ask how those are being

8 determined and at what levels those are being determined
9 and when those would come forward?
10 MS. CHAPMAN: So those will come forward in

11 the EIR. So we will do analysis of the topics that were

12 listed, for example, noise, transportation, greenhouse
13 gases, and if impacts are deemed to be significant and
14 unavoidable and cannot be mitigated to a less than

15 significant impact with mitigation measures, then we

16 consider alternatives to reduce those -- those

17 significant unavoidable impacts.

18 For example, in transportation oftentimes,

19 there are significant unavoidable transportation impacts
20 for increase in traffic, and so one of the ways that --
21 this is just an example, but not necessarily used for

22 this project, but one of the ways in the past that we
23 have reduced those impacts is to reduce the size of the
24 project.

25 So there is an analysis done by our
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transportation consultant to determine how much would
be -- how much would need to be reduced in order to
reduce the traffic impacts to less than significant.

So then we do an alternative analysis based on
the reduced project as opposed to what we see now.

COMMISSIONER DECARDY: Okay. Thank you.
That's helpful.

So to finish up, for the alternatives on the
greenhouse gases, it seems to me that an alternative is
actually all electric and not using natural gas at all in
the building project would make sense for consideration.
And daylighting, obviously.

So however that would be taken into
consideration, and given the extent of what we understand
the impact of natural gas relative to the various energy
options that are available here in San Mateo County.

Then on the parking question, I get the point
about mitigating the impact and unavoidable, but there is
I think another way to do that, which is to scope the
project with actually -- I get a little lost as to whether
you're using LOS or VMT on the measuring this, but it
seems to me that to have at least one of the alternatives
look at what would it need to look at where there will be
no net gain in VMT or no net gain in parking for that

project and what pressures would that
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put on the transportation land management program.

We get at the same issue, and it raises the
question that's implied about employment, which is
concern about increase in -- in traffic coming into the
region.

So one way to look at this is to essentially
say how do you figure out what that net is with coming
traffic coming in, those 800 plus parking spaces are
right now and what it would look like at the increase.

I really appreciate the work that's been done
to reduce the scope of the parking garage. I recognize
that the scope has been reduced by some dimension, which
means there has to be some cost/benefit analysis at play.

It seems to me there should be some alternative
to look at net gain and those should be in the mix.

And I would point out that -- Miss Jones'
comments. I think some of her comments are in what I
believe you look at as cumulative impact, how you design
it over time, and to the negative environmental impact in
the community and air pollution, there is a -- in
addition to air pollution in sort of the broader
community, air pollution problems are highly localized
and we've got the freeway that is right there.

So it's interesting to me that there's a

conversation with school and outdoor recreation areas,

Emerick and Finch, Certified Shorthand Reporters
Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings



800-331-9029 emerickfinch@emerickfinch.com

Page 39
1 which are in a park which is in close proximity to the
2 freeway without taking a look at what the air pollution
3 is there and locally healthy for students to be
4 exercising.
5 Similar questions about Paseo which goes right

6 up against the freeway. Of course right across from

7 Dumbarton rail corridor is Kelly Park, which is a whole
8 other question.
9 Nobody's ever looked at localized air

10 pollution. It does seem to me that if there's actually
11 air pollution issues in association with park, the
12 community might want to know about that. So that would

13 be another.

14 So those would be my pieces of comment into the
15 EIR for consideration, take a look at that in particular
16 and also the redevelopment alternatives going forward.

17 MS. CHAPMAN: Thank you.

18 CHAIRPERSON: This is Commissioner comments on

19 the EIR scope. Are there any other additional

20 Commissioner comments?
21 Seeing no other Commissioner comments, I will
22 close this portion of the public hearing specifically as

23 it relates to the EIR Scoping Session.
24 Thomas -- excuse me. Kyle or Tom, anything you

25 want to add at this point before I close?
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1 MR. SMITH: No. I think that's sufficient
2 information for us to work from.
3 CHAIRPERSON BARNES: Fantastic. Okay. So
4 that's the close of the EIR Scoping Session, and then
5 from here, we will progress to the Project Proposal Study
6 Session which transitions specifically about the project
7 itself.
8 (The record closed at 8:25 PM).
9 ---00o---
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
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1 COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO )
2
I, the undersigned, hereby certify that the
’ discussion in the foregoing meeting was taken at the
’ time and place therein stated; that the foregoing is a
’ full, true and complete record of said matter.
: I further certify that I am not of counsel or
! attorney for either or any of the parties in the
’ foregoing meeting and caption named, or in any way
’ interested in the outcome of the cause named in said
10
action.
11
12
13 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have
14 hereunto set my hand this
15 day of ’
16 2019.
17
18 MARK I. BRICKMAN CSR 5527
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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MEMORANDUM

To: Mayor and Members of the Menlo Park City Council and Boards and
Commissions

CC: Starla Jerome-Robinson, City Manager
Nick Pegueros, Assistant City Manager
Justin Murphy, Deputy City Manager
Mark Muenzer, Director Community Development

From: William McClure, City Attorney
Cara Silver, Assistant City Attorney
Date: May 13, 2019
Re: New Real Property Conflict of Interest Regulation

The Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) recently updated the real property
conflict of interest regulation. The new regulation went into effect on March 22, 2019
and applies to all public officials involved in the decision making process. The changes
primarily affect ownership of real property interests and establish different criteria
depending on whether the official’'s parcel (“Official’s Parcel”) is located within 500 feet,
500-1000 feet or 1000 feet or more of the property involved in the government decision.

This particular regulation has undergone several different changes in the past few
years. Prior to 2015, Regulation 18702.2 contained a bright-line rule which presumed if
the Official's Parcel was more than 500 feet from the property subject of the decision,
the impact was not material unless there were specific circumstances indicating an
effect on the property. In 2015, however, the FPPC eliminated the bright-line rule in
favor of a more comprehensive analysis of all potential effects on real property interests.
Under this approach, the official was required to conduct a comprehensive examination
of all potential effects on the Official’'s Parcel, even when the parcel was a considerable
distance from the property subject of the decision. Many criticized this approach as
being overly complicated and subjective. The current amendments to Regulation
18702.2 restore the bright-line rule by allowing an official to participate in a decision if
the Official's Parcel is a sufficient distance from the property subject to the decision.
Most significantly, if the Official's Parcel is more than 1,000 feet from the property
subject of the decision, the official would be allowed to participate in the decision unless
there is clear and convincing evidence the decision will have a measurable impact on
the Official’'s Parcel.

This memo summarizes the new regulation which is also attached for reference.



Background
Under the Political Reform Act, public officials may not make, participate in making, or

attempt to use their official positions to influence a governmental decision in which they
know or have reason to know that they have a disqualifying interest. A public official has
a disqualifying interest if the governmental decision at issue will have a reasonably
foreseeable, material effect on the official’s financial interests. (Government Code
87103; FPPC Regulation 18700(a).) To determine whether a financial interest is
“material” depends on the type of financial interest involved. Recently, the FPPC
amended the standard for determining whether a decision will have a material effect on
a public official's interest in real property.

Interests in real property are divided into ownership and leasehold interests. The most
significant change amends the materiality standard for decisions that affect
ownership interests in real property.

Summary of New Ownership Standard

The new regulation divides ownership interests into three separate categories: (1)
governmental decisions involving property within 500 feet of the Official’'s Parcel; (2)
decisions involving property within 500 to 1,000 feet of the Official’s Parcel and (3)
decisions involving property more than 1,000 feet from the Official’'s Parcel.

For decisions involving property within 500 feet of the Official’'s Parcel, there is now a

presumption that the decision will have a material impact on the official’s interest. This
presumption can be rebutted by “clear and convincing evidence” that the decision will

not have any measurable impact on the Official’s Parcel.*

For decisions involving property located between 500 and 1,000 feet from the Official’s
Parcel, whether the decision creates a conflict now depends on a number of factors.
Under the revised regulation, a decision will have a material impact on the Official’s
Parcel if it would change the parcel’s development potential, income-producing
potential, highest and best use, market value, or, if it would change the parcel's
“character by substantially altering traffic levels, intensity of use, parking, view, privacy,
noise levels, or air quality.” (FPPC Regulation 18702.2 (a).)

Finally, there is now a presumption that a decision involving property 1,000 feet or
more from the Official’s Parcel will not have a material impact on the official’s interest.
Like the first category, this presumption can be rebutted with clear and convincing

1 The old regulation divided ownership interests into two categories. If the Official’s
Parcel was located within 500 feet of the property involved in the decision, the official
could not participate in the decision unless they received a clearance letter from the
FPPC. If the Official's Parcel was located more than 500 feet, the official was required
to apply six criteria to determine whether the real property interest was material enough
to warrant recusal. As some of the criteria were subjective, oftentimes the old regulation
was difficult for officials to implement without legal guidance.



evidence that the decision would in fact have a substantial impact on the Official’s
Parcel.

Other materiality factors governing ownership interests
The new regulation does not impact the other materiality factors relating to real property
ownership interests. Thus, a local official would still meet the materiality standard if the
decision directly involves property owned by the official in the following ways:
¢ Involves adoption or amendment of a development plan applicable to the parcel,
e Affects the parcel’'s zoning (other than a zoning decision applicable to all
properties designated in that category);
e Imposes, repeals or modifies taxes, fees or assessments applicable to the
parcel;
e Authorizes the sale, purchase, or lease of the parcel
e Involves the issuance, denial or revocation of a license, permit or other land use
entitlement authorizing a specific use of or improvement to the parcel; or
e Involves construction of, or improvements to, streets, utilities or similar facilities
and the parcel will receive new or improved services that provide a benefit or
detriment disproportionate to other properties receiving the services
(FPPC Regulation 18702.2 (a).)

Leasehold Standard
Leasehold interests in real property are analyzed differently than ownership interests.
As a threshold matter, month-to-month leaseholds (or shorter) are not considered real
property interests for purposes of the Political Reform Act.? (FPPC Regulation 18233.)
For leasehold interests, the regulation does not contain a buffer rule. Instead, officials
who lease property must apply several criteria to determine whether their particular
leasehold interest is material relative to the government decision. The leasehold interest
will be deemed material if any of the following criteria apply:

1. Changes the termination date of lease;

2. Increases or decreases the potential rental value of the property

3. Changes the official’'s actual or legally allowable use of the property

4. Impacts the officials’ use and enjoyment of the property.
(FPPC Regulation 18702.2 (c).)

Exceptions to Recusal
Like the old regulation, the new regulation specifies that an official’s financial interest is
not material (allowing the official to participate) under the following circumstances:
e The decision solely concerns repairs, replacements or maintenance of existing
streets, water, sewer storm drainage or similar facilities;

2 An official who has a month-to-month tenancy may still be precluded from participating
in a decision if the official or the official’s immediate family members (i.e. spouse,
domestic partner or dependent children) would receive a measurable gain or loss to
their personal finances. (FPPC Regulation 18702.5.)



e The decision solely concerns the adoption or amendment of a general plan and
the decision only relates to policy and further action is needed to implement such
policy;

e The decision does not concern an identifiable parcel or development project; or

e The decision does not concern the agency’s prior, concurrent, or subsequent
action on a permit, license, zoning action or land use ordinance or specific plan.

Public Generally Exception

In addition, officials who may have a conflict under either the ownership or leasehold
rules, may be able to participate in the decision under the “public generally” exception.
Under this exception, disqualification will not be required if the effect on the public
official’s financial interest is indistinguishable from the decision’s effect on the financial
interests of the public generally. (FPPC Regulation 18703.) In order to use this
exception, the official must be able to demonstrate two core elements. First, the
governmental decision must affect a “significant segment” of the public in the jurisdiction
of the public agency.? Second, the governmental decision’s effect on the official’s
financial interest must not be unique as compared to the effect on the significant
segment.

Implementation

To implement the new regulation, staff would create maps indicating both a 500 foot
and a 1,000 foot radius around each parcel owned by a public official to help them
identify when a public official might have a disqualifying conflict of interest.

As always, our office is available to discuss particular issues. The FPPC advice line is
also available as a resource at 800-ASK-FPPC.

3 A significant segment of the public is “at least 25 percent of” any of the following:

e All businesses or non-profit entities within the official’s jurisdiction;

e All real property, commercial real property, or residential real property within the
official’s jurisdiction; or

e All individuals within the official’s jurisdiction. (Regulation 18703(b)).
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Amend 2 Cal. Code Regs., Section 18702.2 to read:

§18702.2. Materiality Standard: Financial Interest in Real Property.

() Exeept-asprovided-in-subdivision{e)-below.-the The reasonably foreseeable financial
effect of a governmental decision {Hsted-below--(a} (1) -through-(a{12)) on a parcel of real

property in which an official has afinancial interest, other than aleasehold interest, is material
whenever the governmental decision:

(2) Involves the adoption of or amendment to a development plan or criteria applying to

the parcel istocated-within-thepropesed

(2) Determines the parcel's zoning or rezoning, {other than a zoning decision applicable
to all properties designated in that categoryy);; annexation or de-annexation-er; inclusion in or

exclusion from any city, county, district, or ether local government subdivision; or other

boundaries, other than elective district boundaries as-determined-by-the-Califernia-Citizen's

(3) Would impose, repeal, or modify any taxes, fees, or assessments that apply to the

parcel;

(4) Authorizes the sale, purchase, or lease of the parcel;

(5) Involves the issuance, denia or revocation of alicense, permit or other land use
entitlement authorizing a specific use of or improvement to the parcel or any variance that

changes the permitted use of, or restrictions placed on, that-real the property-—Foerpurpoeses-of-this

01/17/2019 1 18702.2 Amend
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(6) Involves construction of, or improvements to, streets, water, sewer, storm drainage or
similar facilities, and the parcel H-whieh-the-official-has-antnterest will receive new or improved

services that provide a benefit or detriment disproportionate to other properties receiving the

(7) Involves property located 500 feet or less from the property line of the parcel unless

thereis clear and convincing evidence that the decision will not have any measurabl e impact on

the official’s property; or

(8) Involves property located more than 500 feet but |ess than 1,000 feet from the

property line of the parcel, and the decision would change the parcel’s:

A (A) Wedld-change the-development Development potential of-thepareel-ofreal
property,

(8} (B) Weuld-changethetneome Income producing potential of-the-pareel-ofreat

9} (C) Weuld-change the-highest Highest and best use of-the-parcel-of real-property i
hich the official . oL :

01/17/2019 2 18702.2 Amend
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106} (D) Weuld-change the-character Character of-the-pareel-of real-property by
substantially atering traffic levels, e intensity of use, treluding parking, ef-preperty-surreunding
the-official'sreal-property-pareel-the view, privacy, noise levels, or air quality;+hetuding-oders;

(b) Thefinancial effect of a governmental decision on aparcel of real property in which

an official has afinancial interest involving property 1,000 feet or more from the property line of

the official’s property is presumed not to be material. This presumption may be rebutted with

clear and convincing evidence the governmental decision would have a substantial effect on the

official’s property.

(b} (c) Leasehold Interests. Exeept-asprovided-in-subdivision{ec)-below-the The

reasonably foreseeable financial effects of a governmental decision on any real property in which

01/17/2019 3 18702.2 Amend
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agovernmental official has aleasehold interest as the lessee of the property is material only if

the whenever governmental decision will:
(1) Change the termination date of the lease;

(2) Increase or decrease the potential rental value of the property;

4} (3) Change the official's actual or legally allowable use of the real property; or

£5) (4) Impact the official's use and enjoyment of the real property.

e} (d) Exceptions. Thefinancia effect of a governmental decision on a parcel of real

property in which an official has afinancial interest is not material if: Exeeptions:

(1) The decision solely concerns repairs, replacement or maintenance of existing streets,
water, sewer, storm drainage or similar facilities.

(2) The decision solely concerns the adoption or amendment of a general plan and all of
the following apply:

(A) The decision only identifies planning objectives or is otherwise exclusively one of
policy. A decision will not qualify under this subdivision if the decision isinitiated by the public
official, by aperson that is afinancial interest to the public official, or by a person representing
either the public official or afinancial interest to the public official.

(B) The decision requires afurther decision or decisions by the public official's agency
before implementing the planning or policy objectives, such as permitting, licensing, rezoning, or
the approval of or change to a zoning variance, land use ordinance, or specific plan or its

equivalent.

01/17/2019 4 18702.2 Amend
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(C) The decision does not concern an identifiable parcel or parcels or devel opment
project. A decision does not “concern an identifiable parcel or parcels” solely because, in the
proceeding before the agency in which the decision is made, the parcel or parcels are merely
included in an area depicted on amap or diagram offered in connection with the decision,
provided that the map or diagram depicts all parcels located within the agency's jurisdiction and
economic interests of the official are not singled out.

(D) The decision does not concern the agency's prior, concurrent, or subsequent approval
of, or change to, a permit, license, zoning designation, zoning variance, land use ordinance, or
specific plan or its equivalent.

&) (e) Definitions. The definitions below apply to this regulation:

(1) A decision “solely concerns the adoption or amendment of a general plan” when the
decision, in the manner described in Sections 65301 and 65301.5, grants approval of, substitutes
for, or modifies any component of, a general plan, including elements, a statement of
development policies, maps, diagrams, and texts, or any other component setting forth
objectives, principles, standards, and plan proposals, as described in Sections 65302 and 65303.

(2) “General plan” means “general plan” as used in Sections 65300, et seq.

(3) “Specific plan” or its equivalent means a plan adopted by the jurisdiction to meet the
purposes described in Sections 65450, et seq.

(4) Real property in which an official has afinancia interest does not include any
common area as part of the official's ownership interest in acommon interest development as

defined in the Davis-Stirling Common Interest Development Act (Civil Code Sections 4000

et seq.)

01/17/2019 5 18702.2 Amend



1 Note: Authority cited: Section 83112, Government Code. Reference: Sections 87100, 87102.5,

2 87102.6, 87102.8 and 87103, Government Code.
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Community Development

STAFF REPORT

Planning Commission

Meeting Date: 6/24/2019
ATy OF Staff Report Number: 19-046-PC
MENLO PARK
Choose an item. Architectural Control, Variance, Sign Review and

Below Market Rate (BMR) Agreement/Sagar
Patel/1704 ElI Camino Real

Recommendation

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve a request for architectural control to demolish an
existing hotel and construct a new 70-room hotel consisting of three stories with below grade parking in the
SP-ECR/D (El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan) zoning district. The project would incorporate an
eight-foot tall fence along the majority of the site perimeter. The project includes a variance request to
permit a reduced floor-to-floor height on the first floor. In addition, the applicant is requesting sign review,
including review of a shared monument sign located on 1706 El Camino Real, and approval of a Below
Market Rate (BMR) In-Lieu Fee Agreement. The proposal also includes a request for a Public Benefit
Bonus, with the benefit consisting of Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) revenue. As part of the proposed
project, five heritage trees are proposed for removal and 20 heritage tree replacements would be planted, in
addition to six replacement trees that have already been planted, to provide a two-to-one replacement ratio
for the five heritage trees proposed for removal and the eight heritage trees previously removed. The
recommended actions are included as Attachment A.

Policy Issues

The proposed project requires the Planning Commission to consider the merits of the project, including
project consistency with the EI Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan and the provisions for the Public
Benefit Bonus requirements set forth in the Specific Plan. Each architectural control permit, variance, sign
review, Public Benefit Bonus request, and BMR housing agreement is considered individually. The Planning
Commission should consider whether the required findings can be made for the proposal.

At its June 11, 2019 meeting, the City Council discussed the possibility of directing the City Attorney to
prepare an ordinance putting a moratorium on commercial development city-wide and all residential
developments over 100 units in size in the Bayfront Area. The Council decided to not direct the City
Attorney to prepare an ordinance placing a moratorium on development in the City. Instead, the City Council
determined there is a need to review the ConnectMenlo General Plan and Zoning Ordinance Update and
the Downtown Specific Plan to assess whether the documents reflect current community values, conditions
and needs. While the City Council and its subcommittees review the City’s land use planning documents to
outline potential modifications, which may include but are not limited to, the allowed land uses, densities
and intensities, and overall development caps, the City is obligated to continue to process development
applications under the current adopted Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Specific Plan. If as a result of
the subcommittee work the City Council adopts changes to the City’s land use planning documents while
this project is still in the pipeline, the proposed project could be required to make modifications to comply
with those changes.
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Background

Site location

The subject property is located at 1704 ElI Camino Real, between Buckthorn Way and Stone Pine Lane, in
the SP-ECR/D (EI Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan) zoning district. The property is primarily accessed
via shared access easements over two separate parcels (1702 and 1706 El Camino Real), although a
panhandle-like extension to Buckthorn Way also provides secondary service access. Using EI Camino Real
in a north to south orientation, adjacent parcels generally to the north and west of the subject site are also in
the SP-ECR/D zoning district, and are developed with residential, office and personal service uses. The
adjacent properties generally to the east and south of the subject site are zoned R-3 (Apartment) and
developed with residential uses. The subject site is currently developed with the Red Cottage Inn, a 28-
room hotel. A location map is included as Attachment B.

Analysis

Previous Planning Commission review

On March 12, 2018, the Planning Commission held a study session on a proposal to demolish the existing

hotel and construct a new 70-room, three-story hotel and an underground parking level. The Planning

Commission reviewed a presentation from the applicant, asked questions of the applicant and staff,

considered public comment, and made comments to inform future review of the project. Key direction

included:

e Commissioners provided positive direction that the proposed hotel’s inherent benefit of generating
Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) revenue for the City on an on-going basis was sufficient as a public
benefit in exchange for allowing the floor area ratio (FAR) to be at the Public Benefit level.

e Commissioners noted appreciation for the applicant’s work with neighboring property owners to move the
hotel farther from the east property line and to change the architectural style from the originally-submitted
modern farmhouse style to a Spanish Eclectic style preferred by neighbors.

o Commissioners were supportive of the proposed variance to reduce first floor height from the 15 feet that
the Specific Plan requires for commercial projects, to 13 feet, in order to allow the structure to be less
imposing and provide greater privacy to the surrounding residential properties.

e Commissioners provided direction that certain Specific Plan requirements including setbacks and
modulations, normally required along the front elevation, would not apply in this case as the west
elevation of the parcel is located over 130 feet from the EI Camino Real right-of-way.

e Commissioners were supportive of staff suggested design revisions to increase the authenticity of the
proposed Spanish Eclectic style.

The staff report and minutes for the March 12, 2018 study session are included as hyperlink Attachments C
and D, respectively.

On October 8, 2018, the Planning Commission held a study session on a revised proposal to demolish the
existing 28-room hotel and construct a new 68-room, three-story hotel with guest rooms located on the
second and third floors, and parking located on the first floor. The applicant stated that increasing
construction costs made the previously proposed underground parking garage financially infeasible. The
building was proposed with a rectangular footprint with the second and third floor guest rooms arranged in a
“U” shape around a north-facing spa deck and patio on the second floor. The applicant developed an
alternative proposal to address concerns of neighboring property owners to the east shorty before the study
session. While the main plan set showed a rear setback along the eastern property line of approximately 24
feet, five inches, the alternative proposal included a site layout where the proposed hotel would be shifted
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west, resulting in a rear setback of slightly over 26 feet, seven inches on the first floor and slightly over 32
feet, seven inches on the second and third floors. The alternate proposal also re-orientated two, third story,
formerly east-facing rooms towards the south, resulting in a larger roof deck, as well as a slightly lower
building height in the southeast corner due to the elimination of a previously proposed mansard feature.
Several members of the public spoke, many with concerns about the at-grade parking and the proximity of
the proposed hotel to nearby residences.

The Planning Commission reviewed a presentation from the applicant, asked questions of the applicant and
staff, considered public comment, and made comments to inform future review of the project. Key direction
included:

e Commissioners indicated the alternate proposal should be the starting point for the applicant to work with
the neighbors.

e The applicant agreed to make multiple bids for the construction of an underground garage available to
the Planning Commission and interested neighbors.

o Commissioners indicated the applicant has made several compromises and the neighboring property
owners should also make compromises so an agreement can be reached.

e Commissioners commented that the residences on Buckthorn Way appeared to be most impacted by the
current and alternate designs.

e Commissioners indicated most of the design comments from the March study session have been
incorporated, improving the overall design.

The staff report and minutes for the October 8, 2018 study session are included as hyperlink Attachments E
and F, respectively.

Project description

Since the October 8, 2018 study session the applicant has revised the project to a layout similar to the
design reviewed at the March 12, 2018 study session, again including an underground parking garage and
increased setbacks. The rear setback would be increased from the approximately 26 feet shown in the
alternate plans presented at the October 8, 2018 study session, to 39 feet, five inches. The third floor rooms
along the eastern property line would again be oriented away from the eastern property line and the design
would include a slightly lower building height in the southeast corner compared to the March 2018 proposal.
Additionally, the current proposal incorporates design refinements to the March 2018 proposal, including the
reduction of the height of the entry tower to adhere to Specific Plan regulations and the elimination of a
proposed porte-cochere, which did not combine well with the entry tower. In addition, the following design
modifications were made, which were incorporated into both the design presented at the October 8, 2018
study session as well as the current design:

e The number of decorative railings at second floor windows have been reduced but ledges have been
added under the remaining two railings to make them look more authentic.

e The 8:12 roof pitches have been revised to 4:12 to be more reflective of the architectural style and to
adhere to height limits.

e The white stucco headers above the windows have now been removed, and recessed powder coated
aluminum windows are now proposed.

e The stone wainscot material (tiles to simulate honed limestone) that did not match the architectural style
have been removed and replaced with Terra cotta color tile along the base of the structure.

¢ In many locations where the upper floor projects out over lower floors, corbels have been added to
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provide stylistically typical wall transitions.

The current proposal includes 70 hotel rooms in a 3-story hotel with an underground parking level,
consistent with previous versions of the project proposal. The project would have guest rooms on all three
levels, and the building entry and guest services, lobby, lounge, and dining would be located on the first
floor at the west/El Camino Real-facing side of the building. The building would have an L-shape footprint
with a north-facing courtyard with a pool on the ground level. The rear portion of the building would step
down to two stories facing the rear lot line, except for the stair tower at the northeast building corner, which
would be a narrow three-story form.

The proposed site layout is designed with El Camino Real as the primary access, with a driveway leading to
the hotel’s underground parking garage. A service and Fire District access driveway would take access from
Buckthorn Way at the rear of the site. The proposal requires architectural control review by the Planning
Commission, including consideration of a public benefit bonus for an increased Floor Area Ratio (FAR). The
applicant is also requesting a variance to reduce the first floor height from the 15 feet that the Specific Plan
requires for commercial projects, to 13 feet, in order to allow the structure to be less imposing and provide
greater privacy to the surrounding residential properties. As part of the proposed project, five heritage trees
are proposed for removal and 20 heritage tree replacements would be planted, in addition to six
replacement trees that have already been planted, to provide a two-to-one replacement ratio for the five
heritage trees proposed for removal and the eight heritage trees previously removed.

The proposed development would be developed at the Public Benefit Bonus level FAR, and would exceed
the Base level density/intensity standards of 0.75 FAR in the ECR NE-L (El Camino Real North-East — Low
Density) sub-district. The October 2018 proposal had a slightly lower FAR than the current proposal as it
included only 68 hotel rooms to accommodate parking on the first floor. The table below provides additional
information.

Table 1: FAR Comparison

Maximum Base Maximum Bonus  October 2018 Currently
FAR Level FAR Proposed FAR Proposed FAR

0.75 11 1.05 1.1

The proposed building would adhere to the ECR NE-L sub-district height maximums, which have an overall
limit of 38 feet, and a facade height of 30 feet for all fagades, except interior side facades, as measured at
the minimum setback.

In response to neighbor’s concerns, the applicant is proposing to add an 8-foot tall, solid, wood, fence
around most of the parcel, as shown on Sheet A2 (site plan). A portion of the existing fence along the west
property line, facing El Camino Real, would be reduced to 3 feet to met the Transportation Division’s
requirements for visibility. Along the eastern property line, a fence would be added on the southern side,
while an existing 13-foot tall stucco wall and two buildings along the lot line would provide screening along
the northern portion. The proposed fence may be approved as part of the architectural control request.

The applicant’s project description letter is included as Attachment G and the project plans are included as

Attachment H. A detailed review of the project’s compliance with all Specific Plan standards and guidelines
is included in the project’s compliance worksheet (Attachment I).
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Design and materials

The applicant initially submitted a proposal with a modern farmhouse style but revised the design after
receiving input from neighboring property owners prior to the first study session. The currently proposed
structure’s architectural character would be Spanish Eclectic. Forms, rooflines, details, and materials would
be reminiscent of early twentieth century California’s Spanish Revival architecture. The potentially boxy
hotel volume has been mitigated by the use of building segments that establish revival style forms and
proportions. The roof form variations—hip, gable, and shed—would play off each other well and result in a
balanced composition with strong focal points.

The strongest architectural feature would be the corner tower, which is shaped with chamfered corners,
radius shaped transitions from the upper third of the tower to the lower two-thirds, and a modified octagon
roof. The roof overhang features simulated wood corbels, while wall trim is used to manage the form’s
proportions. Another strong design feature would be the main portion of the west fagade which is set under
the gable roof and proportioned by projecting the fagade’s upper two floors out from the first floor supported
by corbels. The roof corbels also work well with this fagcade by complementing the regularly spaced window
openings. Additionally, the lower shed form at the left-front corner of the building and the third-floor hip roof
at the third floor at the left side provide scale and form articulation from both the El Camino Real view and
from buildings along Buckthorn Way. In this way both building corners at the front of the building would have
form articulation that recognizes the building as a three-dimensional form instead of just a “designed” front
facade with utility side facades. Along the side and rear wall planes, projecting forms supported by corbels
and other roofline refinements such as the small hip roofs at stair and elevator towers and the vine covered
upper level trellis lend architectural character and rhythm to these facades.

The main materials would be smooth texture stucco walls and 2-piece mission style clay tile roofing. The
roofing would have a mix of terra cotta, red, and brown colored tiles to provide a more authentic look. Walls
would be white in color except at the rear portion of the building (east facade), where a medium, putty grey
color is proposed to reduce the impact of the structure to residential properties across the rear lot line.

An alternative color scheme for walls is provided within the plan set (Sheet A19) and the separate material
board. The alternative would render the building in one color, instead of the combination of white and grey,
but with an earthy sand to yellow/orange color stucco. The alternate color scheme board shows four
different options. Alternate color #3, Glowing Apricot, would have the deepest/earthiest color of the four with
a hint of orange. Color #2, Golden Lab, is lighter but still with a golden tint to the sand color. Colors #1, Key
West Ivory, and #4, Birmingham Cream, would be more pale and sandy than the other colors, but would still
have a hint of yellow and would calm the building relative to the proposed white color. All four alternative
colors would allow one color for the whole building as well as create less contrast between terra cotta roof
and wall tiles to the stucco walls.

Windows would be aluminum frames with a sepia brown frame color and near clear Solarban glazing.
Windows would have exterior applied rectangular subdivisions to imply period fenestration. Windows would
also be recessed four to six inches from the exterior wall to create a deep wall thickness impression.
Overall, while window fenestration pattern could be fine-tuned to give a more enhanced sense of period
architecture (e.g. adding an extra horizontal muntin to guest room windows), there would be sufficient
patterning to mullions and muntins to maintain the architectural style.

Accent materials include Terra cotta tile along the base of walls, copper roof gutters and leader heads
treated to accelerate the patina, and decorative iron railings.

Stylistic details such as the eave detail with a shaped cornice and half-round gutter, triple stacked ridge tiles
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at hip ridges, recessed windows, large stucco clad corbels, occasional arched openings, decorative dark
brown metal railings, and bronze color period exterior wall sconces suggest Spanish architectural
precedents. The wall, window opening and roof profile details on Sheet A15.1 and the materials and color
exhibit on Sheet A16 give impressions of some of these conditions. Of particular interest is the scale and
shape of horizontal wall moldings/trim, corbels, and window sills.

Overall, the well composed combination of roof forms, strong focal points, use of deep set windows with
dark brown color windows, white stucco with a smooth finish and clay tile roofing with a mix of tile colors
along with the aforementioned accent materials and detailing would be reasonably cohesive in stylizing the
building to meet Spanish Revival precedents, along with providing facade depth with shadow lines and a
pleasing silhouette.

Staff believes the proposed white walls with the rear portion of the building (east fagade) proposed in a
medium, putty grey color, suits the design well. However, the Planning Commission may wish to consider if
the alternative color scheme would soften the building forms or better relate the form and mass of the
building to neighborhood conditions, and if so, which color alternative would be best suited for the
architecture and neighborhood.

Variance

The applicant is requesting a variance to reduce first floor height from the 15 feet that the Specific Plan
requires for commercial projects, to 13 feet, in order to allow the structure to be less imposing and provide
greater privacy to the surrounding residential properties. The Zoning Ordinance provides for variances from
development regulations when it has been found that, because of special circumstances applicable to the
subject property, the standard regulations are found to deprive such property of privileges enjoyed by other
nearby properties within the same zoning district. Any such variance is not to constitute a grant of special
privilege, and must not compromise the public health, safety, and welfare. Five findings need to be made to
approve the variance. Each finding is discussed below.

e That a hardship peculiar to the property and not created by any act of the owner exists. In this context,
personal, family or financial difficulties, loss of prospective profits and neighboring violations are not
hardships justifying a variance. Further, a previous variance can never have set a precedent, for each
case must be considered only on its individual merits;

A hardship peculiar to the property and not created by any act of the current property owner exists. As
noted earlier, the parcel is setback approximately 130 feet from EI Camino Real and including a 15-foot first
floor, floor to ceiling height would not add visual interest along the street but it could impact the privacy of
neighboring properties by raising the height of the proposed hotel.

e That such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial property rights
possessed by other conforming property in the same vicinity and that a variance, if granted, would not
constitute a special privilege of the recipient not enjoyed by his/her neighbors;

The proposed variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial property rights
possessed by other conforming property in the same vicinity, and the variance would not constitute a
special privilege of the recipient not enjoyed by neighbors. In this case, the location of the parcel is unique,
both due to its setback from El Camino Real and its location surrounding residential properties, and the
variance would allow for a commercial development with reduced impacts to the neighboring, residential
properties. While almost all other commercial properties within the Specific Plan are set along a public
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street, leading to an expectation that they provide visual interest to pedestrians, the subject parcel is
setback approximately 130 feet from El Camino Real. In addition, the reduction in first floor, floor-to-ceiling
height would not be perceptible from EI Camino Real.

o That the granting of the variance will not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare,
or will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property.

The granting of the variance would not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare, and
would not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property. The requested variance would
allow additional supply of light and air to adjacent properties by lowering the overall hotel of the proposed
hotel. Except for the requested variance, the proposed hotel would conform to all other requirements of the
ECR NE-L sub-district of the Specific Plan.

e That the conditions upon which the requested variance is based would not be applicable, generally, to
other property within the same zoning classification.

The conditions upon which the requested variance is based would not be applicable, generally, to other
property within the same zoning classification due to the unique location of this property and the layout of
the site as a panhandle lot.

e That the condition upon which the requested variance is based is an unusual factor that was not
anticipated or discussed in detail during any applicable Specific Plan process.

Although the parcel is located within the EI Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan, panhandle types of lots
were not discussed during the Specific Plan process.

Parking and circulation

The proposed development includes 56 parking spaces with the possibility of a valet parking system
accommodating an additional 14 cars, for a total of 70 cars. The Specific Plan specifies a parking rate of
1.25 spaces per guest room for a full-service hotel, although the Transportation Manager may approve a
lower rate for a limited-service hotel. The Transportation Division has indicated the proposed parking rate is
appropriate for the proposal as it is considered a limited-service hotel without a restaurant or a large
conference space, and the proposed parking rate is consistent with the approval of the Hotel Lucent at 727
El Camino Real. (The applicant has indicated the dining space would only be used for breakfast provided to
hotel guests.) The table below provides a comparison between the current proposal and what would be
required of a full-service hotel in the Specific Plan.

City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 tel 650-330-6600 www.menlopark.org



Staff Report #: 16-046-PC
Page 8

Table 2: Comparison of Parking Rates

Proposed and Prop_osed amne Proposed Proposed Rquired Required
: : required . : parking :
required parking . : parking Parking parking
parking ratio ; o spaces for :
spaces for f | rate with ratio with 0 ratio for a
currently or currently valet valet e} TSI 70-room
. proposed . . full- .
proposed limited limited service parking parking service full service
service hotel system system hotel
hotel hotel
56 spaces 0.8 spaces per 70 spaces 1 space per 88 spaces 1.25 spaces
room room per room

Primary access would be through the easement/driveway connection to El Camino Real. Secondary service
access would be along the rear lot line from Buckhorn Way. The Transportation and Engineering Divisions
have indicated the proposed access is acceptable.

Trash and recycling enclosure

The trash and recycling enclosure is proposed to be located at the east property line, which may be
approved as part of the architectural control for the project. Recology has approved of this location, and it
complies with all Engineering Division requriements. The applicant states that the proposed location of the
enclosure was selected to provide adequate fire truck access from Buckthorn Way and to minimize the view
of the enclosure from neighboring properties.

Signhage

A three-story tower form with the “Hampton Inn” sign would be located above the entry and also directly
visible from El Camino Real. The applicant has indicated the existing monument sign on El Camino Real
would be removed and replaced with a monument sign that would be shared with 1706 El Camino Real as it
would be located on their property, adjacent to the access easement. Written permission from the property
owner at 1706 ElI Camino Real was submitted, and sign review from the Planning Commission is required
as the red color in the signs exceeds 25 percent of the total sign area. At the October 8, 2018 study
session, the Planning Commission indicated the west property boundary facing El Camino Real is
considered the frontage for the purposes of calculating the permitted sign area, meaning a 100 square feet
of maximum sign area would be permitted. The two proposed signs total approximately 97.2 square feet of
sign area. The applicant indicates the design of the signs, including the red lettering, was developed
pursuant to brand size, color and location requirements for Hampton Inns. Staff believes the design of the
signs is good quality, including individual lettering, and would be appropriate for the proposed Hampton Inn.

Trees and landscaping
There are currently 21 trees on or near the project site. The applicant’s arborist report (Attachment J)
includes detailed information on these trees.

All 13 trees currently on the project site would be removed, including five heritage trees. Table 3 includes
information on the five heritage trees proposed for removal as well as the eight heritage trees that have
already been removed. Of the previously removed eight heritage trees, six trees were multi-trunk, heritage
Hollywood Junipers (trees #19-24), that were removed along the access drive to Buckthorn Drive, and have
been replaced with six ever green trees along the access drive. These six trees were removed without
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permits and the applicant indicated he did not know they were heritage size since they were multi-trunk
trees. Two heritage trees (trees #11 and #12) have also been removed with heritage tree removal permits
due to poor condition as a result of bark beetle infestation. In total, 20 heritage tree replacements would be
planted through out the property, in addition to the six replacement trees that have already been planted
along the access drive to Buckthorn Way, to provide a two-to-one replacement ratio for the five heritage
trees proposed for removal and the eight heritage trees previously removed.

The heritage tree ordinance provides eight reasons why heritage trees may be removed. For the trees on
the subject parcel, the reasons are poor condition (reason #1), the necessity to remove the tree to construct
proposed improvements (reason #2) and a low long-term value of the species (reason #4), as described in
Table 3.

Table 3: Heritage Trees Proposed for Removal

City Arborist Evaluation and

Species Location Status Reason for Removal

1 Valley Oak Front of hotel ;r:ng;rs]gsal zgc;posed construction (reason

2 Valley Oak Mid-rear half of lot E)rrorrze?rswg\(jal Poor condition (reason #1)
11 Monterey Pine Along rear property line Removed Poor condition (reason #1)
12 Monterey Pine Along rear property line Removed Poor condition (reason #1)
13 Monterey Pine Along rear property line E)rrorpe?ﬁg\(jal Poor condition (reason #1)
14 Monterey Pine Along rear property line E)rror%?ﬁg\%l Poor condition (reason #1)
16 Glossy Pivet Along rear property line E)rr(JPeorﬁg\C:al Low long-term value (reason #4)
19 Hollywood Juniper gﬁiﬁftfo?:ve 0 Removed N/A (Removed without permit)
20 Hollywood Juniper 'g‘ﬁzitsso?:ve to Removed N/A (Removed without permit)
21 Hollywood Juniper gﬁﬁifhsogr:ive to Removed N/A (Removed without permit)
22 Hollywood Juniper éﬁiﬁf;o?;ive to Removed N/A (Removed without permit)
23 Hollywood Juniper Qﬁﬁifﬁo?:ve o Removed N/A (Removed without permit)
24 Hollywood Juniper Qﬁﬁﬁfﬁo?:ve to Removed N/A (Removed without permit)
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New landscape would be provided around the edges of the site and at courtyards, patios, and walkways,
including a new Valley Oak at the front of the property and olive and crape myrtle trees. Wood trellis
structures and vines are also provided near the entry and on the upper floor at the rear of the structure.

To reduce impacts on neighboring properties significant evergreen screening landscape would include a
dense line of six Fern Pine (podocarpus) trees along the rear lot line to screen the property from the
adjacent residential development as well as six Marina Madrone and five Saratoga Laurel cherry trees
along the north side lot line also to screen the building and pool area from the adjacent residential buildings
and other landscape along the side yards and rear driveway.

Below Market Rate (BMR) Housing Agreement

The proposed development would be subject to the City’s BMR requirement. The City may allow such a
BMR requirement to be met in a number of ways, including on-site provision of an affordable dwelling unit,
off-site provision of an affordable dwelling unit, or payment of an in-lieu fee.

The proposed project would have a BMR requirement of 0.77 BMR units or an in-lieu fee payment of
approximately $282,575.29. The proposed project does not include a residential component, although the
zoning designation for the subject site does allow residential uses. According to the applicant, the need to
maximize allowable square footage for hotel uses for a financially viable hotel project on a relatively small
infill site would limit the ability to develop residential units on site as part of the proposed project. In addition,
the applicant indicates the Hampton Inn brand does not usually allow a development to be mixed use
unless the site is in a high-density urban location and the two uses can be effectively separated. Therefore,
the applicant is proposing to satisfy the project's BMR obligations through the payment of in lieu fees. On
November 2, 2016, the Housing Commission unanimously recommended that the Planning Commission
approve the proposed BMR proposal for the payment of in lieu fees, which would be adjusted to the in-lieu
fees and project square footage current at the time of building permit issuance. The draft BMR agreement is
included as Attachment K.

Public Benefit Bonus
The Specific Plan establishes two tiers of development:

e Base: Intended to inherently address community goals, such as: encourage redevelopment of
underutilized parcels, activate train station area and increase transit use, and enhance downtown
vibrancy and retail sales. These standards were established through the iterative Community Workshop
and Commission/Council review process, wherein precedent photographs, photomontages, sections,
and sketches were evaluated for preferences, and simultaneously assessed for basic financial feasibility.

e Public Benefit Bonus: Absolute maximums subject to provision of negotiated public benefit, which can
take the form of a Development Agreement. In particular, a public study session is required prior to a full
application, and has to be informed by appropriate fiscal/leconomic analysis. The list of recommended
public benefits was also expanded with public suggestions, and a process was established to review and
revise the list over time.

The Public Benefit Bonus process, including background on how the structured negotiation process was
selected relative to other procedural options, is described on Specific Plan pages E16-E17. Past Public
Benefit Bonus approvals include the hotel conversion project at 555 Glenwood Avenue, the office project at
1010-1026 Alma Street, the Park James hotel at 1400 El Camino Real, and the mixed-use Station 1300
project with office, residential, and community-serving uses.
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Public benefit proposal

The applicant is proposing a hotel development, a use which has an inherent benefit of generating
Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) revenue for the City on an on-going basis. The Specific Plan lists “Hotel
Facility” as one of several elements that could be considered as public benefits due to its higher tax revenue
generation and potential for enhancing downtown vibrancy, although this list is not binding; each proposal
needs to be reviewed on a case-by-case basis.

Financial analysis

The Specific Plan requires that Public Benefit Bonus study sessions “incorporate appropriate
fiscal/leconomic review (with work overseen by City staff), which should broadly quantify the benefits/costs
of the bonus FAR/density/height and the proposed public benefit.” The intent of this independent analysis is
not to make a definitive determination of the value of the bonus development or the public benefit, or a
recommendation whether the bonus should be granted. Rather, the analysis is intended to provide likely
estimates and other information to inform the Planning Commission’s discussion. The City has
commissioned such an analysis by BAE Urban Economics (BAE), which is included as Attachment L.

For the value of the proposed Bonus project as proposed with 70 hotel rooms and underground parking,
BAE prepared a detailed pro forma which examines typical revenues and costs for the Public Benefit Bonus
proposal (Bonus Project). The applicant has indicated that a hotel development at the Base level is
financially infeasible. BAE indicates their research supports the assumption that the application would
experience significant challenges in achieving financial feasibility for a hotel project at the base level. The
pro forma takes into account factors such as current construction costs, City fees, capitalization rates, and
typical market hotel rates. However, as noted in the document, such factors can change, which may
substantively affect the conclusions of the analysis. The analysis determined that the Bonus Project would
result in an estimated profit of $3.4 million for the applicant, and would generate an estimated $680,500
annually in Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) revenue to the City. Actual TOT revenue would be highly
dependent upon room and occupancy rates. The yearly nature of TOT would mean that the City could
receive the same revenue in five years (and every five years thereafter) that the applicant would receive in
total project profit.

The TOT estimate does not account for the current TOT revenues at this site, partly because actual tax
revenue for individual businesses cannot be reported due to confidentiality requirements and partly due to
the fact that the unigueness and age of the Red Cottage Inn make it difficult to estimate average room and
occupancy rates. However, even if the current 28-room hotel generated TOT revenue on a per-room basis
equal to the proposed Hampton Inn (which is unlikely due to the current building’s age), the net new TOT
revenue would be approximately $390,000, which would still be a significant contribution to the City’s
general fund. In addition, it is not certain that the Red Cottage Inn would stay in operation if the current
proposal is not approved,; if this land use were to be converted to another type of use, the TOT revenue
would drop to zero.

As previously noted, at the March 12, 2018 study session, the Planning Commission provided positive
direction that the proposed hotel's inherent benefit of generating Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) revenue
for the City on an on-going basis was sufficient as a public benefit in exchange for allowing the floor area
ratio (FAR) to be at the Public Benefit level, the Commission did not provide alternate direction to Staff at
the October 8, 2018 study session.

Correspondence

The applicant indicates he held four community meetings between December 2016 and September 2017,
and made a number of changes to the proposal as a result of feedback received at the meetings. These
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changes included reducing the first floor height, relocating guestrooms from the third floor at the rear to the
front of the hotel, and changing the architectural style from modern farmhouse to a Spanish style. After
submittal of that design, staff received correspondence with more positive feedback and appreciation for the
changes made. When the applicant further revised the design to remove the underground parking, staff
received additional correspondence from neighboring property owners. The majority of this correspondence
was from neighbors who no longer supported the proposal, mainly due to concerns about the height,
proximity to residential properties, and the third floor guest rooms facing residences.

All correspondence received after the publication of the October 8, 2018 staff report is included as
Attachment M. This correspondence includes further feedback on the proposal without underground parking
as well as the current proposal with underground parking. Although the correspondence indicates a strong
preference for the proposal with underground parking versus the previous proposal without underground
parking, remaining concerns about the size of the proposed hotel, and privacy and other impacts to
neighboring, residential properties remain. Additionally, neighbors have expressed concerns about the
application of the public benefit bonus level that would allow a higher FAR. The current proposal does not
include any east facing hotel rooms and the applicant has indicated the only access to the third floor
balcony along the east elevation would be for employees performing maintenance. Concerns about
potential impacts from runoff from landscaping and light pollution would be addressed through the
conditions of approval, which require adherence to water efficient landscaping as well as mitigation
measures that prohibit exterior lighting that shines upwards, as well as policies to reduce interior lighting.
The current proposal also includes alternative colors that may address concerns from neighbors.
Additionally, staff received emails from physicians at 1706 EI Camino Real, both before and after the
October 8, 2018 study session, who raised concerns regarding traffic, especially as it relates to
construction. The applicant has submitted preliminary construction phasing plans as part of the proposed
plan set, which will be subject to additional review as the project goes forward.

Conclusion

Staff believes the proposed structure’s Spanish Eclectic architectural style is well designed. The potentially
boxy hotel volume has been mitigated by the use of building segments that establish revival style forms and
proportions. The roof form variations would result in a balanced composition with strong focal points. The
proposed underground parking would have a positive impact on the overall character of the site
development and the proposed eight-foot tall fence along the majority of the site perimeter would increase
privacy. With the exception of the requested variance for the reduced first floor height, the proposal would
adhere to the extensive standards and guidelines established by the Specific Plan, as verified in detail in the
Standards and Guidelines Compliance Worksheet. Additionally, the reduced first floor height would enhance
privacy. Although the red color in the proposed signs exceeds 25 percent, the signs are well designed,
including the use of individual lettering, and would adhere to the Hampton Inn brand signage requirements.
The BMR Agreement, requiring the payment of an in-lieu fee, would address the project’'s BMR obligations.
The proposed Development at the Public Benefit Bonus level is consistent with the feedback provided by
the Planning Commission at the study sessions and would provide the City with additional Transient
Occupancy Tax (TOT) revenue. The heritage tree removals would be replaced at a two-to-one ratio, and
new landscape would be provided around the edges of the site and at courtyards, patios, and walkways,
including a new coast live oak at the front of the property. Staff recommends that the Planning Commission
approve the proposed architectural control, variance, sign review and BMR agreement.

Impact on City Resources

The project sponsor is required to pay Planning, Building and Public Works permit fees, based on the City's
Master Fee Schedule, to fully cover the cost of staff time spent on the review of the project. The project
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sponsor is also required to bear the cost of the associated environmental review.

Environmental Review

The Specific Plan process included detailed review of projected environmental impacts through a program
Environmental Impact Report (EIR), as required by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). In
compliance with CEQA requirements, the Draft EIR was released in April 2011, with a public comment
period that closed in June 2011. The Final EIR, incorporating responses to Draft EIR comments, as well as
text changes to parts of the Draft EIR itself, was released in April 2012, and certified along with the final
Plan approvals in June 2012.

The Specific Plan EIR identifies no impacts or less-than-significant impacts in the following categories:
Aesthetic Resources; Geology and Soils; Hydrology and Water Quality; Land Use Planning and Policies;
Population and Housing; and Public Services and Utilities. The EIR identifies potentially significant
environmental effects that, with mitigation, would be less than significant in the following categories:
Biological Resources; Cultural Resources; Hazards and Hazardous Materials. The EIR identifies potentially
significant environmental effects that will remain significant and unavoidable in the following categories: Air
Quality; Greenhouse Gases and Climate Change; Noise; and Transportation, Circulation and Parking. The
Final EIR actions included adoption of a Statement of Overriding Considerations, which is a specific finding
that the project includes substantial benefits that outweighs its significant, adverse environmental impact.

As specified in the Specific Plan EIR and the CEQA Guidelines, program EIRs provide the initial framework
for review of discrete projects. In particular, projects of the scale of 1704 EI Camino Real are required to be
analyzed with regard to whether they would have impacts not examined in the Program EIR. This
conformance checklist, which analyzes the project in relation to each environmental category in appropriate
detail, is included as Attachment N. As detailed in the conformance checklist, the proposed project would
not result in greater impacts than were identified for the Program EIR. Relevant mitigation measures have
been applied and would be adopted as part of the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP),
which is included as Attachment O. Full compliance with the MMRP would be ensured through condition
7(a). No new impacts have been identified and no new mitigation measures are required for the proposed
project. Mitigations include construction-related best practices regarding air quality and noise, payment of
transportation-impact-related fees (conditions 7(g) and 7(h)) and implementation of a Transportation
Demand Management (TDM) program. The applicant has submitted an initial draft TDM plan, which would
be revised concurrent with the submittal of the building permit. The MMRP also includes two completed
mitigation measures related to cultural resources. Archeological resource evaluations and historical
resources evaluations were performed by qualified professionals and determined that the proposed project
would have no additional impacts. These studies are available for review upon request.

Specific Plan Maximum Allowable Development
Per Section G.3, the Specific Plan establishes the maximum allowable net new development as follows:

Residential uses: 680 units; and
Non-residential uses, including retail, office and hotel: 474,000 square feet.

These totals are intended to reflect likely development throughout the Specific Plan area. As noted in the
Plan, development in excess of these thresholds will require amending the Specific Plan and conducting
additional environmental review.

If the project is approved and implemented, the Specific Plan Maximum Allowable Development would be
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revised to account for the net changes as follows:

Table 4: Specific Plan Totals

Dwelling Commercial

Units Square Footage
Existing 0 10,766.18
Proposed 0 40,004.18
Net Change 0 29,228
% of Maximum Allowable Development 0 6.16%
Available Units & Commercial SF in SP if Project is Approved 191 47,152
Available Units & Commercial SF in SP if all Pending Projects in SP 171 30521
are Approved

Public Notice

Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72
hours prior to the meeting.

Attachments

A. Recommended Actions

B. Location map

C. Hyperlink: Planning Commission staff report, March 12, 2018-
https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/1704-El-Camino-Real

D. Hyperlink: Planning Commission Minutes, March 12, 2018 —
https:/www.menlopark.org/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Minutes

E. Hyperlink: Planning Commission staff report, October 8, 2019 —
https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/1704-El-Camino-Real

F. Hyperlink: Planning Commission Minutes, October 8, 2019 —
https://www.menlopark.org/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Minutes

G. Project Description Letter and Variance Request

H. Project Plans

I. Specific Plan Standards and Guidelines Compliance Worksheet

J. Arborist Report

K. BMR Agreement

L. Analysis of Proposed Public Benefits for 1704 EI Camino Real Project prepared by BAE Urban
Economics, dated February 28, 2018

M. Correspondence

N. EIR Conformance Checklist

O. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP)
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Report prepared by:
Corinna Sandmeier, Senior Planner

Report reviewed by:
Kyle Perata, Principal Planner
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ATTACHMENT A

1704 El Camino Real- Attachment A: Recommended Actions

LOCATION: 1704 El PROJECT NUMBER: APPLICANT: Sagar OWNER:
Camino Real PLN2016-00085 Patel Sagar Patel
PROPOSAL.:

Architectural Control, Variance, Sign Review and Below Market Rate (BMR) In-Lieu Fee
Agreement/Sagar Patel/1704 EI Camino Real:

Request for architectural control approval to demolish an existing hotel and construct a new 70-room
hotel consisting of three stories with below grade parking in the SP-ECR/D (El Camino Real/Downtown
Specific Plan) zoning district. The project includes a variance request to permit reduced floor-to-floor
height on the first floor. In addition, the applicant is requesting sign review, including review of a shared
monument sign located on 1706 EI Camino Real, and approval of a Below Market Rate (BMR) In-Lieu
Fee Agreement. The proposal also includes a request for a Public Benefit Bonus, with the benefit
consisting of Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) revenue. As part of the proposed project, five heritage
trees are proposed for removal and 20 heritage tree replacements would be planted, in addition to six
replacement trees that have already been planted, to provide a 2-1 replacement ratio for the five
heritage trees proposed for removal and the eight heritage trees previously removed.

DECISION ENTITY: Planning DATE: June 24, 2019 ACTION: TBD
Commission

VOTE: TBD (Barnes, DeCardy, Doran, Kennedy, Riggs, Strehl, and Tate)

ACTION:

1. Make findings with regard to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) that the proposal is
within the scope of the project covered by the EI Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Program
EIR, which was certified on June 5, 2012. Specifically, make findings that:

a. A checklist has been prepared detailing that no new effects could occur and no new
mitigation measures would be required (Attachment N).

b. Relevant mitigation measures have been incorporated into the project through the
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (Attachment O), which is approved as part of
this finding.

c. Upon completion of project improvements, the Specific Plan Maximum Allowable
Development will be adjusted by 29,228 square feet of non-residential uses, accounting for
the project's net share of the Plan's overall projected development and associated impacts.

2. Adopt the following findings, as per Section 16.68.020 of the Zoning Ordinance, pertaining to
architectural control approval:

a. The general appearance of the structure is in keeping with the character of the
neighborhood.

b. The development will not be detrimental to the harmonious and orderly growth of the City.

c. The development will not impair the desirability of investment or occupation in the
neighborhood.

d. The development provides adequate parking as required in all applicable City Ordinances
and has made adequate provisions for access to such parking.

e. The development is consistent with the EI Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan, as verified
in detail in the Standards and Guidelines Compliance Worksheet (Attachment | ).

PAGE: 1 0of 6




A2

1704 El Camino Real- Attachment A: Recommended Actions

3. Make the following findings as per Section 16.82.340 of the Zoning Ordinance pertaining to the
granting of the variance:

a.

A hardship peculiar to the property and not created by any act of the current property owner
exists. The parcel is setback approximately 130 feet from El Camino Real and including a
15-foot first floor, floor to ceiling height would not add visual interest along the street but it
would impact neighboring properties by raising the height of the proposed hotel.

The proposed variance is hecessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial
property rights possessed by other conforming property in the same vicinity, and the
variance would not constitute a special privilege of the recipient not enjoyed by neighbors.
In this case, the location of the parcel is unique, both due to its setback from El Camino
Real and its location surrounding residential properties, and the variance allows for a
commercial development with reduced impacts to the neighboring, residential properties.

The granting of the variance will not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, or
welfare, or will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property. Except
for the requested variance, the subdivision will conform to all other requirements of the
Zoning Ordinance. The requested variance would allow additional supply of light and air to
adjacent properties by lowering the overall hotel of the proposed hotel. Except for the
requested variance, the proposed hotel would conform to all other requirements of the ECR
NE-L sub-district of the Specific Plan.

The conditions upon which the requested variance is based would not be applicable,
generally, to other property within the same zoning classification. The conditions upon
which the requested variance is based would not be applicable, generally, to other property
within the same zoning classification due to the unique location of this property.

The condition upon which the requested variance is based is an unusual factor that was not
anticipated or discussed in detail during any applicable Specific Plan process. Although the
parcel is located within the EI Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan, pan handle types of
lots were not discussed during the Specific Plan process.

Make findings that the signs are appropriate and compatible with the business and signage in the

general area and that the use of red in the signs greater than 25 percent of the sign area is
appropriate based on the sign design and location.

Approve the Below Market Rate Housing Agreement (Attachment K) in accordance with the City’s

Below Market Rate Housing Program, subject to final review and approval by the City Attorney.

Approve the Architectural Control, Variance, and Sign Review subject to the following standard

conditions:

a.

Development of the project shall be substantially in conformance with the plans prepared by
RYS Architects, consisting of 50 plan sheets, dated received June 14, 2019 and approved
by the Planning Commission on June 24, 2019, except as modified by the conditions
contained herein, subject to review and approval of the Planning Division.

Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall comply with all requirements of the
Building Division, Engineering Division, and Transportation Division that are directly
applicable to the project.

Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall comply with all Sanitary District, Menlo

Park Fire Protection District, California Water Company and utility companies' regulations
that are directly applicable to the project.
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Prior to building permit issuance, the Applicant shall submit a finalized version of the
Stormwater Control Plan, which shall provide stormwater treatment for the entire project site
pursuant to the latest regulations specified in the San Mateo County C.3 Technical
Guidance Manual, subject to review and approval of the Engineering Division. The
Stormwater Control Plan shall include a written report identifying existing and proposed
project conditions, and all applicable source controls, and mitigation measures (i.e.
bioretention areas, flow through planters, etc.) implemented to meet NPDES compliance.

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Program Best Management Practices (BMPs) for
construction shall be implemented to protect water quality, in accordance with the approved
Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), subject to review and approval of the
Engineering Division. BMP plan sheets are available electronically for inserting into Project
plans.

Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall submit a plan for: 1) construction safety
fences around the periphery of the construction area, 2) dust control, 3) air pollution control,
4) erosion and sedimentation control, and 5) tree protection fencing. The plans shall be
subject to review and approval by the Building, Engineering, and Planning Divisions prior to
issuance of a building permit. The fences and erosion and sedimentation control measures
shall be installed according to the approved plan prior to commencing construction.

Prior to building permit issuance, the Applicant shall submit plans for construction related
parking management, construction staging, material storage and Traffic Control Handling
Plan (TCHP) to be reviewed and approved by the City. The applicant shall secure adequate
parking for any and all construction trades. The plan shall include construction phasing and
anticipated method of traffic handling for each phase.

Prior to building permit issuance, the Applicant shall submit a draft “Stormwater
Treatment Measures Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Agreement” with the City
subject to review and approval by the Engineering Division. The property owner will be
responsible for the operation and maintenance of stormwater treatment measures for the
project. The agreement shall also include operation and maintenance of the stormwater
treatment facility on Garwood Way including curb gutter and retaining walls. The
agreement shall be recorded and documentation shall be provided to the City prior to
final inspection.

Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall submit a Grading and Drainage Plan
for review and approval by the Engineering Division. Post-construction runoff into the
storm drain shall not exceed pre-construction runoff levels. A Hydrology Report will be
required to the satisfaction of the Engineering Division. Slopes for the first 10 feet
perpendicular to the structure must be 5% minimum for pervious surfaces and 2%
minimum for impervious surfaces, including roadways and parking areas, as required by
CBC 8§1804.3. Discharges from the garage ramp and underground parking areas are not
allowed into the storm drain system. Discharge must be treated with an oil/water
separator and must connect to the sanitary sewer system. This will require a permit from
West Bay Sanitary District.

Prior to building permit issuance, the Applicant shall submit engineered Off-Site
Improvement Plans (including specifications & engineers cost estimates), for approval by
the Engineering Division, showing the infrastructure necessary to serve the Project. The
Improvement Plans shall include, but are not limited to, all engineering calculations
necessary to substantiate the design, proposed roadways, drainage improvements, utilities,
traffic control devices, retaining walls, sanitary sewers, and storm drains, pump/lift stations,
street lightings, common area landscaping and other project improvements. All public
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improvements shall be designed and constructed to the satisfaction of the Engineering
Division.

Prior to building permit issuance, the Applicant shall submit joint trench drawings showing
all applicable on-site lateral connections to overhead electric, fiber optic, and
communication lines as undergrounded. The joint trench drawings shall be subject to
review and approval of the Engineering Division.

During the design phase of the construction drawings, all potential utility conflicts shall be
potholed with actual depths and recorded on the improvement plans, submitted for
Engineering Division review and approval.

. Prior to building permit issuance, Applicant shall submit plans to remove and replace any

damaged and significantly worn sections of frontage improvements. The plans shall be
submitted for the review and approval of the Engineering Division.

Prior to building permit issuance, Applicant shall submit plans for: 1) construction safety
fences around the periphery of the construction area, 2) dust control, 3) air pollution control,
4) erosion and sedimentation control, 5) tree protection fencing, and 6) construction vehicle
parking. The plans shall be subject to review and approval by the Building, Engineering,
and Planning Divisions. The fences and erosion and sedimentation control measures shall
be installed according to the approved plan prior to commencing construction.

Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall submit a plan for any new utility
installations or upgrades for review and approval of the Planning, Engineering, and Building
Divisions. All utility equipment that is installed outside of a building and that cannot be
placed underground shall be properly screened by landscaping. The plan shall show exact
locations of all meters, back flow prevention devices, transformers, junction boxes, relay
boxes, and other equipment boxes.

If construction is not complete by the start of the wet season (October 1 through April 30),
the applicant shall implement a winterization program to minimize the potential for erosion
and sedimentation. As appropriate to the site and status of construction, winterization
requirements shall include inspecting/maintaining/cleaning all soil erosion and
sedimentation controls prior to, during, and immediately after each storm event; stabilizing
disturbed soils through temporary or permanent seeding, mulching, matting, tarping or other
physical means; rocking unpaved vehicle access to limit dispersion of mulch onto public
right-of-way; and covering/tarping stored construction materials, fuels, and other chemicals.
Plans to include proposed measures to prevent erosion and polluted runoff from all site
conditions shall be submitted for review and approval of the Engineering Division prior to
beginning construction.

The Applicant shall retain a civil engineer to prepare "as-built" or "record" drawings of
public improvements, and the drawings shall be submitted in AutoCAD and Adobe PDF
formats to the Engineering Division, prior to Final Occupancy.

Street trees and heritage trees in the vicinity of the construction project shall be protected
pursuant to the Heritage Tree Ordinance and the recommendations of the arborist report
prepared by Arbor Resources, dated revised March 13, 2019.

Prior to building permit issuance, Applicant shall submit a heritage street tree preservation
plan, detailing the location of and methods for all tree protection measures.

Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall pay all Public Works fees. Refer to City
of Menlo Park Master Fee Schedule.
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Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant
shall submit a lighting plan, providing the location, architectural details and specifications for
all exterior lighting subject to review and approval by the Planning Division.

Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, a design-level
geotechnical investigation report shall be submitted to the Building Division for review and
confirmation that the proposed development fully complies with the California Building
Code. The report shall determine the project site’s surface geotechnical conditions and
address potential seismic hazards. The report shall identify building techniques appropriate
to minimize seismic damage.

Prior to building permit issuance, the Applicant shall submit a Geotechnical Report detailing
on- and off-site soils conditions in preparation for the proposed tie-backs, subject to review
and approval of the Building and Engineering Divisions.

A complete building permit application will be required for any remediation work that

requires a building permit. No remediation work that requires approval of a building permit
shall be initiated until the applicant has received building permit approvals for that work. All
building permit applications are subject to the review and approval of the Building Division.

Prior to building permit issuance, all public right-of-way improvements, including frontage
improvements, and the dedication of private easements, shall be completed to the
satisfaction of the Engineering Division and recorded with the County of San Mateo prior to
building permit final inspection.

Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit, the Applicant shall file a
Notice of Intent (NOI) with the State Water Resources Control Board under the Construction
Activities Storm Water General Permit (General Permit). The NOI indicates the Applicant’s
intent to comply with the San Mateo Countywide Stormwater Pollution Prevention Program,
including a Storm Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP). The Applicant shall hire a state
licensed Qualified Stormwater Developer (QSD) to prepare the NOI and SWPPP for the
proposed grading and submit a finalized version of the documents to the Engineering
Division.

Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the Applicant
shall provide documentation indicating the amount of irrigated landscaping, subject to
review and approval of the Engineering Division. The project is subject to the City' Water
Efficient Landscaping Ordinance (Municipal Code Chapter 12.44). Submittal of a detailed
landscape plan is required concurrently with the submittal of a complete building permit
application. The landscaping shall be installed prior to final building inspection.

Prior to final inspection, the Applicant shall submit a landscape audit report to the Public
Works Department.

All Agreements shall run with the land and shall be recorded with the San Mateo County
Recorder’s Office prior to final inspection, subject to review and approval of the Engineering
Division.

7. Approve the Architectural Control, Variance, and Sign Review subject to the following project-

specific conditions:

a.

The applicant shall address all Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP)
requirements as specified in the MMRP (Attachment O). Failure to meet these requirements
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may result in delays to the building permit issuance, stop work orders during construction,
and/or fines.

Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant
shall submit an updated LEED Checklist, subject to review and approval of the Planning
Division. The Checklist shall be prepared by a LEED Accredited Professional (LEED AP).
The LEED AP should submit a cover letter stating their qualifications, and confirm that they
have prepared the Checklist and that the information presented is accurate. Confirmation
that the project conceptually achieves LEED Silver certification shall be required before
issuance of the building permit. Prior to final inspection of the building permit or as early as
the project can be certified by the United States Green Building Council, the project shall
submit verification that the development has achieved final LEED Silver certification.

Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant
shall submit a full shoring plan subject to review and approval of the Planning and Building
Divisions.

Prior to issuance of each building permit, the applicant shall pay the applicable Building
Construction Street Impact Fee in effect at the time of payment to the satisfaction of the
Public Works Director. The current fee is calculated by multiplying the valuation of the
construction by 0.0058.

Prior to commencing any work within the right-of-way or public easements, the Applicant
shall obtain an encroachment permit from the appropriate reviewing jurisdiction.

Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant
shall submit an updated landscape plan showing the fence heights, materials, and locations
consistent with Sheet A2 and the project description letter.

Prior to issuance of building permit, the applicant shall submit the El Camino
Real/Downtown Specific Plan Preparation Fee, which is established at $1.13/square foot for
all net new development. For the subject proposal, the fee is estimated at $33,027.64
($1.13 x 29,228 net new square feet).

The Transportation Impact Fee (TIF) is estimated to be $80,818.08. This was calculated by
multiplying $1,924.24 by 42 net new hotel rooms. Please note this fee is updated annually
on July 1st based on the Engineering News Record Bay Area Construction Cost Index.
Fees are due before a building permit is issued.

The City has adopted a Supplemental Transportation Impact Fee for the infrastructure
required as part of the El Camino Real / Downtown Specific Plan. The fee is calculated at
$398.95 per PM peak hour vehicle trip. The proposed projects is subject to a Supplemental
TIF of $3,590.55 for a total 9 PM peak hour trips. Payment is due before a building permit
is issued and the supplemental TIF will be updated annually on July 1st along with the TIF.
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ATTACHMENT G

Hampton Inn by Hilton
Developer: Sagar Patel
1704 El Camino Real

June 12, 2019

Project Description

The applicant wishes to build a new 70-room, 3-story, nationally-branded hotel including an
underground parking garage for 56 cars (74 if valet) to replace the existing Red Cottage Inn currently
occupying this property. The project site is a “flag” lot located on the easterly side of EIl Camino Real but
set back from it approximately 130 feet, with a portion of an intervening property acting as an ingress-
egress easement for the applicant and his immediate neighbors - thus giving him some “frontage” along
El Camino. The narrow sliver of this “L” shaped property fronts on Buckthorn Way on the north side.

The architectural design of the building will follow a Neo-Spanish style. It blends a design vocabulary
that is reminiscent of the Spanish Colonial past — light-colored plaster, barrel-tiled roofs, exposed beams
or rafters and occasional use of tile & wrought iron elements to accent openings. This is complemented
with contemporary elements such as terra-cotta tile, aluminum storefront, metal roof screen & privacy
screen. Some restraint in the use of these modern and traditional elements is desired by the applicant
so as not to make it look “busy” due to the relatively small and enclosed nature of the site, and the
repetitive & stacking nature of a hotel building. A touch of classical order is subtly introduced to the
building mass in the use of accent-colored stone at the base, a somewhat un-adorned middle portion
and a “capital” that is marked by a raised band in the upper quarter of the building mass & capped by
articulation of the eaves & roof tile. The three-part division of the mass is subtly reinforced by varying
the height of the windows, each of which are further detailed with either different divided lights,
decorative iron work. The long portions of the building mass are relieved by cantilevered bays and
occasional towers which also provided opportunities to vary the roof line. The proposed white color is
in keeping with the architecture but is more muted to meet the neighbors halfway in their request to
further “fade” the building from view. Although the applicant strongly prefers the white color, alternate
color schemes are included.

The applicant is requesting a variance for a reduction of the height to the second-floor level. This
addresses one of the critical concerns of the neighbors — the total overall height of the building. While it
was determined that setting the second floor at the zoning district’s requirement of 15 feet would still
make the building height-compliant, the applicant, with the neighbors’ support, wishes relief from this
by lowering the second floor height to 13 feet. This not only addresses the building height but also
provides opportunities to make the roofline more varied.

To further accommodate the neighbors’ request to minimize the visual impact of the hotel’s bulk, the
applicant has removed guestrooms along the third floor of the east wing. A roof deck with a trellis for
vine planting in lieu of guestrooms will face the east side. There will be no guest use of the deck, only
hotel staff to maintain the roof and landscaping.
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There are currently some heritage trees in the property — two valley oaks, four Monterey pines and a
multi-trunked group of junipers. The westerly valley oak will be removed due to its proximity to the
building within the front setback requirements. The more inwardly located oak will be removed to
accommodate the building & an underground garage, and due to its advanced stage of decay. The four
pines were found to be in moderate stage of decay, recommended to be removed by the arborist, will
be removed. Since the onset of the project application, several of these trees have been removed or
died. Landscape design will help mitigate the removal of these trees. In addition, several mature pines
on the east side and some medium size oaks & redwoods on the neighboring properties will be part of a
comprehensive tree protection plan.

As much as practicable, sustainable design features such as solar hot water panels, low VOC materials,
high-efficiency HVAC equipment and water-efficient landscaping will be an integral part of this project.
Daily hotel operations will also reflect the most up-to-date in sustainable practices as have become the
norm in the hospitality industry. A LEED professional consultant is part of the design team and a
prepared sustainability statement is attached to this document.

“Hampton Inn” is a brand logo of Hilton Corporation and is recognized worldwide. The brand has size,
color and location requirements for monument signs and exterior building signs. The Hampton Inn
exterior building letters are in red per the brand standards. The client is requesting a sign review due to
the signage letters exceeding the 25% red color allowed by the city.

Hilton has approved this project at a preliminary stage, pending franchise negotiation with the applicant
and additional information regarding city planning requirements that may affect hotel brand

requirements.

Sagar Patel
Owner & Applicant

Jim Rato, Architect
RYS Architects

Attachment: Response to some recent email comments from neighbors
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Response to email comments from neighbors:

From the first day of this application, the project owner has been quite open to the suggestions of his
neighbors. Being a former resident and still owning a property in the neighborhood, he has been
sensitive to the comments made on the design of the proposed hotel. The present architecture &
landscape design, size and setbacks have all been affected in one way or another by comments coming
from the neighbors. The applicant, however, must balance the limitations imposed by the district’s
zoning, the needs of his neighbors and the necessity of making reasonable business decisions.

1.

Rooftop terrace: what originally was occupied by 5 guestrooms at the southeast corner has been
revised as a rooftop terrace. This helps bring down the building mass and minimizes the views of
hotel guests from the third floor to the adjacent residential areas. Removal of these rooms offer no
benefit to the applicant due to the insistence of neighbors that this terrace be off limits to guest use.
He will absorb the loss of revenue and loss of a potentially pleasant gathering space but feel justified
in asking the neighbors for a little return by letting a room be reinstated —a room whose window is
redirected to the south to preserve neighbor privacy and its easterly wall at 57’ from the east
property line. The neighbors’ view of this building corner had already been minimized due to the
larger than required setback (39’ versus required 20’), the addition of a deck trellis with vine
planting to block view of the roofline, the existing 15’ high public sidewalk trees, the existing solid
fence and the addition of two rows of new replacement heritage trees (36” box). These view
obstructing elements will render the one reinstated guestroom virtually invisible.

Fencing: The applicant agrees to provide 8’ high solid wood fence with no lattice work at the areas
shown in the illustration below. There are some existing, already-high fence work that does not
make sense to replace (solid plaster fences built by neighbors and 26’ tall blank building walls).
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Drainage: site drainage will comply with city requirements to direct surface water to areas within
the site boundaries. Civil engineering drainage drawings already show this. The applicant will
continue to accommodate the additional water to be drained coming from the easterly neighbors’
existing 26’ tall blank walls.

Building Color: the applicant believes that the proposed, slightly toned-down white color is in
keeping with the architectural style. He strongly prefers to stay with this color. Alternate colors
have been submitted.

Lighting: the site lighting has no pole-mounted lighting that will spill light onto adjacent properties,
as is required by city lighting codes. Most of the fixtures in the open landscaped areas are either
waist-high bollards or low, wall-imbedded path lighting. The fixtures shown in the lighting plan
include utilitarian light fixtures that will be mounted in areas not seen by neighbors, such as in the
garage. A minimum number of fixtures are shown enough to comply with life safety light level
requirements and also to anticipate a fuller more mature landscaping that will partially obstruct the
path lighting.

Transformer: the utility company of the area requires the project to draw power from Buckthorn
Way. As required, transformers are to be as close as possible to the street and be readily accessible
by a maintenance truck on the driveway. Fire department requirements doesn’t allow other
obstructions in that 25’ wide driveway. As is already in the existing hotel, all utilities (electrical,
water, sewer & storm, etc.) are routed via the 25’ wide driveway off of Buckthorn. The proposed
location is the safest and most compliant to the utility company & fire department requirements.

Potential alley disturbance: the applicant will work with the city and its waste removal provider for
scheduling of recurring waste pickups. Hotel operations also requires noise-generating activities to
happen during non-sleeping hours, as much as practicable.
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ARCHITECTS

Request for Variance

PLN2016-00085
Hampton Inn Hotel
1704 El Camino Real

Request to allow the applicant to lower the ground floor height from 15 feet to 13 feet.

1. The project sits in a “flag” property where none of the property lines touches the EIl Camino Real
right-of-way. The owner has an ingress-egress easement with his neighbors whose lots front on
El Camino Real. The site is about 130 feet east of El Camino Real. Given this location, it seems
the 15-foot second floor height requirement should qualify for a variance to be lowered to 13
feet. The home owner associations that surround the project have been working with the
applicant to lower the building height even as the building complies with height limits. The
various HOAs has stated that they would support a variance to lower this height requirement.

2. Making the ground floor height two feet lower that the required height is does not significantly
reduce the perception of a highly visible transparent activated space due to the distance of
building from the El Camino Real right-of-way. The distance of 2 feet at 130 feet away is not
easily perceived, especially from viewers who are mostly driving. We do not believe that
lowering the height will significantly put our neighbors fronting El Camino at a disadvantage.

3. Lowering the height will actually improve the structural stability of the building and improve the
supply of light and air to all the adjacent properties.

4. Since the vast majority of properties within the same or similar zoning along El Camino actually
abuts its right-of-way line this request for a variance is very specific to the unusual location of
this site.

5. The unusual location of this “flag” property relative to the street for which the height
requirement makes most sense is not specifically addressed in the zoning ordinance probably
because of its rare occurrence.

Sagar Patel, owner & applicant
Red Cottage Inn

Jim Rato, Architect
RYS Architects
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VICINTY MAF

FROJECT DIRECTORY

SITE ANALYSIS

HAMFPFTON INN BY

HILTON MENLO FARK

BYSAGAR FATEL

BY HAMPTON INN PROTOTYPE VERSION 7.0 DATED, DATED JANUARY 2014

DRAWING INDEX

OWNER:

SAGAR PATEL

1704 EL CAMINO REAL
MENLO PARK, CA 94025
(408) 7814877
sagarkp@yahoo.com

ARCHITECT:
ROBERT SAUVAGEAU
RYS ARCHITECTS, INC.
10 MONTEREY BLVD.
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94131
(415) 841-9090
bobs@rysarchitects.com

cvIL:
MICHAEL MORGAN
HOHBACH-LEWIN, INC.
260 SHERIDAN AVENUE, SUITE 150
PALO ALTO, CA 94306
(650) 617-5930
mmorgan@hohbach-lewin.com

GEOTECHNICAL:
TOM PORTER
ROMIG ENGINEERS, INC.
1390 EL CAMINO REAL, 2ND FLOOR
SAN CARLOS, CA 94070
(650) 591-5224

SUSTAINABILITY:
HEALTHY BUILDING SCIENCE
28 2ND STREET, 3RD FLOOR
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105
(415) 785-7986

LANDSCAPE
TOM HOLLOWAY

KLA, INC.

151 NORTH NORLIN STREET
SONORA, CA 95370
(209)532-2856
tom@kla-ca.com

APN.:

ADDRESS:

EXISTING ZONE:

TYPES OF OCCUPANCY:

PROPOSED OF USE:

NO. OF STORIES:

060343790

1704 EL CAMINO REAL,
MENLO PARK, CA 94027

ECR-NE-L

EL CAMINO REAL
DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN
R1/B/A2

VISITOR ACCOMODATION:
SELECT-SERVICE HOTEL

3 LEVELS ABOVE GRADE

PARKING

1.25 CAR PER ROOM

70 ROOMS X 1.25 = 88

PARKING PROVIDED 56
3 ACCESSIBLE SPACES
6 CLEAN AIR SPACES

9 EV SPACES PROVIDED OF
WHICH 6 ARE EVSE SPACES

1 BIKE SPACE PER 20 ROOMS
70 ROOMS /20 = (3.5) 4

SHORT TERM BIKE PARKING
PROVIDED 4

LONG TERM BIKE PARKING
PROVIDED 4

LIGHTING: VALET SYSTEM
JARED THEISS PARKING PROVIDED: 56 VEHICLE SPACES ACCOMMODATES 70 CARS
SILVERMAN & LIGHT
1201 PARK AVE, STE 100
EMERYVILLE, CA 94608
(510) 655-1200 BUILDING AREA ROOM MIX
jared@silvermanight.com e —— ——
ARBORIST: LEVEL GROSS FLOOR AREA TYPE LEVEL TOTAL
DAVID L. BABBY
ARBOR RESOURCES GARAGE 26,031.27 SF. 1,409.12 SF. FIRST | SECOND | THIRD
PO BOX 25295
ST FIRST FLOOR 13,618.81 SF. 13,346.98 SF. | KING 2 5 4 1"
(650) 654-3351 - SECOND FLOOR 13,923.90 SF. 1357067 SF. | ACC.KING - 2 1 3
TRAFFIC ENGINEER: THIRD FLOOR 12,015.49 SF. 11,6741 SF. | ACC. KING SUITE - - - -
RICHARD HOPPER TOTAL 65,589.47 S.F. 40,004.18 S.F. DOUBLE QUEEN 15 2 19 56
RKH CIVIL AND TRANSPORTATION
ENGINEERIN: FLOOR AREA RATIO:  40,004.18 S.F. / 36,410 S.F. = 1.099 ACC. DOUBLE QUEEN - - - -
837 COLUMBA LANE
FOSTER CITY, CA 94404 TOTAL 17 29 24 70
(650)212-0837
FAX(650)212-3150 . .
(650 EXISTING SITE AREA : PROPOSED SITE AREA :
AREA SE. PERCENTAGE AREA SE PERCENTAGE
BUILDING FOOTPRINT: 8,384 SF. 23.03% BUILDING FOOTPRINT: 13,618.81SF.  37.40%
DRIVEWAY: 12,796 S.F. 35.14% DRIVEWAY: 7,861.33 SF. 21.59%
OPEN SPACE: 15,230 S.F. 4183% OPEN SPACE: 14,920.86 SF.  41.01%
TOTAL SITE AREA: 36410SF 100% TOTAL SITE AREA: 3641000 SF.  100%
FLOOR AREA RATIO: 40,004.18 S.F. /36410 S.F. = 1.099

TOTAL OPEN SPACE RATIO:

14:929.86 S.F./36,410 S.F.

1.01%

COVER SHEET

T
T2
T3

2017-TOPO

A1
A2
A2.1
A3
A4
A5
A6
A7
A8
A8.1
A9
A10
A10.1
A1
A12
A13
A13.1
A4
A14.1
A15
A15.1
A16
A17
A18
A19

F1

COVER SHEET
BUILDING CODE CALCULATIONS

ALLOWABLE OPENING CALCULATIONS

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY PLAN

AREA PLAN

SITE PLAN

SIGNAGE MASTER PLAN
GARAGE PLAN

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

THIRD FLOOR PLAN

ROOF PLAN

BUILDING AREA CALCULATIONS
BUILDING AREA CALCULATIONS
BUILDING ELEVATIONS
BUILDING ELEVATIONS
EXISTING BUIDLING ELEVATIONS
RENDERED COLOR ELEVATIONS
RENDERED COLOR ELEVATIONS
STREETSCAPE ELEVATION
PHOTO SIMULATIONS

BUILDING SECTIONS

LINE OF SIGHT DIAGRAMS

WALL PROFILE DETAILS

WALL PROFILE DETAILS
COLORS AND MATERIAL BOARD
UNIT PLANS & LEED CHECKLIST
MASSING STUDIES

ALTERNATE COLOR SCHEMES

FIRE ACCESS SITE PLAN

FIRE ACCESS BUILDING SECTIONS

L0.2

Cc1.0
C3.0

c4.0
C5.0
Cc7.0

E0.01

E0.02
E0.03
E0.04
E0.05
E1.00

E1.01
E1.02
E1.10
E1.11

E1.12

CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN - FIRST
FLOOR/SITE

CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN - THIRD
FLOOR

COVER SHEET
PRELIMINARY GRADING AND DRAINAGE
PLAN

PRELIMINARY UTILITY PLAN
STROM WATER TREATMENT PLAN
DETAILS

LIGHTING - GENERAL NOTES, SYMBOLS,
INDEX

LIGHTING FIXTURE SCHEDULE

LIGHTING EQUIPMENT CUTSHEETS 1
LIGHTING EQUIPMENT CUTSHEETS 2
LIGHTING EQUIPMENT CUTSHEETS 3
GARAGE LIGHTING PLAN - BASEMENT
LEVEL

EXTERIOR & SITE LIGHTING PLAN - LEVEL 1
EXTERIOR & SITE LIGHTING PLAN - LEVEL 3

GARAGE PHOTOMETRIC PLAN - BASEMENT
LEVEL

EXTERIOR & SITE PHOTOMETRIC PLAN -
LEVEL 1

EXTERIOR & SITE PHOTOMETRIC PLAN -
LEVEL 3
CONSTRUCTION PHASING PLAN

11X17 MATL BOARD (PREVIOUSLY
SUBMITTED)

1704 EL. CAMINO REAL, MENLO PARK, CALIFORNIA 94027

SAGAR PATEL

PLANNING SUBMITTAL 04/19/2019

PROJECT NO: 15111




Allowable Area Calculations

R-1 7,312 sf (storage less than 10% counted as incidental) 14 OCCUPANTS

Second Floor:
R-1 13,922 sf (storage less than 10% counted as incidental)

Third Floor:

.0

Dec 5, 2018
Based on CBC 2016
B
Project address: 1704 EI Camino Real T 184 54
2 — | ‘ :
Building Use: Hotel, 3-story above grade, underground parking garage ;
Occupancies: R-1, B, A2, U at above grade stories “l
S2 at underground parking garage T l:l
. [ ]
Construction type: Type V-A fully sprinklered '
A2
Sprinkler system: CBC 903.3.1.1 NFPA 13 2353 SF L L 73126F
OCC. FACTOR 30 :
78 OCCUPANTS
Allowable Area Calculations ] /] —
Actual Occupancy Areas: v ;
First Floor: B
B 3,943 sf (office, toilets, fitness, mechanical, electrical, trash encl) 2792 SF
A2 2,493 sf (breakfast, lounge, lobby) OCC. FACTOR 200
g FIRST FLOOR _

Rl 12,009 sf (storage less than 10% counted as incidental)
arage: -
S-2 26,031 sf (laundry/mechanical rooms less than 10% as
incidental) =T e [—]
Tomareazssese | Toma meaziosr
Requirements per CBC Tables: TOTAL 76 GCGUPANTS | TOTAL 14 GGGUPANTS @
7 proia
Srme TR
i T T
Table 5043 | Table 5044 | Table 506.2 FERCPOTME ) | PERGROTABE 221 (I
FEMALE | WALE FEMALE | WALE
Occupancy Height Swres | Alowable Avea W Eo— i
" P A 36,000 T R 1 TR - .
B 70 4 SM - 54,000 !
A2 50" 2 SM - 34,500 SUESE - :
s2 o B S1-84000

Per Section 506.2.4 Mixed Occupancies, Multiple Stories
Each story to comply with section 508.1 for Separated Occupancies 508.4. @ PLUMBING CALCULATION
3 0"

Section 508.4 Separated Occupancies:
Sum of ratios of each occupancies area divided by allowable area of each
occupancy shall not exceed 1.

Thus,
Garage Floor:
8-2 ratio = 26,031/ 84,000 = .31 <1 OK

actual area / B allowable area = 3,943 / 54,000 = .073
A-2 ratio = A2 actual area / A2 allowable = 2,493 / 34,500 = .072
R-1 ratio = 7,312/ 36,000 = .203

Sum of ratio = .073 + .072 +.203 = .348 <1 OK

SECOND FLOOR

Second Floor:
R-1 ratio = 13,922 / 36,000 = .387 < 1 OK =
Third Floor:
R-1 ratio = 12,009 / 36,000 = .33 < 1 OK A

Per 506.2.4 aggregate sum of ratios must not exceed 3
Thus,

Garage Fir ratio + 1% Flr ratio + 2 Fir ratio + 3 Fir ratio < 3 _—
.31+ .348 + .387 + .33 =1.375 < 3 OK h

= + V] [ —_— '
Provided, aggregate sum of ratios of A & R occupancies must not exceed 2 L] 1
Thus, =
1FIrA&R + 2¥FIrA&R + 3“FIr A&R <2 _| |
072 +.203+ 387 +.33=.992 < 2 OK =
FA a

SN 77 B ;
S-2 _—
1T f@é /26,031 SF =
‘ — |

T = -

GARAGE FLOOR THIRD FLOOR

ALLOWABLE AREA CALCULATION
3/64" = 1-0"

BUILDING CODE CALCULATIONS
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g g g g g E

] ] ] 19T aidee
20sF 20k 20sF 20k T;‘%F 20.55F
20.55F | 20505F 20.5/5F 20.5)F 20.5]5F | 45 s Z@F

B B B B_o
o515 |[8s1sH |85.15F (851 SHT T, ddd 1104 s M

101-9 3/8"

303"

WEST WALL

TOTAL BUILDING WALL AREA 101" x 30" = 3,030 sf

TOTAL OPENING AREA 923 SF
PERCENT OPENING 923 /3,030 =30.5%
172-25/8"

| 83

e gsr | 7K 2hdse | edse| fedse s fedse| 2edsh s s e srpse ‘
~
SF ;_@Fzﬁw 2@% 2@% 2@% 2@% 2@% 2@% 2@% 2@%‘&5% 2@%
O

g s R g g g g g g
912%/75!: 18.4 SF 85 SF 5’F 5’F SF SF SF SF SF SF

187-9 1/8"

e

24

SOUTH WALL

TOTAL BUILDING WALL AREA 187/ x 24" = 4,488 sf
172'x8"= 1376

5,350 + 1,316 = 5,864 SF

TOTAL OPENING AREA 1,069 SF

PERCENT OPENING 1,069 /5,864 =182 %
CALCULATIONS BASED ON CBC TABLE 705.8

SEPARATION DISTANCE: 10" TO 15/
NON-PROTECED, SPRINKLERED BUILDING
ALLOWED OPENING: 45%

ALLOWABLE OPENING CALCULATIONS
NOT TO SCALE

ALLOWABLE OPENING CALCULATIONS
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BEARINGS PER 96 MAPS 74—75 HAVE BEEN ROTATED TO MATCH PROPERTY DEED BEARINGS

(NOT TO SCALE)
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: E
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s T A e 2 R JOINT UTILITY POLE
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7 R n ® SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE
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%,
2 THE UTILITIES EXISTING ON THE SURFACE AND SHOWN ON THIS
130.90° DRAWING HAVE BEEN LOCATED BY FIELD SURVEY. ALL
EXISTING | UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING ARE FROM
BUILDING To157.85 SURFACE MARKINGS DELINEATED BY SUBDYNAMIC UTLITY
W 3813 L= 583t LOCATORS IN APRIL 2011 AND FROM RECORDS OF
VARIOUS UTILITY COMPANIES. THE SURVEYOR/ENG\NEER DOES
NOT ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR THEIR COMPLETENESS,
INDICATED LOCATION, OR SIZE. RECORD UTILITY LOCATION
SHOULD BE CONFIRMED BY EXPOSING THE UTILITY.
- EXISTING
- FoUND 3/4 RON PIPE
OUND 3/4° RON PIPE
e T W BRASS T4 4 Thck BUILDING
“HeE 1118
PER 96 WAPS 7475 00w

FOUND STANDARD
TY MONUNENT

THE F’ARCEL BOUNDARY SHOWN HEREON WAS ESTABLISHED ELEVATIONS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN ARE BASED UPON
BY ME, OR UNDER MY SUPERVISION, AND IS BASED UPON NGVD29 DATUM. ADD 2.72 FEET TO EL[VAT\ONS T0
2 HECh SURVEY OF MONUNENTS FOUNDUIN. THE PROJECT CONVERT NGVD29 DATUM TO NAVDES D,

VICINITY.

REFERENCED CITY BENCHMARK:

uuno

ORIGINALLY 71.13 NGVD29 DATUM
CURRENTLY 73.85 NAVD88 DATUM

PARCEL AREA:

GRAPHIC SCALE

N
A E
g 2 .
L2522

REV/
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965 CENTER STREET+SAN CARLOSsCA 94070+(650) 593—8580]
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BUCKTHORN WAY
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124/132/136 14071441148

N31°36 00" E 25

A4 (€)#19 HOLLVWOODJUN\PER REMOVED
'\ REPLACED WITH 36" BOX LAURUS NOBILIS

/
(E) #20 HOLLYWOOD JUNIPER - REMOVED
/ |/ \ REPLAGED WITH 36" BOX LAURUS NOBILIS

(E) #21 HOLLYWOOD JUNIPER - REMOVED
REPLACED WITH 36" BOX LAURUS NOBILIS

\ (E)#22 HOLLYWOOD JUNIPER - REMOVED
REFLAGED T30 50X A5 ool
(E)#23 HOLLVWOODJUN\PER
, \ REMOVED-REPLACEDWITH  (E) 3 -STOR
BOXAUSNOBIS | RESIDENCEY
(E) #24 HOLLVWOOD JUNIPER
| | RENOVED RePLAGED W |
36" BOX LAURUS NOBILIS

7 I\ L L
N
o e s
TG BE DEMOLISHED X
\ Lawn
| \

‘
$31°36'00"__W 235" (E) #15 48" COAST
— e SR N [R5 |/Rgnwoon,mw \
|

BUILDING 2 | /
0 B DEMOLISHED z | /

—

(E) 2-STORY (E) 2 -STORY
(E) 2 -STORY RESIDENCE RESIDENCE
APARTMENT BUILDING (2 UNITS) (2 UNITS)

E120

S 58° 1200

|

(E)2-STORY '
BUSINESS |
[

R

(E) PARKING

— —
$56°12 00" E2485

|

(E) 2-STORY (E) 2-STORY
RESIDENCE RESIDENCE
(2UNITS) (2 UNITS)

\

(E)#18 7" LEMON PRIVET - REMOVE
BOTTLEBRUSH - (E)#17 9" LEMON
REMOVE

ROX.

EL CAMINO REAL

/

T T T aee

PROPOSED HOTEL BUILDING

3 STORIES
70 GUESTROOMS

/

i
I

I

|

|

2 v
OAK- RENOVE = (E) 3-STORY
i

(E) PARKING (E) PARKING o~ -5 - RESIDENCES

(E)#14 30" MONTEREY
/ F\NEVRTMO\/E

I
 E—
I
!
s b ey |
/— —~ \l

1704 EL CAMINO REAL
MENLO PARK, CA

BULDING 13

,N 58° 12' 00"/ W 128.5'
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. | 1t
r vansuONe | I |
| Lo TO'BE DEMOLISHED | | J

\— © w8 BULDING #4
T0BE

02~
|_ _———

r

| (E)#16 8" TO 2" GLOSSY
[

PINE - REM(
() #12 MONTEREY

PINE - ALREADY [ie0]
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—_————n———— e

/\L (EWH 27" MONTEREY

Ly (I

(410 35" ConsT
REDWOOD - REMAIN

FOREST \
LANE

1
Q@"j\(zm & REMOVE
Gl

©3# constuve |
OAK- DECEASED

(E) #6 25" COAST
LIVE OAK - REMAIN

(E) 1-STORY BUSINESS \ i (€)#7 14" COAST (E)#8 19"COAST  (E) #9 31" COAST
’ (E) PARKING EXISTING STRUCTURE: LIVE OAK - REMAIN LIVE OAK - REMAIN  LIVE OAK - REMAIN
0 BE DEMOLISHED AR 7 N _
N N - N
SR S -
(E)3-STORY
—_ e — — —— — — — — — — = RESIDENCES
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SCALE: "= 20°
— —
AREA PLAN L o
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CEMENT PLASTER OVER
CONCRETE BLOCK WALL-
PAINT TO MATCH BLDG

0o

P

TRASH ENCLOSURE - FRONT ELEVATION
1/4" = 1'-0"

PAINTED CEMENT PLASTER OVER
CORRUGATED CONCRETE BLOCK WALL-
METAL GATES PAINT TO MATCH BLDG.

\
STEEL SLEEVE LOCKER HASP

TRASH ENCLOSURE - SIDE ELEVATION
14" =1-0"

NOTE:
TRASH ENCLOSURE
COORDINATE DRAINAGE GATE
REQUIREMENTS WITH
HEALTH INSPECTOR.

SHALL OPEN FULLY 90
DEGREES AND SHALL
LOCK IN OPEN POSITION
WITH STEEL SLEEVES

\ /
o Vi
=) v =]
o
TRASH
ARBAGE
ki o o
< 54
RECYCLE
composT
= 5 =
1w

TRASH ENCLOSURE PLAN
1/4" = 10"

EL CAMINO REAL

(E) EL

EC. POLE
W STREET
LIGHT

(E) ELEC.
POLE W/
STREET LIGHT \

1706 EL CAMINO REAL 124

BUCKTHORN WAY

BUCKTHORN WAY

128/132/136/140/144/148 BUCKTHORN WAY.

() TYP.

ELECTRICAL

POLE
YP.FIRE

€T
HYDRANT j\

N31° 36 00°E 25

(E) #18 HOLLYWOOD
JUNIPER REMOVED -
REPLACED WITH 36" BOX
LAURUS NOBILIS.

(E) #20 HOLLYWOOD
LAURUS NOBILIS.

(E) #21 HOLLYWOOD
JUNIPER REMOVED -
REPLACED WITH 36" BOX
LAURUS NOBILIS.

(E) #22 HOLLYWOOD

VSR
R o

Re
Bz
B
8%
<)
=
S
@
<]
B3

WALL 26'

LAURUS NOBILIS.

(E) #23 HOLLYWOOD
JUNIPER REMOVED -
RE]

PLACED WITH 36° BOX
LAURUS NOBILIS.
(E) #24 HOLLYWOOD
JUNIPER REMOVED -

REPLACED WITH 36" BOX
LAURUS NOBILIS.

EXISTING BUILDING

120

EXISTING 8' FENCE
$56° 1200 E

NEW 8' FENCE

(E)#18 7" LEMON
BOTTLEBRUSH - REMOVE

(E)#17 9" LEMON (E) #16 8"TO 2" GLOSSY
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T2
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TO3'
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©#s5 \
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-
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REMOVED

/

@
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———— —_— o —— FOREST
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BRAND LOGO: RED
LETTERING PER BRAND

CHANNEL LETTERS
. PER HOTEL BRAND .
5-0 FONT STYLE 5-0

STANDARDS

LOGO ONLY

ADDRESS LINE

ADDRESS LINE &
ARROW

PANEL & BASE

EL CAMINO REAL

SELF ILLUMINATING
CHANNEL LETTERS

REVEAL BLACK COLOR

18" x 72" CONCRETE
BASE TO MATCH
UILDING

e

/|

/|

1

MONUMENT SIGN - FRONT ELEVATION - FACING ENTRY DRIVE

N
NI
-

SIGNAGE AREA

BUILDING FRONTAGE FOR SIGN = 97"

PER SIGN GUIDELINE TABLE

USE MAX FRONTAGE = 80" or 100 s.f. SIGN AREA

TOTAL AREA ALL SIGNS
MONUMENT + BLDG = (5x8) x 2 + 17.18 = 97.18 s.f.

$56'1200"

1285°

i NEW 18" x 72" x 96"

MONUMENT SIGN TO
| Reeuacemxstwe __ Newssere |

TURNING RADIUS

NEW BUILDING SIGN AT
BUILDING TOWER

|
| .
1

1702 EL CAMINO REAL

C SIGNAGE MASTER PLAN
17

GARAGE
RAMP.

CHANNEL LETTERS
PER HOTEL BRAND
FONT STYLE

LETTERING PER BRAND
STANDARDS

SELF ILLUMINATING
CHANNEL LETTERS

LOGO ONLY
3" WIDE x 3" DEEP.
REVEAL BLACK COLOR

18" x 72" CONCRETE
BASE TO MATCH
BUILDING

MONUMENT SIGN - BACK ELEVATION - FACING PARKING

BUILDING SIGN - FRONT ELEVATION

“"HAMPTON INN' IS A BRAND LOGO OF HILTON
CORPORATION AND IS RECOGNIZED WORLDWIDE.
‘THE BRAND HAS SIZE, COLOR & LOCATION
REQUIREMENTS FOR MONUMENT SIGNS AND
EXTERIOR BUILDING SIGNS.

HAMPTON INN EXTERIOR BUILDING LETTERS ARE
RED PER BRAND STANDARDS.

NOTE:

DUE TO THE BRAND STANDARDS LOGO COLOR
BEING RED, A REQUEST FOR A SIGN REVIEW HAS
BEEN ASKED OF THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT

TOWER
40

_ _ __ PARAPET
35.—G_ o

o

SIGNAGE

— 03 %OOR C;

_ _ OTFLOOR g

[ odidsiine

SIGNAGE MASTER PLAN

— e ——— e e e FOREST

N31°36 00'E 260° \ LANE
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ALTERNATECOLOR 1 ALTERNATECOLOR 2 ALTERNATECOLOR % ALTERNATE COLOR 4

BENJAMIN MOORE COLOR: KEY WEST IVORY 192 BENJAMIN MOORE COLOR: GOLDEN LAB 178 BENJAMIN MOORE COLOR: GLOWING APRICOT 165 BENJAMIN MOORE COLOR: BIRMINGHAM CREAM 164
SMOOTH FINISH SMOOTH FINISH SMOOTH FINISH SMOOTH FINISH

RENDERED SOUTH ELEVATION - ALTERNATE COLOR 1 RENDERED WEST ELEVATION - ALTERNATE COLOR 1
NOT TO SCALE NOT TO SCALE

RENDERED NORTH ELEVATION - ALTERNATE COLOR 1 RENDERED EAST ELEVATION - ALTERNATE COLOR 1
NOT TO SCALE NOT TO SCALE

ALTERNATE COLOR SCHEMES A19
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Enhanced Motor Court Paving - Pavers or similar stamped and colored concrete

Landscape Concept

The landscape design concept for the Hampton Inn and Suites is to provide an
enjoyable and aesthetic space for the guests and employees that fits within the
landscape character of the existing surrounding area. Plant material has been selected
that performs well in the special conditions of Menlo Park (Sunset Zone #15).

Low and medium water use hardy trees, shrubs and groundcover are proposed for the
plant palette. The landscape (and associated irrigation) has been designed to be
compliant with City of Menlo Park Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance. (Current at
time of submittal)

Special considerations have been provided in selection of plant material that respects
the needs of the employees and guests as well as the adjacent existing developments
and residences. Clear and secure view corridors have been provided to ensure safety
of those entering the building as well as moving around the site. Large trees are
proposed for replacement of trees removed for this project.

Irrigation

“The entire site wil be rigated using a fully automatic system and designed to meet
the City's Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (WELO). The irrigation system will
be low-volume design using bubblers o drip emitters. The system will include in-line:
valves, quick couplers, and gate valves. New irrigation controller will be Hunter,
Rainbird, Iritrol, or equal and will meet the WELO requirements of a 'Smart’
controller. A complete irigation design with these parameters will be provided with
the building permit plans.

BUCKTHORN WAY

Colonnade - Similar Example

Container Fountain Seat Wall and Oramental Fence

128/132/136/140/144/148

Existing Parking to BUCKTHORN WAY
Remain

124 BUCKTHORN WAY

Raised planter with row of (6) Arbutus:
‘Marina' and (5) Laurus nobilis 'Saratoga’
over structure - Heritage Replacement J

Upright flowering trees in containers to
provide buffer to neighbors on northern
edge of the Hotel

(—

Lounge chairs over
synthetic turf

e e T P
Trees and accent planting in containers
et in bed of river cobble

Colonnade separates garage
ramp from small outdoor dining
area off of breakfast area

Intimate dining patio with string
lights

conversational seating

Colonnade separating:
pool area from patio

Movable dining furniture on
paver patio under string lights

Raised planter in front of windows
with ceramic pots and recirculating
bubbler fountain

Wood pedestal decking

around pool

Containers against

Tile paving from inside lobby- uilding
to continue outdoors

Hotel

1706 EL CAMINO REAL
=5
Existing Parking to
4 Remain
<
L
o
o
Z
= L
<
o
iy —_— -
L

1702 EL CAMINO REAL

Decomposed granite to Olive trees and accent planting in
provide maintenance and fire containers to create view garden
access around the hotel from guest rooms.

Stormwater treatment-
area - +680 sf

Motor Court:

Gravel and concrete
maintenance and fire access
around building

Existing Parking to
Remain

Bay Friendly Landscape

The landscape and irigation has been designed to comply with the Bay
Friendly Landscape Design Guidelines, CalGreen code requirements, and
Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (WELO) requirements.

Existing Trees

There are a number of existing trees, including heritage trees, directly adjacent to the
property that will be impacted by the proposed development. All work to be done for this
project is to be in accordance with the design guidelines outlined in the Arborist Report
prepared for the project (dated July 16, 2018). See also specific requirements outlined in
the Arborist Report for Tree Protection Zones as they apply to each tree.

For Tree Replacement Table see Sheat L0.2

(1) Quercus agrifolia Large Shade-
Tree - Heritage Replacement tree

| \
Existing fence on the northeast

property line to remain

LAMDGCAPE
ARCHITECTURE

PLANMING

Permeable paver service and

emergency vehicle access di

rive

(8) Heritage Replacement trees

Laurus nobilis 'Saratoga’
(evergreen)

Transformer

Large existing redwood to
remain

(minimal) disturbance of soil

Permeable pavers around th
existing Redwood tree root zone - No

e

Trash enclosure with vines and

concrete paving

(6) Podocarpus Gracilior
evergreen screen trees -
Heritage Replacement trees

FOREST
LANE

H

NORT
Scales /16" = I
3 52

e je—

Scale: 116 10"
o 19,2019

Hampton Inn - Menlo Park, CA
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LAMDGCAPE
ARCHITECTURE

PLANMING

Proposed Replacement Trees Tree Replacement / Mitigation Table

Removed Trees and Replacement Requirements

Hertage Troe# Repacemen Species see ay.
#1-Valley Oak Podocarpus graciior wBox 2
#2-Valley Oak Podocarpus gracior Box 2
#11- Monterey Pine Podocarpus graciior Box 2
#12- Monterey Pine Abutus Marin' Box 2
#13.- Monterey Pine Abutus Maria' wBox 2
#14 - Monterey Pine Arbutus Marina! Box 2
#16 - Glossy Privel Laurus nobils ‘Saraoga 3Box 2
#19 - Hollywood Juriper Laurus nobis ‘Saratoga’ 3 Box 2
#20 - Hollywood Juniper Laurus nobis ‘Saratoga’ wBoc 2
#21- Hollywood Juniper Laurus nobis ‘Saratoga’ 3 Box 2
#22.- Hollywood Juniper Laurus nobils ‘Saratoga’ Box 2
#23 - Hollywood Juniper Laurus nobis ‘Saratoga’ Box 1
= Quercus agrioia 3 Box 1
Dynamyte Crape Myrtle Marina Madrone #24 - Hollywood Juniper Laurus nobilis ‘Saratoga’ 36" Box 2

Existing Trees

There are a number of existing trees, including heritage trees, directly
adjacent to the property that will be impacted by the proposed develapmam
AAll work to be done for this project is to be in accordance with the design
quidelnes oulined in the Arborist Report prepare fo the project (dated July
16, 2018). See also specic fequirements outined in the Arborist Report for
Tree Protection Zones as they apply to each tree.

Swan Hill Olive Fem Pine (Podocarpus) Coast Live Oak

Containers in-line with the-
colonnade post with

Preliminary Plant Palette WELO Water Use Calculations L e
s Praiminary
Trees and Accent Plants Londscape r o o : these Wood veneer colonnade along.
Replacementand Sereen Trees - 24' - 36" Box Grasses - 1and 5 gallon caleuatons. However, comp the edge of the courtyard - See
Combiatin of evergreon and aecwauuusveesmreplacel’“’se"‘a‘w“' be removed Plants approved for use in stormwater management flow-through ETO for Menlo Park 428 architectural plans
Primary ole of tr planters and for accent planting throughout
e d offices. Boutslous gracius Blue Grama v medrme  wwe  mres e SR e somem meces mu
Guestroom windows whee possiie, 566 separat tble farwscwc Hertage Tros Carex spedes New Zealand Hair Sedge 1 Somwater Medum 04 Drip Emitier 81 049 es2sf 368 89T
Replacements. Heritage Tree Replacent Species are underlined in th lst below. Camabas sctora Kar Foerser
(©) Arbutus Marina Maring Macrone 36" Box T 2 Smbs  Medum 04  DrpEmier 81 049 1314 69 172189
&) Lagersioomia ndica Bynamie Dynamite Crape Wyile 24" Box
(1% Louma nonie Garmoge Soroge L pute Cperry 38" Bk 5 gall 3 smbs  Low 03 OrpEmier B 03 306ss 11352 301233
(7 Qs o Syan T Swantii e oo P\an'lsd o radoe o voua mierest and ayerng i rger T commen w04 omemte o1 0w wma ma 1ams
® - 36" Box Anigozanihos Bush Baby Kangaroo Paw 5 Commmes Low 03 OrpEmter 81 037 zsos w93 24767
Euphorbia characias wulfeni Evphorsia
Shrubs Heseraloa parvilora Red Yucca ToTAL Sazist 60712 Galons
Kniphofa waria Rec-Hot Poker i Aopled Water Alowance aonyear
Hodae Shiubs -5 galon s vare Red ol Maximum Applied Water Alowance (MAWA) 60,171.2 galloner
Cow o medium height shrubs panted as hedges along building e oo o e Catmated Tt Watr Usage (€1W0) 647532 saloniyear
‘Busus micropnyla japonica Green Beauty  Japaness Boxwood ooy pvirtiveion g
Calstomon viminals Lt Jort Ovwart Botte Brush e oy verage rgaton Eficency o
= communis Compacta Ovart yrte
Nandina domestica 'Fire Power" Low 1, 2and 5 gallon MAWA, water
ioa ouropen it Ole’ Dwar Ol Provide year round visual interest and area planted in high use s e
Ry i Vi Enness Ind Hauthorn areas and as foreground Inlarger planters.
Rhaphiolepis umbellata "Min Yedda Hawthomn Diantt a Flax Lity
Rosmarinus officinalis. Rosemary Hemerocallis species Day Lily
Hosperaloe paniora Red Yucca
Upright Shrubs - 15 gallon Rosa Flower Carpel Flover Carpet Rose
Nar itectu
‘Cupressus sempenirens Tiny Towers' Owart laan Cypress Low growing groundeover - 1 gallon
Podocarpus henkeli Long-Leaf Yellow-Wood Groundcover tat allows access
Thuja occdentals Emerad” American Arborviae Archtostaphylos wa-ursi Trailng Manzarita
' Cotoneaster dammer Lowast
Vines Juriperus conferta Shore Juniper
Trachelosprmum asiaicum Aian Jasmine
Vines -1 and 5 gallon
Giimbing and clinging vines for sreening and accent
Bougainilea spacies Bougainilea planing. Thas plans e prlminry and may change Uvouh e desgn
Clematis species Clematis Srecess, Tha il Hanin i may o cortai o 1 abovopas
- Yoyt e b Atorsy o ot e T on g v 0
Feus ceping
S poartormum s
Trachelospermum jasminoices Star Jasrine

{hrough the buiding pert reiew process.
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GERERAL CIV_HOTES PRELIMINARY IMPROVEMENT PLANS

GENERAL:
1. ALL PERMITS WILL BE SECURED BY THE OWNER AND IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO COMPLY WITH THE FOR
CONDITIONS AND REQUIREMENTS OF THE PERMITS.
2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE EFFECTIVE ACTION TO PREVENT THE FORMATION OF AN AIRBORNE DUST NUISANCE AND HAM PTON IN N PROJECT SITE
SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR DAMAGE RESULTING FRON THER FAILURE T0 DO SO.

3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ALL LIGHTS, SIGNS, BARRICADES, FLAGMEN OR OTHER DEVICES NECESSARY T PROVIDE
e com 1704 EL CAMINO REAL
4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL POST EMERGENCY TELEPHONE NUMBERS FOR THE POLICE, FIRE AMBULANCE, AND THOSE AGENCIES
RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTENANCE OF UTILITIES IN THE VICINITY OF THE JOB SITE. MENLO PARK' CA
5. LENGTHS OF SANITARY SEWERS AND STORM DRAINS SPECIFIED ARE HORIZONTAL DISTANCES AS MEASURED FROM CENTERS BarkmioRn Ay BUCKTHORN WAY
OF STRUCTURES ROUNDED TO'THE NEAREST FOOT. )
6. DXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AND INPROVEMENTS ARE SHOWN IN THEIR APPROXIMATE LOCATIONS BASED UPON RECORD - =7\ 1
INFORMATION AVAILABLE TO THE ENGINEER AT THE TIME OF PREPARATION OF THESE PLANS. LOCATIONS MAY NOT HAVE == C
BEEN VERIFIED N THE FIELD AND NO CUARANTEE IS WADE AS TO THE ACCURACY OR CONPLETENESS OF THE INFORMATION — VICINITY MAP
SHOWN. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PERFORM AT THEIR EXPENSE A FIELD OBSERVATION LOCATING ALL EXISTING UTILITIES = -
INCLUDING ELEVATIONS AND NOTIFY THE OWNER AND THE ENGINEER OF ANY CONFLICTS PRIOR T0 CONSTRUCTION. IT SHALL .
BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO DETERMINE THE EXISTING LOCATIONS OF UTILTIES SHOWN ON THESE
LANS. ANY ADDITIONAL GOST INCURRED AS A RESULT OF THE CONTRACTOR'S FAILURE TO VERIFY LOCATIONS OF THE LEGEND ABBREVIATIONS
EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE BORNE BY THE CONTRACTOR. ® COREGATE BASE
7. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY ALL EXISTING INVERT ELEVATIONS FOR STORM DRAIN AND SANITARY SEWER CONSTRUCTION PRIOR 5 BOUNDARY LINES A ASPHALTIC CONCRETE
T ANY WORK. ALL WORK FOR STORM DRAIN AND SANITARY SEWER \NSTALLAT\DN SHALL BEGIN AT THE DOWNSTREAM H — 4D AREA DRAIN
CONNECTION POINT. THIS WILL ALLOW FOR ANY NECESSARY ADJUSTMENTS TO BE MADE PRIOR TO THE INSTALLATION OF — —————  CENTER LINE ATt
THE ENTIRE_LINE. IF THE CONTRACTOR FAILS TO BEGIN AT THE mwuswuu CONNECTION POINT AND WORKS UPSTREAM, . BC BACK OF CURB
HE SHALL PROCEED AT HIS OWN RISK AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY ADJUSTMENTS NECESSARY. H T T T T T T T EASEMENTLNE BFP BACKFLOW PREVENTER
H e eRoPmRT N 8L0G BULDING
8. CONTRACTOR SHALL UNCOVER AND EXPOSE ALL EXISTING UTILITY AND SEWER LINES WHERE THEY ARE CROSSED ABOVE OR o }7 BoL BOLLARD
BELOW BY THE NEW FACILITY BEING CONSTRUCTED IN ORDER TO VERFY THE GRADE AND TO ASSURE THAT THERE IS 25 et = ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE Bow BACK OF WALK
SUFFICIENT CLEARANCE. PIPES SHALL NOT BE STRUNG NOR TRENCHING COMMENCED UNTIL ALL CROSSINGS HAVE BEEN 27 - : BOTTOM OF WALL
VERIFIED FOR CLEARANCE. IF THE CONTRACTOR FAILS TO FOLLOW THIS PROCEDURE HE WILL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR oF /] - MISCELLANEOUS LINES ¢ CONCRETE
ANY EXTRA WORK OR MATERIAL REQUIRED IF NODIFICATIONS TO THE DESIGN ARE NECESSARY. EH 2} s Y e ——— SQW g:?ic-i TBVAS‘N
9. ALL EXISTING UTILITIES AND IMPROVENENTS THAT BECOME DAMAGED DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE COMPLETELY 28 = 2 SIDEWALK CONC CONCRETE
RESTORED T0 THE SATISFACTION OF THE OWNER AT THE CONTRACTOR'S SOLE EXPENSE. o e —=  LP OF GUITER gore CLEANOUT TO GRADE
10. CONTRACTOR TO TAKE NECESSARY PRECAUTIONARY MEASURES TO PREVENT SOIL EROSION AND SEDINENTATION. EXISTING x FENCE-VIRE 0s Down_spour
AND PROPOSED DRAINAGE STRUCTURES TO BE TEMPORARILY COVERED WITH FILTER FARRIC OR EQUAL UNTIL SURROUNDING — — — — — — —  BIORETENTION £ ELECTRIC OR EAST
PAVEMENT IS INSTALLED. £ EUSTING
. GARAGE OUTLINE ® EXSTING
11. ANY RELOCATION OF UTILITIES SHALL BE COORDINATED WITH THE OWNER AND CONDUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ANY AND \ ELEC ELECTRIC
ALL REQUIREMENTS OF THE OWNER, INCLUDING FEES, BONDS, PERMITS AND WORKING CONDITIONS, ETC. THE OWNER SHALL L } EsuT EASEMENT
PAY THE FEES, BONDS, AND FILE THE APPROPRIATE PERMITS FOR ALL SUCH RELOCATION WORK. ALL ON~ SITE UTILITY ‘ ! UTITY LNES AS
WORK 1S THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR (NATERIALS AND INSTALLATION). 2 . SR o8 GRADE_BREAK
3 _ FF FINISHED FLOOR
€ s Fs FIRE SERVICE ] FINISHED GRADE
12, IF ARCHAEOLOGICAL MATERIALS ARE UNCOVERED DURING GRADING. TRENCHING OR OTHER EXCAVATION, EARTHWORK WITHIN ° o
100 FEET 07 THESE NATLFALS AL S STOPFED UNTIL 4 FROTESSIONAL ARCHACOLOIST WHO IS CERTFED Y T ES {: ¢ ¢ AS LINE e FLoWLNE
F CALIFORNIA ARCHAEOLOGY (SCA) AND/OR THE SOCIETY OF PROFESSIONAL ARCHAEOLOGY (SOPA) HAS 3 5 IRR——————————  IRRIGATION LINE iy FASHED SURFACE
GPFORTUNITY 10, EYALUME THE SONFICANCE OF THE FIND AND SUGGEST AFSROPRIATE WITGATO NEASURES, - TKEY ARE o | o GROUND,
DEEMED NECESSARY. = . — ST DN i Hitt PONT
B . ——S§—————— 55— SANITARY SEWER v
13. THESE PLANS DO NOT SPECIFY NOR RECOMMEND THE USE OR INSTALLATION OF ANY WATERIAL OR EQUIPMENT WHICH IS ¢ i on boLe
NADE FROM, OR WHICH CONTAINS ASBESTOS FOR USE IN THE CONSTRUCTION OF THESE IMPROVENENTS. ANY PARTY W w———  Wm s INEAR REeT
INSTALLING OR USING SUCH MATERIALS OR EQUIPENT SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIELE FOR ALL INJURES. DAMAGES, OR e PERFORATED PIPE ht i
UABILITIES, OF ANY KIND, CAUSED BY THE USE OF SUCH MATERIALS, OR EQUIPMENT. NOTIFY OWNER WHEN DISCOVERING I e
ASBESTOS MATERIALS. REFER TO SPECIICATION 'HAZARDOUS MATERIALS PROCEDURES AND CONTROL™ AND HAZARDOUS I o
NATERIALS ABATEMENT AND CONTROL. . - N WAPS
N NORTH
14 THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NEET AND FOLLOW ALL (NPDES) NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELININATION SYSTEM NE NORTHEAST
REQUREMENTS N EFFECT AT THE TIME OF CONSTRUCTION. W NORTHWEST
oc ON CENTER
15. SHOULD IT APPEAR THAT THE WORK TO BE DONE OR ANY MATTER RELATIVE THERETO IS NOT SUFFICIENTLY DETAILED OR . oH oy
EXPLAINED ON THESE PLANS, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT THE ENGINEER FOR SUCH FURTHER EXPLANATIONS AS MAY BENCHMARK: or
BE NECESSARY.
o GENERAL NOTES CONTINUATION (SURVEY BY MACLEOD AND ASSOCIATES, 6/21/16) heE E:‘S'EF‘C s & neme
16. CONTRACTOR SHALL ARRANGE, INSTALL, AND PAY FOR ANY TEMPORARY UTILTIES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO RC RELATVE COMPACTION
TELEPHONE, ELECTRIC, SEWER, WATER, ETC.. THE CONTRACTOR IS TO COORDINATE ANY SUCH UTILITY NEEDS WITH THE Eﬂw‘m SZ”‘;';‘NFEOE'; %'SE&LVAA"W;:‘SE ?gsgg'ﬁ;g;‘ ':‘é?‘ygzz: RD ROOF DRAIN
ER. GRADING NOTES: DATUM TO NAVDES. DATUM. . i ot
17. ALL SITE AREAS SHALL BE GRADED AT 1% MININUM FOR DRAINAGE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED OR ALONG FLOWLINES OF RIM RIM OF UTILITY OBJECT
1. UNDERGROUND UTILTY LOCATIONS SHOWN HEREON WERE TAKEN FROM RECORD DATA. NO GUARANTEE IS MADE OR ¢ 3
CONCRETE. LINED GUTTERS AND VALLEY GUTTERS. INPLIED AS TO THE ACCURACY OF SUCH RECORD DATA. NO EXCAVATIONS WERE MADE TO CONFIRM LOCATIONS. RETERENGED GITY BENCHNARK: 5 U e
CONTRACTORS ARE CAUTIONED TO CONTACT U.S.A. UNDERGROUND AND TO EXERCISE EXTRENE CARE IN VERIFYING ALL ORIGINALLY 71.13 NGVDZS DATUM
18. ESTIMATED EARTHWORK QUANTITIES SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE ONLY AND SHOWN FOR THE PURPOSES OF ESTIMATING LOCATIONS FRIOR 70 COMMENCING EXCAVATIONS OR GTHER WORK WHICH NAY AFFECT THESE UTILITIES. Y T e St
GRADING PERMIT FEES, HOHBACH-LEWIN ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THESE QUANTITIES. 5 5 SQUARE FEET
2. IRRIGATION LATERALS, PARKING LOT LIGHTING WIRING AND SIGNAL WIRING NOT SHOWN. VERIFY LOCATION BEFORE SINe SAN JOSE WATER COMPANY
19, WHERE EXISTING STRUCTURES ARE TO REMAIN IN CONSTRUCTION ZONE AREA, CONTRACTOR SHALL ADJUST RIMS OF THESE COMMENCING TRENGHING.  REPLAGE OR REPAIR INMEDIATELY WHERE BROKEN TO PROVIDE UNINTERRUFTED SERVICE. 55 SANITARY SEWER
STRUCTURES, LE. CATCH BASINS, VALVE BOXES, CLEAN OUTS, UTILITY BOXES, ETC. TO NEW FINISH GRADE. FLOOD ZONE NOTE: s STREET LIGHT
3. ALL FINISH GRADES SHOWN ARE FINISH GRADE ELEVATIONS UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. T ——— v SOUTHWEST
20. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT FOR NORTHERN CALIFORNIA AT LEAST 48 HOURS (2 WORKING THE SUBJECT PROPERTY LIES ENTIRELY WITHIN FLOOD ZONE T TREE
DAY) PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION. (800) 227-2600. "X", AREA OF MININAL FLOOD HAZARD, BASED ON FLOOD rt Top 0F CURE
21. THE ORGANIC WATERIAL COVERING THE SITE SHALL BE STRIPPED AND STOCKPILED. THE STRIPPINGS SHALL BE USED TO UILITY NOTES: INSURANCE RATE MAP OSO81COSO4E, 10/16/2012. ™ TOP OF WALL
BACKFILL ALL LANDSCAPE PLANTERS AND ROUGH GRADE MOUND AREAS, AS SHOWN ON LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS, T0 WITHIN TP
1" OF GRADES SHOWN. EXCESS STRIPPINGS AND EXCAVATED NATERIAL SHALL BE REMOVED FRON THE SITE BY THE 1. THIS SURVEY IS NOT INTENDED TO REPRESENT THE EXACT LOCATIONS, SIZES OR EXTENT OF THE UTILTIES WITHIN THE § ush UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT
CONTRACTOR. AREA ENCONPASSED BY THIS SURVEY. THEREFORE, IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER AND/OR CONTRACTOR T ADA_CONPLIANCE: VG VALLEY GUTT
VERIFY THE LOCATION, SIZE AND EXTENT OF ANY EXISTING UTILTIES PRIOR TO DESIGN OR CONSTRUCTION, CONTRACTORS 1. ALL NEW VORK SHALL CONFORM T0 TITLE 26 OF THE CALFORNIA ADMINSTRATIVE CODE AND THE AMERICANS WITH W wmw/wssr/wnu
22. ADJUSTMENTS TO PAD ELEVATIONS OR PARKING LOT GRADES TO ACHIEVE EARTHWORK BALANCE SHALL BE MADE ONLY WITH ARE_CAUTIONED T CONTACT U.S.A. UNDERGROUND AND TO EXERCISE EXTREME CARE IN VERIFYING ALL LOCATIONS PRIOR . Wi WATER NETER
APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER. TO COMMENCING EXCAVATIONS OR OTHER WORK WHICH MAY AFFECT THESE UTILITES. DISABILITIES. ACT 2010 ADA STANDARDS FOR ACCESSIELE DESIGN, AND ANY LOCAL OR STATE AMENDMENTS THEREOF. WTR
w WATER VALVE
23, COMPACTION TO BE DETERMINED USING ASTM D1557-LATEST EDITION. . IRRIGATION LATERALS, PARKING LOT LIGHTING WIRING AND SIGNAL WIRING NOT SHOWN. VERIFY LOCATION BEFORE 2. AL NEW CURB RAMPS SHALL NOT EXCEED A SLOPE OF 1:12 (8.33%).
COMMENCING TRENCHING. REPLACE OR REPAIR INMEDIATELY WHERE BROKEN TO PROVIDE UNINTERRUPTED SERVICE.
24. STORM DRAIN PIPES DESIGNATED AS SD FROM 4" TO 24" IN DIAMETER SHALL BE SDR-35 PVC. (GREEN-TITE PIPE BY 3. ALL NEW ENTRANCE WALKS TO THE BUILDINGS SHALL NOT EXGEED A SLOPE OF 1:20 (5%) LONGITUDINALLY UNLESS SHEET INDEX
NANVILLE OR APPROVED EQUAL), GLASS HOPE SMOOTH INTERIOR PIPE PER ASTM D3212 HANCOR SURE-LOK WT PIPE OR 3. UTILITY ABANDONMENT/REMOVAL: DISCONNECT AND CAP PIPES AND SERVICES TO REMAI. RENOVE ALL PORTIONS OF RAILINGS ARE PROVIDED IN WHICH CASE THE SLOPE SHALL NOT EXCEED 1:12 (8.33%). SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR o COVER SHEET
APPROVED EQUAL WITH CLASS { BACKFILL OR DUCTILE IRON PIPE DIP, IF SPECIFIED ON PLANS. NO WATERIAL SUBSTITUTE ALL UTILTES WIHIN NEW BULDING FOOTPRIT AND DISPOSE OF OFF-SITE. OTHERWISE ABANDON IN PLACE NLESS RAILING. REQUIREMENTS. oL NARET RADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN
CONGET: PP S o P HCENG. 24 DANETER AL ONLY B USD WHEN AFROVED B AFACTRE ' s s 1 v o s o s s T o s, 4t o
S oRispICon. 4. NOTIFY THE ENGINEER IMNEDIATELY OF ANY UTILITIES ENCOUNTERED THAT ARE NOT SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS. PRESERVE HAVE A MNIMUM WIDTH OF 60" AND A MINIMUM DEPTH OF 60” WHEN THE DOOR OPENS INTO THE BUILDING, AND 42" oo DETAILS
- AND REPAIR ANY UTILITIES THAT ARE DAMAGED AND THAT ARE TO REMAIN. PLUS THE WIDTH OF THE DOOR WHEN THE DOOR OPENS ONTO THE LANDING. :
25, FROPOSED SPOT GRADES. (ELEVATIONS) SHOWN HEREON ARE.FINISHED PAVEMENT GRADES, NOT TOP OF CLRS GRADES, 5. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR COORDINATING ALL CROSSINGS OF NEW UTIITIES WITH EACH OTHER, AND WITH 5. RANPS ARE DEFINED AS ANY WALKWAY BETWEEN SLOPES OF 1:20 (5) AND 1:12 (8.33%), AND SHALL HAVE A MINMUM
B Ei‘g‘ug& “‘wg‘nﬁiﬂﬁﬂg Eaﬂ‘]"'sﬁcg[‘;i”tc%%" DA[';?““':;’NESRT PRIOR TO INSTALUNG NEW UTILITIES. NOTIFY THE WIDTH OF 48" AND A MAXIMUM CROSS-SLOPE OF 2%. RAMPS EXCEEDING 30" VERTICAL DROP SHALL HAVE INTERMEDIATE
26, THE CONTRAGTOR SHALL VERIFY THE CONTENTS AND THICKNESS OF THE BUILDING SLAB SECTION (IE: CONCRETE, SAND, : (2% MAXINUN SLOPE) LANDINGS HAVING A NINIMUM LENGTH IN THE DIRECTION OF TRAVEL OF 60". BOTTOM LANDINGS
ROCK) WITH THE STRUCTURAL PLANS AND THE ELEVATIONS SHOWN HEREON PRIOR TO CONMENCEMENT OF GRADING. 6. PRIOR TO CONNECTING TO EXISTING UTILITIES FIELD VERIFY LOCATION 6. & INVERT OR DEPTH PRIOR TO INSTALLING NEW AT CHANGES IN RAMP DIRECTION SHALL HAVE A NININUM LENGTH OF 72",
27. AL WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE 0.5.H.A. REGULATIONS. FIPE OF EQUIPMENT- 5. gﬁ‘iﬁ’“ﬂé’:@ﬁ;{%\ﬁg ADCNC [ASNSTBE[‘DE’YQ;:(NK?RSTRAALTPsarttLBgEZ)Zé% MAXIMUM SLOPE. IN ANY DIRECTION WITHIN PARKING
7. EACH BUILDING WATER SERVICE CONNECTION SHALL BE WITH VALVE AND VALVE BOX SET AT GRADE.
28, CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES,
CONSTRUCTON CONTRACTOR WL BE REQURED 10 ASSUNE SOLE MWD COUPLETE RESPONSIBLY FOR 108 SITE ConDITioNs 8 AL BUILDING SEWER LATERALS SHALL BE WITH CLEANOUT TO GRADE.
£ OF CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS GEOTECHNICAL CRITERIA: ] HOHBACH-LEWIN, INC.
REOU\REMENT SHALL BE ADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSU AND NDT BE LMTEB TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND 9. ALL CATCH BASINS WITHIN VEHICULAR AREAS SHALL BE TRAFFIC RATED FOR H20 VEHICULAR LOADS. FOR CATCH BASINS ! STRUCTURAL & CIVIL ENGINEERS
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR FURTHER ACREES TO DEFEND, INDENNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL HARNLESS FROM IN WALKWAY AREAS, INCLUDING EXISTING CATCH BASINS, USE HEEL PROOF AND ADA GRATE. 1. ALL WORK INCLUDING GRADING, TRENCHING, COMPACTION, AND SUBBASES SHALL FOLLOW THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF 260 Sheridan Avenue, | Suite 150
ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT, THE PROJECT GEOTECHNICAL REPORT. Palo Ao, CA 94306
EXCEPTING LIABILITY ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF DESIGN PROFESSIONAL. (650) 517-5630, * Fax (650) 617-5932
2. AL ENGINEERED FILL SHALL HAVE A MINNUM RELATIVE COMPACTION PER PROJECT GEOTECHNICAL REPORT.
29. WHERE_OFF-SITE DRIVEWAY APPROACHES ARE TO BE CONSTRUCTED THE ON-SITE DRIVEWAY SHALL NOT BE CONSTRUCTED }1
UNTIL THE OFF-SITE IMPROVEMENTS ARE INSTALLED. THE ON-SITE DRIVENAY SHALL CONFORM TO THE COMPLETED OFF-SITE C/ 5 . -
. i DRIVEWAY. over cect SHEET NO ¢1.0
Ferrple: N R
Hamplon : FLANNING SUBMITTAL 314/ 2019
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- X% SLOPE AND DIRECTION

s GARAGE WALL OUTLINE
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INV. 52.11(5W)

e BUCKTHORN WA o
INV. 54.23(s€) e (80" RIGHT—OF—WAY) BUCKTHORN WAY v 5222
s2) A
N 54.2300E) . s247(se)
i s GRADING KEYNOTES
o > ST New 67 curp
R S e 3> INSTALL NEW CURB & GUTTER
£ acono +%
g 3> INSTALL NEW FLUSH CURR
o
- : : - - - = PR S <@ sweur o covvomu
S
¢ W“’“ e e @ NEW DRIVEWAY PER CITY OF MENLO PARK STANDARD
core W o - 5093 DETAIL CG-13. SEE DETAIL 3/C7.0.
| SR (NENLO PR 6%y 0ATUN)
: et
; & d S &> FLOW-THROUGH PLANTER. SEE DETAIL 1/C7.0
| s 3> SAWCUT & CONFORN TO NEAREST EXPANSION OR
| s
: H SRR SCORE NARK.
[ e
xisTdars\srrs £ IS
BUILDING [ R ARBORIST NOTE
! To/rsl s7.08 TRENCHING OR OTHER ACTVITIES WITHIN TREE
Blllsssssesd PROJECT ARBORIST REPORT BY ARBOR RESOURCES,
3 ‘}g{% = DATED 7/16/2018, SHOULD BE HAND-DUG OR BY
o ey HAND-MEANS AND PER ARBORIST REPORT
| 3558 £ RECOUNENDATIONS.
H s (E)RSI57.24 wg,:,:; 2
N CITY OF MENLO PARK UTILITY NOTE
N N b LATERAL CONNECTIONS TO OVERHEAD ELECTRIC, FIBER OPTIC AND
EXISTNG K B COMNUNICATIONS SHALL BE PLACED IN JOINT TRENCH. SEE MEP
BUILDING DRAWINGS.
To/Fs
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;} o el - i AT]
g, %, o
o | ¥ EXISTING
BUILDING
B 71 &
ssun
i 557
N 55.82000)
WY, 55.70(5%)
V. 55.81(5E)
o 10 200 30 40
SCALE 1° = 20°

)l HOHBACH-LEWIN, INC.
! STRUCTURAL & GIVIL ENGINEERS
DISCLANER: TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION, INCLUDING PROPERTY LINES, 260 Sheridon Avenue,  Suite 150
EXISTING GRADES, EXISTING. UTILTIES LOCATIONS, ETC., SHONN ARE FOR Falo_Alto, CA 94306
GENERAL REFERENCE BEEN PROVIDED BY OTHERS AND (850) 617-5930, Fax (850) 617-5932
HAVE NOT BEEN INDEPENDENTLY VERIFIED BY HOHBACH-LEWN, INC.
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UTILITY KEYNOTES

18"x18” CATCH BASIN

18”x18" OVERFLOW CATCH BASIN

18°x18" BUBBLER

TRENCH DRAIN

SEE MEP DRAWINGS FOR CONTINUATION
CONNECT TO EXISTING SANITARY SEWER
NANHOLE PER WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT
STANDARDS

DOUBLE DETECTOR CHECK ASSEMBLY
DONESTIC BACKFLOW PREVENTOR
FLOW-THROUGH PLANTER. SEE DETAIL 1/C7.0

BUBBLER PER CITY STANDARD DETAILS DR-7
AND DR-10. SEE DETAILS 4 AND 5/C7.0.

FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION

CONNECT TO EXISTING WATER PER CITY OF
MENLO PARK STANDARDS

DOWN TO GARAGE LEVEL PUMP. SEE NEP
DRAWINGS.

O @ DO VOOY VOOVOS

UP FRON GARAGE LEVEL PUNP. SEE MEP
DRAWINGS.

/ ARBORIST NOTE

TRENCHING OR OTHER ACTIVITIES WITHIN TREE.
PROTECTION ZONES (TPZ), AS OUTLINED IN THE PROJECT
ARBORIST REPORT BY ARBOR RESOURCES, DATED
7/16/2018, SHOULD BE HAND-DUG OR BY
HAND-MEANS AND PER ARBORIST REPORT
RECOMMENDATIONS.

CITY OF MENLO PARK NOTE
POTENTIAL UTILITY CONFLICTS

DURING THE DESIGN PHASE OF THE CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS, ALL
POTENTIAL UTILITY CONFLICTS WILL BE POTHOLED WITH ACTUAL
DEPTHS RECORDED ON THE IMPROVENENT PLANS SUBMITTED FOR CITY
REVIEW AND APPROVAL.

CITY OF MENLO PARK UTILITY NOTE

LATERAL CONNECTIONS TO OVERHEAD ELECTRIC, FIBER OPTIC AND
CONMUNICATIONS SHALL BE PLACED IN JOINT TRENCH. SEE MEP
DRAWINGS.

\\0“«\

HOHBACH-LEWIN, INC.

STRUCTURAL & CIVIL ENGINEERS

= | I
DISCLAINER: TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION, INCLUDING PROPERTY LINES, 260 Sheridon Avenue,  Suite 150

EXISTING GRADES, EXISTING. UTILTIES LOCATIONS, ETC., SHONN ARE FOR Palo Alto, CA 94308
GENERAL REFERENCE ONLY AND HAVE BEEN PROVIDED BY OTHERS AND (850) 617-5930, Fax (850) 617-5932
HAVE NOT BEEN INDEPENDENTLY VERIFIED BY HOHBACH-LEWN, INC.
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PiotDate: Mar 13,2019 - 3:58pm

BUCKTHORN WAY
(60" RIGHT— AY) BUCKTHORN WAY

LEGEND

PERVIOUS AREA (LANDSCAPE, C.3
TREATMENT, PERVIOUS PAVERS)

V) INPERVIOUS. AREAS

_
=
L
[=4
o
=z
=
=
S
—
[
Impervious and Pervious Area Comparison Storm Water Treatment Summary
Total Area I A Pervious Area___ Average Run-off Coefficient
Existing Conditions (sf) Percentage (%) Proposed Conditions (sf) Percentage (%) Net Change (sf) Drainage Management Area | sf ac sf ac s ac [ Provided Treatment Measure | Required Area or Depth of Treatment Measure | Provided Area or Depth of Treatment Measure|
[ DMA 1 25,749 0.591 24,683 0.567 1,066 0.024 0.867 604 sf* 682sf
I f 2531 [ w2 T 2512 [ ms [ aep | ovA2 568 | 0129 | 1038 | ooz | 460 | 0106 0247 el on e P
[pervious Surface 6479 e | 95% [ 22 [ 3aw | owa3 175 | oo | s | oon | 12w | oo o3 selt- ar Tinch Linch
[TotalProject Area a0 | I a0 | I ] — F P

BIORETENTION AREA

PERVIOUS PAVERS

DRAINAGE MANAGEMENT
1 AREA. (0U)

ROOF OUTLINE

[
L

* REQUIRED TREATMENT AREA USING THE COMBINATION FLOW AND VOLUNE DESIGN BASIS PER SAN MATEQ
COUNTYWIDE WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PROGRAM C.3 STORM WATER TECHNICAL GUIDANCE NANUAL,
JUNE 2016, VERSION 5.0

** REQUIRED STORAGE DEPTH USING THE VOLUME DESIGN BASIS PER SAN WATEO COUNTYWIDE WATER
POLLUTION PREVENTION PROGRAN C.3 STORM WATER TECHNICAL GUIDANCE MANUAL, JUNE 2015, VERSION
5.0.

% THE REMAINING AREA NOT WITHIN ONE OF THE DESIGNATED DRAINAGE MANAGEMENT AREAS ARE PERVIOUS

AREAS AND ARE “SELF-TREATING AREAS” PER SECTION 4. WATEQ COUNTYWIDE WATER POLLUTION
PREVENTION PROCRAM C.3 STORM WATER TECHNICAL GUIDANCE MANUAL, JUNE 2016, VERSION 5.0.

5torm Water Treatment F]an

)l HOHBACH-LEWIN, INC.
I STRUCTURAL & CIVIL ENGINEERS
DISCLAINER: TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION, INCLUDING PROPERTY LINES, 260 Sheridon Avenue,  Suite 150
EXISTING GRADES, EXISTING UTILITIES LOCATIONS, ETC., SHOWN ARE FOR
GENERAL REFERENCE ONLY AND HAVE BEEN PROVIDED BY OTHERS AND
HAVE NOT BEEN INDEPENDENTLY VERIFIED BY HOHBACH-LEWIN, INC.

SHEET NO. C5.0

Falo_Alto, CA 94306
(650) 617°5030, Fax (650) 617-5932
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OVERFLOW INLET
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&

" TYP. 8 AGGREGATE

x'\

8 No. 2 STONE:

4 ‘ STANDARD BUBBLER OUTLET

NOT T SCALE

2 ‘ FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROAD W/ PERMEABLE PAVERS SECTION

NOTTO SCALE
PL
)l HOHBACH-LEWIN, INC.
! STRUCTURAL & CIVIL ENGINEERS
260 Sheridon Avenue,  Suite 150
Palo Alto, CA 94306
NOT 10 SCALE (650) 617°5030, Fax (650) 617-5032
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SYMBOLS LIST

DRAWING INDEX

GENERAL NOTES

LIGHTING

POWER

RACEWAYS

[J ] UY-N CELING NOWED UGHT FITIRE [ZZ2  PANELBONRD, 277/480V, SURFACE WOUNTED — G ——  GROUND CONDLCTOR
IZZ2 PANELBOARD, 277/480V, FLUSH MOUNTED
CIX0  UGHT FINTURE, SURFACE OR - PENOANT MOUNTED M PANELBOARD, 120/208V, SURFACE MOWTED | ————— ‘CONDUT RUN CONCEALED IN SLAB, UNDERSLAB  OR
T SURFACE MOUNTED LINEAR WALL NOUNT FIXTURE BN PANELBOARD, 120/208V, FLUSH MOUNTED UNDERGROUND
o @ {2 ELECTRC NOTOR-CONNECTION, NUMBER INDICATES HORSEPOWER CONOUT RUN CONCEALED IN WALL OR CELNG
@ JUNCTION BOX, CELING NOUNTED
SURFACE WOUNT LED UIGHT FIXTURE ‘CONDUT HOMERUN, CONTINUOUS RUN TO PANEL OR
a ACE WOUNT LED [ JUNCTON BOX. FLUSH FLOOR WOUNTED e S
PO LD DIRCIOWL OR ACENT LGHT FIXTURE @1 FLUSH WALL NOUNTED JUNCTION 80X TN FLDGBLE UETALLC CONDUT
©  LED BOLLARD LIGHT FIXTURE ©1  DUPLEX COWENENCE OUTLET, +18" AFF UON
©  LED WAL UOUNTED SCONCE LGHT FXTURE ©S1  DOUBLE DUPLEX COWENENCE OUTLET, +18" AFF UON " CONOUT TURNED WP
e LED LNEAR UNDER-SURFACE MOUNTED LIGHT FIXTURE BH  ODUPLEX GFl OUTLET, +18" AFF UON. ————=*CONDUIT TURNED DOWN
EBH  DOUBLE DUPLEX GFI OUTLET, +18" AFF UON ‘GROSS WARKS ON BRANGH CRCUIT CONDUIT RUNS
@ LED SURFACE OUNTED WRAP LIGHT FXTLRE ©  SHOWG MAOUH COER OF OUTLET BOCHES NOEATE THE OUANTIY OF CONDUCTORS 45 TOLLOWS
® ©f zxnnmnz CEIING OR WALL MOUNTED, BH gy OULET ON EMERGENCY
CTIONAL ARROWS AS INDICATED
NEUTRAL CONDUGTOR{S)
@ SHONC OF AN FXURE INEES CONECTON B TELE/PONER POLE. INSTALL PER WFR'S INSTRUCTIONS. PHASE CONDUCTORS
@ T0 EMERGENCY SYSTEM -
"] ©1  SPECALTY OUTLET, 18" UON. TYPE AS NOTED ON PLANS 1. NO GROSS MARKS NDICKTES WO §12 ANG CONDUCTORS,
HEAVY DUTY FUSIBLE SAFETY SHICH o
40/60/3/460  =AVP FUSE/AMP SWTCH/POLES/NAX VOLTS 2. THREE TO S CROSS WARKS INDICATES THE  QUANTITY OF
#12 AWG CONDUCTORS, UON.
B4 PACGE CONROUER OR STRIER FURNSHED WEER
ANGTHER DMISION, INSTALLED AND WIRED UNDER THS DIVSIN. 3. SEVEN OR MORE CROSS NARKS INDICATES THE - QUANTITY
OF #10 AN CONDUCTORS, UON.
4 AL 120V, 20A HOUERUNS LONGER THAN 100" AND ALL
LIGHTING CONTROL CONVENTIONS 27, 20A HOMERUNS LONGER THAN 150" SHALL BE
10 NN
% onY o ° CONTANNG NOTES 5. DIPUSED RCEWNS N NEGHWCIL FOIS MO
S, POLE TOGGLE SWITCH, +45" UON, SUBSCRIPT INDICATES ROOMS' SHALL BE ENT OR RGD.
FATORES COMTROLED @ MECHANICAL EQUPVENT IDENTIFICATION TAG:
Sk KEY OPERATED TOGOLE SWTCH, +45™ UON & AR cromome T T GROUND BAR, REFER TO DETAL
: ECAUST AN
Sp  WALLEOX DIMER SWTCH, +45" UON [
HE HEAT VENT UNT
Sns  OCCUPANCY SENSOR SWITCH, WALL NOUNTED +45" UON " m
(@  STANDALONE OCCUPANCY SENSOR, CELING NOUNTED,
‘COMPLETE WITH SWITCHPACK. PROVIDE

‘CONTROL STATION IN LOCATION OTHER THAN WALL. MOUNT AS
DESCRIBED ON DRAWINGS.

ROOM CONTROLLER RELAY UNIT. NOUNT ABOVE CEILNG OR IN
LOCATIONS AS INDICATED ON DRAWNGS.
DAYLGHT SENSOR. LOCATE PER DRAWINGS.

CEILING MOUNTED OCCUPANCY SENSOR.

(5302) FEEDER TAG
EQUIPMENT TAG

[oo! SYMBOLS LSI umm NOTES, ABBREVIATIONS & DRAWING INDEX

EQUIPMENT cmsuIvs (CONTINUED)
E0.05 LIGHTING EQUIPMENT CUTSHEETS (CONTINUED)

AT
MFA
X

o5

§ESSSHEEY G=5° 992 3 3UE7ISA5 393993203 SRREEVEES 832AACERAA3358AR8 S

ALTERNATING CURRENT N UCHT
AR CONDTIONER TS NOT 10 SCALE
ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR /A or NA NOT APPUICABLE
ALTERVATE [
AVBIENT AR/FORCED AR N NOT N CONTRACT
N
A NATIONAL PURCHASING AGREEMENT
AUTOMATIC TRANSFER SWITCH o o
BORD P
e
CRCUIT BREAER " L o
oy [ POLYVINYL CHLORIDE
CELNG 4 POLE
cReuT T POTENTAL TRANSFORNER
CORGAL RECEPT  RECEPTACLE
‘CONTINUOUS REQD. QUIRED
‘CONTRAGTOR RY
‘CORRIDOR s
‘GATHODE RAY TUBE S/
<l SES SERVICE ENTRANCE SECTION
DATA GATHERNG PANEL SHT SHEET
DWUETER s STANDARD
DWGRAV W SwITCH
DRECT CURRENT SWED SWTCHBOARD
DISCONNECT
TEE TELEPHONE
il TELEPHONE TERMINAL BONRD.
DOUBLE POLE SINGLE THROW v TELEVISON
ouer DETECTOR I THE SWTTCH
v TAWPER PROOF
EUPTY CONDUIT 1 TRANSFORMER
AL g TRCAL
ELECIRCAL METALLC TUBNG © TNECLOCK
EMERGENCY
EMERGENCY POMER OFF UNDERFLOOR
SUSTNG DIDERGROUND PRAARY % UNDE
UNDERGROLND SECONDARY UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC
BECTIC WTER cO0LER & Docomino m
EPLOSIN ues. 'UNDERGROUND SECONDARY
FXTURE UoN UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED
FLEXBLE v vour
FLOR w VOLAPERE
FULL VOLTAGE, NON REVERSNG Vi VARUBLE FREQUENCY DRVE
‘GROUND FAULT INTERRUPTER w Y
‘GROUND FAULT PROTECTION v WATT OR WRE
GALVANZED w WEATHERPROOF
GROUND FAULT CURRENT TRANSFORVER AR TRANSFORUER
HOSPITAL. GRADE
HEATER
17

AVPERES. INTERRUPTING CURRENT

VOTOR CONTROL CENTER

MAN LUGS ONLY
AN CIRCUIT BREAKER

o

;-

MANTAN FRE RATNG OF ALL FLOORS, CELINGS AND WALLS
PENETRATED BY ELECTRICAL WORK

ELECTRICAL DEVICE OPENINGS IN FIRE RATED WALLS SHALL NOT

mvcmmnm{lrsamvmnmmm FOR
ALL UGHT AXTURES. PROVDE AXTURES/DRNERS SUTABLE FOR

SUPPLY CRCUIT VOLTAGE.

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, CONDUIT ROUTING, IF SHOWN,

ESOMALY IUGRAITC CONTRCTOR AL ATOUT RUNS T0
ST FELD cOMDKNS_ RO THE CORDMVION REQUREMENTS OF

UTLMES AND OTHER

WSTAL 40 COMECY A COUE SZED BSIAKD COPFER. SN
GROUNDING ALL BRANCH CRCUT

CONDUTTS. _ THESE

AL CROUTS SHAL WA A DEDGHTED MEUTRAL GOMOAX
OTHERWISE, FOR -(wnmcncwsﬁmlw[
(HANDLE- v()mcwumms

. SUBSCRIPTS ON SWITCH SYMBOLS (Sa) DENOTE THE FIXTURE
‘CONTROLLED.

VERRY THE EXCT LOGATEN OF AL EQUPUENT FURNGHED BY

OTHERS PRIOR TO DETERMINING CONDUT TERMINATION POINTS.

VERFY CELING TYPE FOR ALL FIXTURES. PROVDE - MOUNTING/TRIM

HARDNARE SUTABLE FOR CELING CONTANNG ~ EACH FIXTURE.

AL VNG 0OICES SUAL UE PERUMNONRY LIBELED WTH ML A0

CIRCUT NUNBER SUPPLYING

ALL EQUIPUENT TO BE INSTALLED OR PERNANENTLY CONNECTED

(HARDWIRED) SHALL BE LISTED, LABELED OR CERTIFIED BY A

NATIONALLY RECOGNZED TESTNG LABORATORY (NRTL)

mmx:mnrs.sma(s AND JUNCTION BOXES SHALL BE ~ COLOR
AND IDENTIFIED PER THE DIVSION 26 _ SPECFICATIONS.  ALL

uumcrmmvus ‘COVERPLATES SHALL BE RED IN

SYMBOLS LIST, GENERAL NOTES, ABBREVIATIONS & DRAWING INDEX

E0.01
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EXTERIOR LIGHTING FXTURES
MANUF-(MODEL] [ —qurruz I eowrgois— fwariacewargrr ] —~ vaurs— )
JUSTABLE LED FLOGD LGHT DIF CHST ALUVINUH FOUSIG o
€5 |CLEAR TEMPERED GLAGS LENS. OVAL BLAN SPREAD. 80 TLT. | ERCO'LIGHTSCAN" | caeanczs-32974.00 w0 | srcoLumens | crovommseie | s 1202rr
0° ROTATION, HIGHLIGHT
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CONSTRUCTION PHASES
(Work Hours 8AM — 5PM)

PHASE 1: Demolition = 15 days

PHASE 2: Excavation, grading, site prep = 38 days
PHASE 3: Trenching = 9 days

PHASE 4: Building interior/exterior = 165 days
PHASE 5: Final site and landscape = 10 days

TOTAL DURATION = 13 months

I Jobsite Trailer

TRUCK HAUL LOGISTICS

(Final plan submitted after contractor
selection and dirt disposal site determined)

During off haul and concrete truck access — traffic
control to be in place:
* Flagman
® Temp lane closure during non-peak
commute hours
¢ Sidewalk temp closure during construction,
excavation and concrete pours

Entrance and exit to be off El Camino Real (only

access point off property)
e Import 383 CY asphalt and soils

e Export 10,000 CY soils
® Export 245 CY demo for recycle

CONSTRUCTION PARKING

ALL PHASES: Construction fence

N PHASE 1 & 2: Construction parking
(small vehicles will use onsite ga-
rage for Phases 3 & 4)

W. L.BUTLER

Construction, Inc.
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ATTACHMENT |

Menlo Park EI Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan
Standards and Guidelines: Project Compliance Worksheet

PLN2016-00085 - 1704 El Camino Real — Hampton Inn hotel — June 2019

Section

Standard or

Guideline

Requirement

Evaluation

E.3.1 Development Intensity

E.3.1.01 Standard Business and Professional office N/A: Hotel Use
(inclusive of medical and dental office)
shall not exceed one half of the base
FAR or public benefit bonus FAR,
whichever is applicable.

E.3.1.02 Standard Medical and Dental office shall not N/A: Hotel Use
exceed one third of the base FAR or
public benefit bonus FAR, whichever is
applicable.

E.3.2 Height

E.3.2.01 Standard Roof-mounted mechanical equipment, Complies: Roof-mounted equipment are
solar panels, and similar equipment may | behind roof screen or parapet. Metal
exceed the maximum building height, but | roof screen at +40’-5". See building
shall be screened from view from section sheet A14, Roof Plan A7 & Line-
publicly-accessible spaces. of-Sight diagram A14.1.

NOTE: All heights taken from
average natural grade at 58.15’

E.3.2.02 Standard Vertical building projections such as Complies: Generally, parapets or top of
parapets and balcony railings may mansards are at 38’-4”. Mansard at
extend up to 4 feet beyond the maximum | main tower at facade with hip roof
facade height or the maximum building peaks at 41'-11"; Mansard at roof ridge
height, and shall be integrated into the at west side of building at 40’-3". See
design of the building. sheet A9.

E.3.2.03 Standard Rooftop elements that may need to Complies: Elevator tower hip roof peak

exceed the maximum building height due
to their function, such as stair and
elevator towers, shall not exceed 14 feet
beyond the maximum building height.
Such rooftop elements shall be
integrated into the design of the building.

is approximately 41-2". The northwest
stairs are under the building flat roof.
The northeast stairs are under a gable
with the ridge at about 39'-11". Main
tower roof peak is approximately 41’-
11". See sheet A9.

E.3.3 Setbacks and Projections within Setbacks

E.3.3.01

Standard

Front setback areas shall be developed
with sidewalks, plazas, and/or
landscaping as appropriate.

Complies: An arrival/entry motor court
with cobblestone style accent paving,
specimen plantings including 36” box
size Coast Live Oak & period light
fixtures. Motor court walks leads to
decorative gate & trellis which opens up
to an outdoor patio servicing the
breakfast room. Hotel entrance canopy
is integrated under the main tower. See
site plan, elevations, landscape
drawings LO.1 and LO.2, and E0.05
(period light fixture).

E.3.3.02

Standard

Parking shall not be permitted in front
setback areas.

Complies: All parking is located in an
underground parking garage.

E.3.3.03

Standard

In areas where no or a minimal setback
is required, limited setback for store or
lobby entry recesses shall not exceed a
maximum of 4-foot depth and a
maximum of 6-foot width.

N/A: sethacks are required in the ECR
NE-L sub-district.

Page 1 of 16



Menlo Park EI Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan
Standards and Guidelines: Project Compliance Worksheet

PLN2016-00085 - 1704 El Camino Real — Hampton Inn hotel — June 2019

Section Standard or Requirement Evaluation
Guideline

E.3.3.04 Standard In areas where no or a minimal setback N/A: setbacks are required in the ECR
is required, building projections, such as NE-L sub-district.
balconies, bay windows and dormer
windows, shall not project beyond a
maximum of 3 feet from the building face
into the sidewalk clear walking zone,
public right-of-way or public spaces,
provided they have a minimum 8-foot
vertical clearance above the sidewalk
clear walking zone, public right-of-way or
public space.

E.3.3.05 Standard In areas where setbacks are required, Complies: No balcony, bay window or
building projections, such as balconies, similar projection extends into a minimal
bay windows and dormer windows, at or | setback.
above the second habitable floor shall
not project beyond a maximum of 5 feet Note: Most roof eaves are less than 12"
from the building face into the setback beyond the exterior wall with exception
area. of the 3" floor, northwest corner where

city-requested embellished eave &
corbel design has been added. That
projection is about 3'-5” into the side
setback.

E.3.3.06 Standard The total area of all building projections Complies: There are no projections
shall not exceed 35% of the primary encroaching beyond the front facade
building facade area. Primary building setback lines.
fagade is the fagade built at the property
or setback line.

E.3.3.07 Standard Architectural projections like canopies, N/A: Project does not include canopies
awnings and signage shall not project or awnings.
beyond a maximum of 6 feet horizontally
from the building face at the property line
or at the minimum setback line. There
shall be a minimum of 8-foot vertical
clearance above the sidewalk, public
right-of-way or public space.

E.3.3.08 Standard No development activities may take N/A: Project location is not near San
place within the San Francisquito Creek Francisquito Creek.
bed, below the creek bank, or in the
riparian corridor.

E.3.4 Massing and Modulation

E.3.4.1 Building Breaks

E.3.4.1.01 | Standard The total of all building breaks shall not NA: PC provided direction that certain
exceed 25 percent of the primary fagade | Specific Plan requirements including
plane in a development. setbacks, building breaks and

modulations, normally required along
the front elevation, would not apply in
this case as the west elevation of the
parcel is located over 130 feet from the
El Camino Real right-of-way.

E.3.4.1.02 | Standard Building breaks shall be located at N/A: Building breaks not required for
ground level and extend the entire proposed development, please see
building height. evaluation for E.3.4.1.01.
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Section

Guideline

Standard or

Requirement

Evaluation

E.3.4.1.03

Standard

In all districts except the ECR-SE zoning
district, recesses that function as building
breaks shall have minimum dimensions
of 20 feet in width and depth and a
maximum dimension of 50 feet in width.
For the ECR-SE zoning district, recesses
that function as building breaks shall
have a minimum dimension of 60 feet in
width and 40 feet in depth.

N/A: Building breaks not required for
proposed development, please see
evaluation for E.3.4.1.01.

E.3.4.1.04

Standard

Building breaks shall be accompanied
with a major change in fenestration
pattern, material and color to have a
distinct treatment for each volume.

N/A: Building breaks not required for
proposed development, please see
evaluation for E.3.4.1.01.

E.3.4.1.05

Standard

In all districts except the ECR-SE zoning
district, building breaks shall be required
as shown in Table E3.

N/A: Building breaks not required for
proposed development, please see
evaluation for E.3.4.1.01.

E.3.4.1.06

Standard

In the ECR-SE zoning district, and
consistent with Table E4 the building
breaks shall:

e Comply with Figure E9;

e Be a minimum of 60 feet in width,
except where noted on Figure E9;

e Be a minimum of 120 feet in width at
Middle Avenue;

e Align with intersecting streets, except
for the area between Roble Avenue
and Middle Avenue;

e Be provided at least every 350 feet in
the area between Roble Avenue and
Middle Avenue; where properties
under different ownership coincide
with this measurement, the standard
side setbacks (10 to 25 feet) shall be
applied, resulting in an effective break
of between 20 to 50 feet.

e Extend through the entire building
height and depth at Live Oak Avenue,
Roble Avenue, Middle Avenue,
Partridge Avenue and Harvard
Avenue; and

¢ Include two publicly-accessible
building breaks at Middle Avenue and
Roble Avenue.

N/A: Project is located in the ECR NE-L
district.

E.3.4.1.07

Standard

In the ECR-SE zoning district, the Middle
Avenue break shall include vehicular
access; publicly-accessible open space
with seating, landscaping and shade;
retail and restaurant uses activating the
open space; and a pedestrian/bicycle
connection to Alma Street and Burgess
Park. The Roble Avenue break shall
include publicly-accessible open space
with seating, landscaping and shade.

N/A: Project is located in the ECR NE-L
district.
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Section Standard or
Guideline

Requirement

Evaluation

E.3.4.1.08 | Guideline

In the ECR-SE zoning district, the breaks
at Live Oak, Roble, Middle, Partridge and
Harvard Avenues may provide vehicular
access.

N/A: Project is located in the
district.

ECR NE-L

E.3.4.2 Facade Modulation

and Treatment

E.3.4.2.01 | Standard

Building fagades facing public rights-of-
way or public open spaces shall not
exceed 50 feet in length without a minor
building facade modulation. At a
minimum of every 50’ fagade length, the
minor vertical fagade modulation shall
be a minimum 2 feet deep by 5 feet wide
recess or a minimum 2-foot setback of
the building plane from the primary
building facade.

NA: PC provided direction that certain
Specific Plan requirements including
setbacks, building breaks and
modulations, normally required along
the front elevation, would not apply in
this case as the west elevation of the
parcel is located over 130 feet from the

El Camino Real right-of-way.

E.3.4.2.02 | Standard

Building facades facing public rights-of-
way or public open spaces shall not
exceed 100 feet in length without a major
building modulation. At a minimum of
every 100 feet of facade length, a major
vertical fagcade modulation shall be a
minimum of 6 feet deep by 20 feet wide
recess or a minimum of 6 feet setback of
building plane from primary building
facade for the full height of the building.
This standard applies to all districts
except ECR NE-L and ECR SW since
those two districts are required to provide
a building break at every 100 feet.

NA: PC provided direction that certain
Specific Plan requirements including
setbacks, building breaks and
modulations, normally required along
the front elevation, would not apply in
this case as the west elevation of the
parcel is located over 130 feet from the

El Camino Real right-of-way.

E.3.4.2.03 | Standard

In addition, the major building facade
modulation shall be accompanied with a
4-foot minimum height modulation and a
major change in fenestration pattern,
material and/or color.

NA: PC provided direction that certain
Specific Plan requirements including
setbacks, building breaks and
modulations, normally required along
the front elevation, would not apply in
this case as the west elevation of the
parcel is located over 130 feet from the

El Camino Real right-of-way.

E.3.4.2.04 | Guideline

Minor facade modulation may be
accompanied with a change in
fenestration pattern, and/or material,
and/or color, and/or height.

NA: PC provided direction that certain
Specific Plan requirements including
setbacks, building breaks and
modulations, normally required along
the front elevation, would not apply in
this case as the west elevation of the
parcel is located over 130 feet from the

El Camino Real right-of-way.

E.3.4.2.05 | Guideline

Buildings should consider sun shading
mechanisms, like overhangs, bris soleils
and clerestory lighting, as fagade
articulation strategies.

Complies: Windows are recessed 4” or
more back into the exterior walls and a
few windows have deep recesses such
as the entry, overhangs at cantilevered

bays and eaves with corbels

articulate the fagade. There is also a
trellis at the front facade. See elevation

sheets A9 thru A13.

also

E.3.4.3 Building Profile
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Section Standard or Requirement Evaluation
Guideline

E.3.4.3.01 | Standard The 45-degree building profile shall be Note: Applicable only at east elevation.
set at the minimum setback line to allow See sheet A14.1 for diagram
for flexibility and variation in building
facade height within a district.

E.3.4.3.02 | Standard Horizontal building and architectural Complies. All projections within the 45-
projections, like balconies, bay windows, | degree profile. See sheet A14.1
dormer windows, canopies, awnings, and
signage, beyond the 45-degree building
profile shall comply with the standards for
Building Setbacks & Projection within
Setbacks (E.3.3.04 to E.3.3.07) and shall
be integrated into the design of the
building.

E.3.4.3.03 | Standard Vertical building projections like parapets | Complies: No vertical building
and balcony railings shall not extend 4 projections extend above 45-degree
feet beyond the 45-degree building building profile line.
profile and shall be integrated into the
design of the building.

E.3.4.3.04 | Standard Rooftop elements that may need to Complies: No roof-top elements extend

extend beyond the 45-degree building
profile due to their function, such as stair
and elevator towers, shall be integrated
into the design of the building.

above the building profile line.

E.3.4.4 Upper Story Fagade Length

E.3.4.4.01

Standard

Building stories above the 38-foot facade
height shall have a maximum allowable
fagcade length of 175 feet along a public
right-of-way or public open space.

N/A

E.3.5 Ground Floor Treatm

ent, Entry and Commercial Frontage

Ground Floor Treatment

E.3.5.01 Standard The retail or commercial ground floor Note: Applicant is applying for a
shall be a minimum 15-foot floor-to-floor variance to second floor height in
height to allow natural light into the response to neighborhood group
space. requests. Second floor is set at 13’ high.

E.3.5.02 Standard Ground floor commercial buildings shall N/A: This requirement was previously
have a minimum of 50% transparency deemed not applicable for this project
(i.e., clear-glass windows) for retail uses, | but there is extensive glazing on the first
office uses and lobbies to enhance the floor facing ECR.
visual experience from the sidewalk and
street. Heavily tinted or mirrored glass
shall not be permitted.

E.3.5.03 Guideline Buildings should orient ground-floor retail | Complies: The entry is located at the
uses, entries and direct-access base of the tower form, which will be
residential units to the street. directly visible from the street.

E.3.5.04 Guideline Buildings should activate the street by Complies: The building is not adjacent

providing visually interesting and active
uses, such as retail and personal service
uses, in ground floors that face the
street. If office and residential uses are
provided, they should be enhanced with
landscaping and interesting building
design and materials.

to ECR —it's over 130" away, but street
facing/street visible areas of the project
would include lobby, office & gathering
room uses. Landscape design element
would include colorful plantings,
benches, special paving, and bicycle
racks.
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Section

Guideline

Standard or

Requirement

Evaluation

E.3.5.05

Guideline

For buildings where ground floor retail,
commercial or residential uses are not
desired or viable, other project-related
uses, such as a community room, fitness
center, daycare facility or sales center,
should be located at the ground floor to
activate the street.

Complies: Most public type functions
such as customer entry, gathering,
breakfast room & lounge face the street.

E.3.5.06

Guideline

Blank walls at ground floor are
discouraged and should be minimized.
When unavoidable, continuous lengths of
blank wall at the street should use other
appropriate measures such as
landscaping or artistic intervention, such
as murals.

N/A: No blank walls.

E.3.5.07

Guideline

Residential units located at ground level
should have their floors elevated a
minimum of 2 feet to a maximum of 4
feet above the finished grade sidewalk
for better transition and privacy, provided
that accessibility codes are met.

N/A: Hotel use.

E.3.5.08

Guideline

Architectural projections like canopies
and awnings should be integrated with
the ground floor and overall building
design to break up building mass, to add
visual interest to the building and provide
shelter and shade.

Complies: Main entrance has been
integrated under the main tower as a
large, arched opening with recessed
entry. Canopies and awnings would not
be necessary/consistent with tower
form.

Building Entries

E.3.5.09 Standard Building entries shall be oriented to a Complies: The main entrance is
public street or other public space. For oriented towards the EI Camino side
larger residential buildings with shared with the central lobby facing and visible
entries, the main entry shall be through from the street. The tower form is
prominent entry lobbies or central distinctive and marks the entry well
courtyards facing the street. From the even at the 130’ distance from the
street, these entries and courtyards street.
provide additional visual interest,
orientation and a sense of invitation.

E.3.5.10 Guideline Entries should be prominent and visually | Complies: The main entrance is at
distinctive from the rest of the facade ground level under the well scaled and
with creative use of scale, materials, turret shaped tower with arched
glazing, projecting or recessed forms, openings. Varied window opening
architectural details, color, and/or shapes and period details and lighting
awnings. enhance the entry form.

E.3.5.11 Guideline Multiple entries at street level are N/A: Hotel use.
encouraged where appropriate.

E.3.5.12 Guideline Ground floor residential units are N/A: Hotel use.
encouraged to have their entrance from
the street.

E.3.5.13 Guideline Stoops and entry steps from the street N/A: Hotel use.

are encouraged for individual unit entries
when compliant with applicable
accessibility codes. Stoops associated
with landscaping create inviting, usable
and visually attractive transitions from
private spaces to the street.
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Section Standard or Requirement Evaluation
Guideline

E.3.5.14 Guideline Building entries are allowed to be Complies: Entrance recessed under the
recessed from the primary building arched opening of main tower.
facade.

Commercial Frontage

E.3.5.15 Standard Commercial windows/storefronts shall be | Tentatively Complies: Commercial
recessed from the primary building windows/storefronts include first level
facade a minimum of 6 inches windows on ECR facing building facade.

Storefront system at facade is set back
from exterior wall under arched
openings, but dimension is not provided
to verify 6-inch recess from face of
stucco to face of window frame. Building
permit plans should include dimension.

E.3.5.16 Standard Retail frontage, whether ground floor or N/A: No retail proposed. Note: Ground
upper floor, shall have a minimum 50% floor “public spaces” have floor to ceiling
of the fagcade area transparent with clear | storefronts with clear glazing for
vision glass, not heavily tinted or highly approximately 50 percent of wall
mirrored glass. surface.

E.3.5.17 Guideline Storefront design should be consistent Complies: Storefront only on entry side
with the building’s overall design and at public & large group gathering type
contribute to establishing a well-defined spaces. Storefront arched openings and
ground floor for the fagade along streets. | fenestration pattern fit the Spanish style

building architecture well.

E.3.5.18 Guideline The distinction between individual Complies: Storefront fenestration fit well
storefronts, entire building facades and with building facades. Storefronts are
adjacent properties should be repetitive and are only varied at entry,
maintained. which would be consistent with the

program that does not include retail
uses.

E.3.5.19 Guideline Storefront elements such as windows, Complies. Storefronts have window
entrances and signage should provide division patterns consistent with the
clarity and lend interest to the facade. architecture and which add interest to

the facade.

E.3.5.20 Guideline Individual storefronts should have clearly | Complies: Storefront elements follow
defined bays. These bays should be no the strong nature of guestroom bays
greater than 20 feet in length. which are less than 20 feet. Arches &
Architectural elements, such as piers, recesses are employed for articulation.
recesses and projections help articulate
bays.

E.3.5.21 Guideline All individual retail uses should have N/A: hotel use.
direct access from the public sidewalk.

For larger retail tenants, entries should
occur at lengths at a maximum at every
50 feet, consistent with the typical lot size
in downtown.

E.3.5.22 Guideline Recessed doorways for retail uses N/A: hotel use.
should be a minimum of two feet in
depth. Recessed doorways provide
cover or shade, help identify the location
of store entrances, provide a clear area
for out-swinging doors and offer the
opportunity for interesting paving
patterns, signage and displays.
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Section Standard or Requirement Evaluation
Guideline

E.3.5.23 Guideline Storefronts should remain un-shuttered Complies: Per applicant: Lobby space
at night and provide clear views of are lit 24-hours daily but locked
interior spaces lit from within. If accessible by customer cardkey for
storefronts must be shuttered for security | security at late night hours, as required
reasons, the shutters should be located by hotel brand.
on the inside of the store windows and
allow for maximum visibility of the
interior.

E.3.5.24 Guideline Storefronts should not be completely N/A: hotel use.
obscured with display cases that prevent
customers and pedestrians from seeing
inside.

E.3.5.25 Guideline Signage should not be attached to Complies: Hotel brand signage at tower
storefront windows. & monument sign at ECR driveway

only.

E.3.6 Open Space

E.3.6.01 Standard Residential developments or Mixed Use N/A: hotel use.
developments with residential use shall
have a minimum of 100 square feet of
open space per unit created as common
open space or a minimum of 80 square
feet of open space per unit created as
private open space, where private open
space shall have a minimum dimension
of 6 feet by 6 feet. In case of a mix of
private and common open space, such
common open space shall be provided at
a ratio equal to 1.25 square feet for each
one square foot of private open space
that is not provided.

E.3.6.02 Standard Residential open space (whether in N/A: hotel use.
common or private areas) and accessible
open space above parking podiums up to
16 feet high shall count towards the
minimum open space requirement for the
development.

E.3.6.03 Guideline Private and/or common open spaces are | Complies: Public landscaped space
encouraged in all developments as part provided near entry at motor court &
of building modulation and articulation to | drop-off are accessible by public.
enhance building fagcade. Adjacent outdoor dining area also at

west fagcade. Private patios and pool
area common space for guests also
provided.

E.3.6.04 Guideline Private development should provide Complies: See above item.
accessible and usable common open
space for building occupants and/or the
general public.

E.3.6.05 Guideline For residential developments, private N/A: hotel use.

open space should be designed as an
extension of the indoor living area,
providing an area that is usable and has
some degree of privacy.
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Section Standard or Requirement Evaluation
Guideline

E.3.6.06 Guideline Landscaping in setback areas should Complies: Landscape design use
define and enhance pedestrian and open | combination of hardscape, planter
space areas. It should provide visual boxes & low walls to complement the
interest to streets and sidewalks, motor court, west outside patio & inner
particularly where building facades are courtyard pool deck. (See L0.1 and
long. L0.2)

E.3.6.07 Guideline Landscaping of private open spaces Complies: The plants selected will be
should be attractive, durable and low-to-medium water use. Trees from
drought-resistant. heritage replacement list using

evergreen & deciduous types. The other
category of plant species that occur on
the plans comply with C-3 bio swale
ordinance.

E.3.7 Parking, Service and Utilities

General Parking and Service Access

E.3.7.01 Guideline The location, number and width of Complies: All parking is located in an
parking and service entrances should be | underground parking garage with ramps
limited to minimize breaks in building set away from fagade to minimize their
design, sidewalk curb cuts and potential visual impact.
conflicts with streetscape elements.

E.3.7.02 Guideline In order to minimize curb cuts, shared Complies: No new curb cuts.
entrances for both retail and residential
use are encouraged. In shared entrance
conditions, secure access for residential
parking should be provided.

E.3.7.03 Guideline When feasible, service access and Complies: Trash service from
loading docks should be located on alley/driveway off Buckthorn Way.
secondary streets or alleys and to the Applicant indicates delivery vehicles will
rear of the building. be limited to vans that will fit in the

garage space. Deliveries would be
scheduled during least busy hours.

E.3.7.04 Guideline The size and pattern of loading dock Complies: No above ground loading
entrances and doors should be docks. See above item.
integrated with the overall building
design.

E.3.7.05 Guideline Loading docks should be screened from Complies: No above ground loading
public ways and adjacent properties to docks. See above item.
the greatest extent possible. In particular,
buildings that directly adjoin residential
properties should limit the potential for
loading-related impacts, such as noise.

Where possible, loading docks should be
internal to the building envelope and
equipped with closable doors. For all
locations, loading areas should be kept
clean.

E.3.7.06 Guideline Surface parking should be visually Complies: No above grade parking
attractive, address security and safety proposed.
concerns, retain existing mature trees
and incorporate canopy trees for shade.

See Section D.5 for more compete
guidelines regarding landscaping in
parking areas.

Utilities

E.3.7.07 Guideline All utilities in conjunction with new Complies: All new utilities will be
residential and commercial development | designed as underground utilities.
should be placed underground.

Page 9 of 16



110

Menlo Park EI Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan
Standards and Guidelines: Project Compliance Worksheet

PLN2016-00085 - 1704 El Camino Real — Hampton Inn hotel — June 2019

Section Standard or Requirement Evaluation
Guideline
E.3.7.08 Guideline Above ground meters, boxes and other Tentatively Complies: Above ground

utility equipment should be screened
from public view through use of
landscaping or by integrating into the
overall building design.

utility boxes would be screened by
landscaping and/or fences. Transformer
located near rear setback line at side lot
line per LO.1. Back flow device shown
adjacent to transformer on C4.0. These
locations have limited visibility to the
public or neighboring property.

Parking Garages

E.3.7.09

Standard

To promote the use of bicycles, secure
bicycle parking shall be provided at the
street level of public parking garages.
Bicycle parking is also discussed in more
detail in Section F.5 “Bicycle Storage
Standards and Guidelines.”

Complies: Bicycle parking at motor
court & parking garage.

E.3.7.10

Guideline

Parking garages on downtown parking
plazas should avoid monolithic massing
by employing change in fagade rhythm,
materials and/or color.

N/A: Not part of a parking plaza.

E.3.7.11

Guideline

To minimize or eliminate their visibility
and impact from the street and other
significant public spaces, parking
garages should be underground,
wrapped by other uses (i.e. parking
podium within a development) and/or
screened from view through architectural
and/or landscape treatment.

Complies: Parking is located
underground.

E.3.7.12

Guideline

Whether free-standing or incorporated
into overall building design, garage
facades should be designed with a
modulated system of vertical openings
and pilasters, with design attention to an
overall building fagade that fits
comfortably and compatibly into the
pattern, articulation, scale and massing
of surrounding building character.

N/A: Parking located underground.

E.3.7.13

Guideline

Shared parking is encouraged where
feasible to minimize space needs, and it
is effectively codified through the plan’s
off-street parking standards and
allowance for shared parking studies.

N/A: Hotel use only.

E.3.7.14

Guideline

A parking garage roof should be
approached as a usable surface and an
opportunity for sustainable strategies,
such as installment of a green roof, solar
panels or other measures that minimize
the heat island effect.

N/A: Hotel on top of agarage.

E.3.8 Sustainable Practices

Overall Standards

E.3.8.01

Standard

Unless the Specific Plan area is explicitly
exempted, all citywide sustainability
codes or requirements shall apply.

Tentatively Complies: LEED Silver
required as condition of approval.

Overall Guidelines
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Section Standard or Requirement Evaluation
Guideline
E.3.8.02 Guideline Because green building standards are Complies: City task.

constantly evolving, the requirements in
this section should be reviewed and
updated on a regular basis of at least
every two years.

Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) Standards
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E.3.8.03

Standard

Development shall achieve LEED
certification, at Silver level or higher, or a
LEED Silver equivalent standard for the
project types listed below. For LEED
certification, the applicable standards
include LEED New Construction; LEED
Core and Shell; LEED New Homes;
LEED Schools; and LEED Commercial
Interiors. Attainment shall be achieved
through LEED certification or through a
City-approved outside auditor for those
projects pursing a LEED equivalent
standard. The requirements, process and
applicable fees for an outside auditor
program shall be established by the City
and shall be reviewed and updated on a
regular basis.

LEED certification or equivalent

standard, at a Silver lever or higher, shall

be required for:

e Newly constructed residential
buildings of Group R (single-family,
duplex and multi-family);

e Newly constructed commercial
buildings of Group B (occupancies
including among others office,
professional and service type
transactions) and Group M
(occupancies including among
others display or sale of
merchandise such as department
stores, retail stores, wholesale
stores, markets and sales rooms)
that are 5,000 gross square feet or
more;

¢ New first-time build-outs of
commercial interiors that are 20,000
gross square feet or more in
buildings of Group B and M
occupancies; and

e  Major alterations that are 20,000
gross square feet or more in existing
buildings of Group B, M and R
occupancies, where interior finishes
are removed and significant
upgrades to structural and
mechanical, electrical and/or
plumbing systems are proposed.

All residential and/or mixed use

developments of sufficient size to require

LEED certification or equivalent standard

under the Specific Plan shall install one

dedicated electric vehicle/plug-in hybrid
electric vehicle recharging station for
every 20 residential parking spaces
provided. Per the Climate Action Plan the
complying applicant could receive
incentives, such as streamlined permit

Tentatively Complies: See E.3.01.
Future documentation required per
conditions of approval.
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Section

Standard or
Guideline

Requirement

Evaluation

processing, fee discounts, or design
templates.

Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) Guidelines

E.3.8.04

Guideline

The development of larger projects
allows for more comprehensive
sustainability planning and design, such
as efficiency in water use, stormwater
management, renewable energy sources
and carbon reduction features. A larger
development project is defined as one
with two or more buildings on a lot one
acre or larger in size. Such development
projects should have sustainability
requirements and GHG reduction targets
that address neighborhood planning, in
addition to the sustainability
requirements for individual buildings (See
Standard E.3.8.03 above). These should
include being certified or equivalently
verified at a LEED-ND (neighborhood
development), Silver level or higher, and
mandating a phased reduction of GHG
emissions over a period of time as
prescribed in the 2030 Challenge.

The sustainable guidelines listed below
are also relevant to the project area.
They relate to but do not replace LEED
certification or equivalent standard rating
requirements.

N/A: hotel use only.

Building Design Guidelines

E.3.8.05 Guideline Buildings should incorporate narrow floor | Complies: Floor plate is as narrow as
plates to allow natural light deeper into can be fitted in a double-loaded hotel
the interior. corridor. Large floor-to-ceiling windows

at front facade.

E.3.8.06 Guideline Buildings should reduce use of daytime Complies: Guest room windows, 4.5’
artificial lighting through design elements, | wide by 6’ tall, appear well suited to this
such as bigger wall openings, light objective. Storefront windows at
shelves, clerestory lighting, skylights, and | common spaces are large.
translucent wall materials.

E.3.8.07 Guideline Buildings should allow for flexibility to Complies: Period details prevent overly

regulate the amount of direct sunlight into
the interiors. Louvered wall openings or
shading devices like bris soleils help
control solar gain and check overheating.
Bris soleils, which are permanent sun-
shading elements, extend from the sun-
facing facade of a building, in the form of
horizontal or vertical projections
depending on sun orientation, to cut out
the sun’s direct rays, help protect
windows from excessive solar light and
heat and reduce glare within.

deep roof eaves for shading. Windows
are recessed back into exterior walls.
Some cantilevered bays provided
vertical & horizontal shading.
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Section Standard or Requirement Evaluation
Guideline

E.3.8.08 Guideline Where appropriate, buildings should Complies: Landscape Design
incorporate arcades, trellis and incorporating these elements are shown
appropriate tree planting to screen and in the landscape drawings. Trees are
mitigate south and west sun exposure sufficiently large to provide shading.
during summer. This guideline would not
apply to downtown, the station area and
the west side of El Camino Real where
buildings have a narrower setback and
street trees provide shade.

E.3.8.09 Guideline Operable windows are encouraged in Complies: Operable sliding windows at
new buildings for natural ventilation. guest rooms are building code dictated.

Hotel HVAC system will have sensor to
regulate HVAC when sliding glass
windows are open.

E.3.8.10 Guideline To maximize use of solar energy, Complies: Partial solar system.
buildings should consider integrating Per Applicant: Due to small roof area,
photovoltaic panels on roofs. where much will be used for required

HVAC units & other rooftop equipment,
the remaining areas may only allow a
very limited number of PV panels for hot
water heating.

E.3.8.11 Guideline Inclusion of recycling centers in kitchen Complies:
facilities of commercial and residential
buildings shall be encouraged. The Per Applicant: Hotel brand has internal
minimum size of recycling centers in recycling requirements plus trash
commercial buildings should be 20 cubic | enclosure can accommodate three 2-cu.
feet (48 inches wide x 30 inches deep x yd. bins or more if smaller bins.

24 inches high) to provide for garbage
and recyclable materials.

Stormwater and Wastewater Management Guidelines

E.3.8.12 Guideline Buildings should incorporate intensive or | TBD: The third-floor deck at the rear of
extensive green roofs in their design. the building has a trellis with vines that
Green roofs harvest rain water that can could provide some shading to the roof
be recycled for plant irrigation or for and help reduce heat island effect.
some domestic uses. Green roofs are
also effective in cutting-back on the Per Applicant: As design is developed,
cooling load of the air-conditioning we will evaluate if enough roof area is
system of the building and reducing the available to integrate green roof
heat island effect from the roof surface. elements.

E.3.8.13 Guideline Projects should use porous material on Tentatively Complies: Paving material

driveways and parking lots to minimize
stormwater run-off from paved surfaces.

imagers are noted on L1.0 as “Pavers
or similar stamped and colored
concrete”. Paving at the rear driveway,
however, is noted as “Permeable paver
surface” at the emergency access drive.

Per Applicant: Turf block paving may be
used in the emergency vehicle access
way off Buckthorn Way.

Landscaping Guidelines

E.3.8.14

Guideline

Planting plans should support passive
heating and cooling of buildings and
outdoor spaces.

Complies: Landscape Design
incorporates evergreen & deciduous
tree shading, including large, fast
growing trees planted at 36 inch box
size (Fern Pine, Marina Madrone, and
Saratoga Laurel Cherry).
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Menlo Park EI Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan
Standards and Guidelines: Project Compliance Worksheet

PLN2016-00085 - 1704 El Camino Real — Hampton Inn hotel — June 2019

Section Standard or Requirement Evaluation
Guideline
E.3.8.15 Guideline Regional native and drought resistant Complies: Regional native and/or
plant species are encouraged as planting | drought resistant plant palette includes
material. Coast Live Oak, Swan Hill Olive, and
Marina Madrone.
E.3.8.16 Guideline Provision of efficient irrigation system is Complies: See landscape L0.2 drawing.

recommended, consistent with the City's
Municipal Code Chapter 12.44 "Water-
Efficient Landscaping".

The irrigation plan will comply with
Ordinance 12.44 using drip irrigation
and smart weather-based irrigation
controller.

Lighting Standards

E.3.8.17 Standard Exterior lighting fixtures shall use fixtures | Complies: See lighting plans for specific
with low cut-off angles, appropriately fixture information.
positioned, to minimize glare into
dwelling units and light pollution into the
night sky.
E.3.8.18 Standard Lighting in parking garages shall be Complies: Underground parking with

screened and controlled so as not to
disturb surrounding properties, but shall
ensure adequate public security.

hotel brand required lighting levels will
not be seen beyond the garage area.

Lighting Guidelines

E.3.8.19 Guideline Energy-efficient and color-balanced Complies: Bollard lighting, downlights at
outdoor lighting, at the lowest lighting egress door soffits. Building up-lighting
levels possible, are encouraged to to accent building at entry side, with
provide for safe pedestrian and auto cutoff angles to prevent spill-over
circulation. beyond building surfaces. See lighting

plan.

E.3.8.20 Guideline Improvements should use ENERGY Tentatively Complies: Where
STAR-qualified fixtures to reduce a practicable Energy Star equipment will
building’s energy consumption. be used as it relates to compliance with

LEED/CalGreen code/Title-24
requirements.

E.3.8.21 Guideline Installation of high-efficiency lighting Tentatively Complies: These are part of

systems with advanced lighting control,
including motion sensors tied to
dimmable lighting controls or lighting
controlled by timers set to turn off at the
earliest practicable hour, are
recommended.

the LEED/CalGreen code/Title-24
requirements.

Green Building Material Guidelines

E.3.8.22

Guideline

The reuse and recycle of construction
and demolition materials is
recommended. The use of demolition
materials as a base course for a parking
lot keeps materials out of landfills and
reduces costs.

Tentatively Complies:

Per Applicant: Very limited use of new
asphalt concrete for this project.
Engineered soil may be required under
garage foundation. To the extent
possible, re-used or recycled material
will be incorporated subject to soils
engineer’s review.
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Menlo Park EI Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan
Standards and Guidelines: Project Compliance Worksheet

PLN2016-00085 - 1704 El Camino Real — Hampton Inn hotel — June 2019

Section Standard or Requirement Evaluation
Guideline
E.3.8.23 Guideline The use of products with identifiable Tentatively Complies:
recycled content, including post-industrial
content with a preference for post- Per Applicant: Will be used to comply
consumer content, are encouraged. with LEED requirements.
E.3.8.24 Guideline Building materials, components, and Tentatively Complies:
systems found locally or regionally
should be used, thereby saving energy Per Applicant: Will be used to comply
and resources in transportation. with LEED requirements. Preference
will be given to local or regional sourced
materials.
E.3.8.25 Guideline A design with adequate space to Complies:
facilitate recycling collection and to
incorporate a solid waste management Per Applicant: Hotel brand & trash-
program, preventing waste generation, is | hauling company recycling program.
recommended. Trash enclosure space for additional re-
cycling bins.
E.3.8.26 Guideline The use of material from renewable Tentatively Complies:
sources is encouraged.
Per Applicant: Will be used to comply
with LEED requirements.
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1.0 INTRODUCTION

A Hampton Inn hotel is planned for development at 1704 El Camino Real, Menlo Park,
currently occupied by Red Cottage Inn & Suites. The property owner, Mr. Sagar Patel, has
retained me to prepare this Arborist Report to consider the current project design, and
specific tasks executed are as follows:
= Jdentify trees originating either on-site with a diameter of >6 inches at 54 inches
above grade, or offsite and are defined as a "heritage tree"' pursuant to the Menlo
Park Municipal Code. Four non-heritage trees located immediately adjacent to the
pedestrian walkway proposed between the hotel and El Camino Real were also
included. Site visits were performed on various dates in 2016, 2017 and 2018.
= Revisit the site on 3/8/19 to ascertain conditions of onsite trees and proposed heritage
tree replacements.
= Review the most recent civil set, architectural and landscape plan sets, dated January
2019, to analyze and identify potential impacts.
* Measure each tree’s trunk diameter in accordance with Section 13.24.020 of the
Menlo Park Municipal Code; all diameters are rounded to the nearest inch.
= Ascertain each tree’s condition and suitability for preservation.
= Document pertinent and observed health, structural and adjacent hardscape issues.
= Obtain photos (on 7/10/18 for #25 thru 28, and 11/7/16 and 10/19/17 for all others).
= Assign numbers in a sequential pattern to each inventoried tree, and show on a copy
of a tree disposition plan (not dated or titled); see Exhibit B.
= Affix round metal tags with corresponding numbers to each onsite tree, or in the case
of heritage offsite ones, on fencing” adjacent to their trunks.
* Provide protection measures to help mitigate or avoid impacts to trees being retained.
= Prepare a written report that presents the aforementioned information, and submit via

email as a PDF document (updated from my prior 9/14/18 report).

A "heritage tree" for this project is defined as follows per Section 13.24.020 of the Menlo Park Municipal
Code: any California native oak >12' tall, and having a trunk diameter >10" at 54" above grade; [2] any
other tree >12' tall, and having a trunk diameter >15" at 54" above grade; and [3] any multi-trunk tree >12'
tall and having a trunk diameter >10" (native oaks) or >15" (all others) where trunks divide.

For offsite heritage trees, tags are affixed to fencing for all but #6 (due to a shed occupying space near its
trunk). Also, tags are not attached to the four small offsite trees #25 thru 28.

Hampton Inn; 1704 El Camino Real, Menlo Park Page 1 of 16
Mr. Sagar Patel, Property Owner
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2.0 TREE COUNT AND COMPOSITION

Twenty (20) trees of eight various species were inventoried for this report. They are
sequentially numbered 1-4, 6-10, 13-18 and 25—29,3 and the table below identifies their

names, assigned numbers, counts and overall percentages.

°

NAME TREE NUMBER(S) COUNT T/S'I(')A:L
Coast live oak 6 thru 9 4 20%
Coast redwood 10, 15 2 10%
European white birch 3thrub 3 15%
Glossy privet 16 1 5%
Jacaranda 25 thru 28 4 20%
Lemon bottlebrush 17,18 2 10%
Monterey pine 13, 14 2 10%
Valley oak 1,2 2 10%

Total 20 100%

Specific information regarding each tree is presented within the table in Exhibit A. The
trees’ numbers and approximate locations can be viewed on the site map in Exhibit B, and
photographs are presented in Exhibit C. Detailed information regarding valley oak #2 is
provided within the report in Exhibit D (by Mr. Straun Edwards of Trees 360 Degrees).

The break in sequential numbering is due to the following: oak #5 fell over during a significant storm
event; one mostly dead Monterey pine #12 was removed in 2018; and another reportedly dead Monterey
pine #11 was recently removed (and on 11/30/17, I observed it was in decline and highly infested with bark
beetles, both conditions presenting an imminent demise in the near future).

Hampton Inn; 1704 El Camino Real, Menlo Park Page 2 of 16
Mr. Sagar Patel, Property Owner
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Eleven (11) trees are categorized as heritage pursuant to either the City of Menlo Park

Municipal Code or staff; they include #1, 2, 6-10 and 13-16.

Ten (10) trees originate offsite and have roots and/or canopies exposed to potential impacts
during site development; they include #6-10, 15 and 25-28; of these, #6-10 and 15 are
defined as heritage trees, and #25-28 as non-heritage. Trees #6-10 originate from, and form
a row along the neighboring southern property. Tree #15 originates from a neighboring
eastern property, its trunk's base abutting or being inches from an adjacent wall. Trees #25
thru 28 are small Jacarandas within parking lot planters aligning the current entry and

future pedestrian walkway between the hotel and El Camino Real.

Nine (9) previous trees inventoried for my initial prior report no longer exist; they were
assigned and tagged as #5, 11, 12 and 19-24, and their locations are shown on the map in
Exhibit B (in black). Information regarding each is presented below.
= Tree #5, coast live oak, originated offsite and reportedly fell during a significant
storm event in February 2017 (photos are presented in Exhibit C).
= Tree #11, Monterey pine, reportedly died and was subsequently removed; my
observations on 11/30/17 reveal it had already declined and was highly infested with
bark beetles, both conditions warranting my recommendation for its removal
regardless of future development (as its demise in the near future was imminent).
= Tree #12, also a Monterey pine, was nearly dead and its demise imminent; it required
removal for safety reasons, and photos are provided in Exhibit C.
» Trees #19 thru 24, Hollywood junipers, aligned the drive aisle's east side, between
Buckthorn Way and the site; they were formed by multiple trunks originating at

grade, diameters ranging from 4 to 13 inches.

Hampton Inn; 1704 El Camino Real, Menlo Park Page 3 of 16
Mr. Sagar Patel, Property Owner
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3.0 SUITABILITY FOR TREE PRESERVATION

Each tree has been assigned either a “good,” “moderate” or “low” suitability for
preservation rating as a means to cumulatively measure its existing health (e.g. live crown
ratio, vigor, shoot growth, foliage density and color, etc.); structural integrity (e.g. limb
and trunk strength, taper, defects, root crown, etc.); anticipated life span; remaining life
expectancy; prognosis; location; size; particular species; tolerance to construction impacts;
growing space; and safety to property and persons within striking distance. Descriptions
of these ratings are presented below; the good category is comprised of 1 tree (or 5%), the

moderate category 13 (or 65%), and the low category 6 (or 30%).

Good: Applies to #1.

This valley oak appears relatively healthy and structurally stable; has no apparent,
significant health issues or structural defects; presents a good potential for contributing
long-term to the site; and seemingly requires only periodic or regular care and monitoring
to maintain its longevity and structural integrity. More detailed analysis could benefit in
understanding the internal composition, such as the extent of internal decay where two
large wounds are located above the trunk, and the presence of any harmful wood decaying

organisms following a root collar clearance and examination.

Moderate: Applies to #3, 4, 6-10, 14-17, 28 and 29.
These trees contribute to the site, but at levels less than those assigned a good suitability;
might have health and/or structural issues which may or may not be reasonably addressed

and properly mitigated; and frequent care is typically required for their remaining lifespan.

Low: Applies to #2, 13, 18 and 25-27.

These trees have significantly weak structures, and are expected to worsen regardless of
tree care measures employed (i.e. beyond likely recovery). As a general guideline, these
trees are not suitable for incorporating into the future landscape, and removal at this time is

the appropriate action regardless of future development.

Hampton Inn; 1704 El Camino Real, Menlo Park Page 4 of 16
Mr. Sagar Patel, Property Owner
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4.0 REVIEW OF POTENTIAL IMPACTS

4.1 Tree Disposition Summary

Implementation of the proposed plans results in the following tree disposition:
=  Remove (10 in total): #1-4, 13, 14, 16-18 and 29. Accounts for all onsite trees.
= Retain (10 in total): #6-10, 15 and 25-28. Accounts for all offsite trees.

More detailed discussion regarding the trees and their proposed disposition is presented in

Sections 4.2 and 4.3. Note all directional references consider project north.

4.2 Remove

Tree #1 is the large valley oak situated at the property's front entry. Its removal is required
for reasons such as grading and drainage; very close proximity to the garage wall; and its
trunk being within the proposed motor court serving as the vehicle entry and exit,

including for the underground garage.

Tree #2 is the large valley oak located within the existing hotel's courtyard, as well as the
footprint of the future one. Detailed information regarding its structurally deficient and

unsafe condition is described in the 2/14/16 report by Mr. Straun Edwards; see Exhibit D.

Trees #3, 4 and 29 are small birch at the front, southwest section of the existing hotel, and
all three require removal to allow construction of the underground garage, hotel, and

grading and drainage features.

Trees #13 and 14 are large and tall Monterey pines situated adjacent to another along the
northern boundary, and require removal to accommodate hotel construction, excavation for
the underground garage, site grading and installing drainage features (including a flow-thru
planter). Both are infested by red turpentine bark beetles, and contain heavy limbs
presenting a probable risk of breaking in the foreseeable future onto high value targets
below. For all practical purposes, they have outgrown their location, and present a
progressive risk to persons and property below. They also exhibit symptoms of declining
(on 11/30/17), a condition ultimately leading to irreparable levels, such as occurred to the

prior adjacent and removed pines #11 and 12.

Hampton Inn; 1704 El Camino Real, Menlo Park Page 5 of 16
Mr. Sagar Patel, Property Owner
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Trees #16 thru 18 are ornamental trees aligning the existing parking lot's north side; #16 is
a privet, and #17 and 18 are bottlebrush. Both are within or at the very edge of the future

underground garage.

4.3 Retain in Place
Further information regarding Tree Protection Zones (TPZs) for retained trees is specified

within Section 5.1 of this report.

Oaks #6 thru 9

These four oaks are situated along the neighboring southern property, their trunks aligning
and setback from the fence at the following respective distances: 8.5, 9.5, 9.5 and 4 feet
(measured from the neighboring property, rounded to the nearest half-of-a-foot). Site
grading is proposed up to the property line, which along these trees is roughly 1-foot inside

(i.e. towards) the neighboring property from the existing fence.

Based on the trees' locations, sizes, rooting structures and growth habits, ground
disturbance will occur a sufficient distance from #7 and 8, at a close distance to #6, and at
a much greater distance to #9. Measures presented within the following paragraphs, as
well as within the next section of this report, will help minimize impacts and promote the

trees' survival and longevity.

Oaks #6 and 7. The new garage wall is planned at 11 and 12 feet from their trunks,

respectively. To minimize root loss, shoring for the garage wall should be utilized and
require ground disturbance® no farther the 24 inches beyond the garage wall, hence
establishing the soil cut respectively at 9 and 10 feet their trunks. Additionally, the
following should be performed beneath the trees' canopies before any mechanical grading
occurs, and applicable to all impacted offsite trees: manually dig a 1-foot wide trench
along the edge of shoring down to an 18-inch depth; cleanly severe all roots >1-inch in
diameter along the tree side; and apply water daily along the soil cut (light application to
keep the exposed root ends moist but to not oversaturate the ground) for a period of time
until the void is backfilled. An intensive watering program is also needed to help mitigate

root loss and improve chances for tree survival beyond site development.

* Ground disturbance shall mean and consider, but is not necessarily limited to, sub- and overexcavation;
drilling; trenching for utilities, drainage, irrigation, and lighting; and compaction for constructing the new
building/underground garage (and ensure this aligns with the structural and soil engineers' reports).

Hampton Inn; 1704 El Camino Real, Menlo Park Page 6 of 16
Mr. Sagar Patel, Property Owner
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Oak #8. Confine all ground disturbance for shoring of the underground garage, to 24
inches from the garage wall where within 20 feet from its trunk. Also applicable beneath
its canopy includes recommendations for trees #6 and 7 regarding hand-digging and root

pruning prior to mechanical excavation.

Oak #9. The current proposal adheres to recommendations presented by me for developing
near this tree. For the section of walk aligning the staircase (portion beyond the wall),
overexcavation must not exceed 6 inches from its edge, and all work manually performed
under supervision by the project arborist. Also, confining ground disturbance to within 24
inches from the garage wall will also minimize root loss, as reflected on the plans
(including the storm drain). Also applicable beneath its canopy includes recommendations

for trees #6 and 7 regarding hand-digging and root pruning prior to mechanical excavation.

Pruning for #8 and 9. Regarding potential impacts to canopies of #8 and 9, both require

pruning to achieve both building and construction scaffolding clearance; my best
estimation of total canopy lost is roughly 10-percent for #8 and 15-percent for #9.
Provided the work is highly selective so all or most cuts focus along canopy edges versus
at the trunks, executed by an experienced and licensed tree service, and performed under
the direct supervision of an ISA certified arborist, the trees' existing shapes and structural

forms will remain intact, and impacted at only minor or highly tolerable levels.

Redwood #10

This redwood is also located on the southern neighboring property, its trunk being
approximately 5 feet from the property line, immediately adjacent to the southeast property
corner. The nearest impact includes a flow-thru planter proposed 15 feet from its trunk; at
this distance, and with the understanding the wall shall not require overexcavation,
subexcavation, or compaction beyond the section of wall 25 feet from the trunk, impacts
can be regarded as fairly tolerable. Opportunity to reduce the impact would include
omitting a section of the flow-thru planter and associated storm drain lines for a 20-foot
setback. Also applicable within the 25 feet from the trunk include hand-digging prior to
excavation occurring for the section of flow-thru planter and walkway around staircase

before mechanical excavation occurs.

Hampton Inn; 1704 El Camino Real, Menlo Park Page 7 of 16
Mr. Sagar Patel, Property Owner
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Redwood #15

This large redwood originates from the neighboring eastern property, its trunk abutting or
within inches from the property line, and its large roots grow into the site, forming large
asphalt mounds and depressions. Exploratory digging below the tallest mound revealed
small roots underlying the asphalt surface, and a large root 12 inches below ground (i.e. 12
inches beneath bottom of asphalt surface). Based on these observations, key guidelines for
designing the future EVA are as follows: excavation and trenching required for base
material, edging, forms, EVA surface, curb, storm drains, inlets, etc. do not exceed 6
inches below the soil high point where exploratory digging occurred (possibly a 4-inch
max for the area), and roots encountered with diameters >2 inches shall be retained and not

damaged (base material would simply be placed around any encountered root of this size).

Setbacks where the above guidelines apply include up to the proposed sewer and storm
drain lines and 25 feet in all other directions from the trunk. Ultilities and services not
shown, such as routes for electrical, gas, telecommunications, irrigation, lighting, etc. also
need conforming with the setbacks, and potentially installed in a joint trench, directionally-
bored by at least 4 feet deep, and access pits established beyond the setbacks.
Furthermore, direct compaction of the subgrade within the redwood's TPZ must be
avoided; Tensar” Biaxial Geogrid placed on subgrade and utilizing CU-Structural Soil -
(licensed supplier is TMT Enterprises, San Jose) as base material should be prescribed; and
maintaining the proposed permeable surface is also beneficial. Additionally, all work
performed for the section of driveway within the setbacks must adhere to hand-digging

recommendations for trees #6 and 7.

Jacaranda #25

The finger planter which surrounds this 7-inch diameter tree is planned for reduction. In
doing so, however, the work would eliminate a severe portion of its root system, and thus,
requiring its removal and replacement. Should the tree remain, I recommend the existing
planter remain. If removed, a new tree could be installed (and perhaps with a stronger,

more balanced structure and healthier condition).

Hampton Inn; 1704 El Camino Real, Menlo Park Page 8 of 16
Mr. Sagar Patel, Property Owner
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4.4 Proposed New Trees
Conclusions reached from my review of the proposed heritage tree replacements,
suitability of proposed locations, and potential impacts to neighboring trees are as follows:

= The single coast live oak proposed at the southwest corner of the site appears a
suitable selection within the planter at the southwest corner of the site.

» The six fern pine trees proposed as screen trees along the eastern boundary, near the
southeast property corner, present no conflict with neighboring heritage trees. This
particular species can grow quite large, but does serve as an effective, dense
screening element.

= The five olive trees proposed along the southern boundary are appropriate understory
selections beneath the neighboring heritage trees (oaks), and are sufficiently setback

to avoid any foreseeable conflicts with their roots.

Hampton Inn; 1704 El Camino Real, Menlo Park Page 9 of 16
Mr. Sagar Patel, Property Owner
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5.0 TREE PROTECTION MEASURES

Recommendations presented within this section serve as measures to help mitigate or
avoid impacts to trees being retained, and all should be carefully followed throughout the
demolition, grading, utility, construction and landscaping phases. They are subject to
change upon reviewing any revised or updated project plans, and I (hereinafter, "project
arborist") should be consulted in the event any cannot be feasibly implemented. Please
note that, unless otherwise stated, all referenced distances from trunks are intended to be

from their closest edge where they converge at the root crown.

5.1 Design Guidelines

1. A Tree Protection Zone (TPZ) is necessary to confine or restrict activities within
certain distances from trunks, for the purpose of achieving a reasonable assurance of
anchoring capacity and tree survival. Such activities include, but are not necessarily
limited to, the following: trenching, soil scraping, compaction, mass and finish-
grading, overexcavation, subexcavation, tilling, ripping, swales, bioswales, storm
drains, dissipaters, equipment cleaning, stockpiling and dumping of materials,
altering natural drainage patterns, and equipment and vehicle operation. In the event
an impact encroaches slightly within a setback, it can be reviewed on a case-by-case
basis by the project arborist to determine whether measures can sufficiently mitigate
impacts to less-than-significant levels. Based on the proposed design and existing
site/tree conditions, I recommend the following TPZs for each tree:

= #6 thru §: Up to 24 inches from the proposed underground garage wall, and
beneath their canopies in all other directions.

= #9: Up to 6 inches from the proposed walkway, 24 inches from the proposed
underground garage wall, and 25 feet in all other directions.

= #10: A distance of 15 to 20 feet or more from the trunk in all directions.

= #15: Up to the proposed storm drain and sewer lines, and 25 feet from its trunk
in all other directions.

= #25 thru 28: The entire existing planters delineated by curbs.

2. All site-related plans should contain notes referring to this report for tree protection

measures.

Hampton Inn; 1704 El Camino Real, Menlo Park Page 10 of 16
Mr. Sagar Patel, Property Owner

J12



David L. Babby, Registered Consulting Arborist® March 13, 2019

3.

10.

Items specified in Section 4.3 of this report shall be considered part of this section.

Modify arborist notes within the civil and landscape plans to reflect the date of this

report (versus of the prior report). Also, tree #5 can be omitted from LO.1.

On a tree disposition or protection plan, add fencing or TPZ designations as defined

within item #1 of this section.

Abandon all existing, unused lines or pipes within a TPZ, and any above-ground
section should be cut off at existing soil grade (rather than being dug up and causing

subsequent root damage); specify this provision on the demolition plan.

The demolition and grading design should consider retaining existing hardscape
within a TPZ up until landscape construction, for the purpose of providing much
greater access for staging, equipment, and vehicular and personnel access, space
which would otherwise be confined should pavement be removed. To specify, a note

would be added to the demolition and grading plans.

Design and route utilities, including electrical (see Section 4.3), irrigation, storm
drains, dissipaters and swales beyond TPZs. Depending on proximity to tree trunks,
directional boring by at least 4 feet below existing grade may be needed, or digging
within a TPZ can be manually performed using shovels (no jackhammers, and roots
>2 inches in diameter retained and not damaged during the process). Pipe bursting is
also a possible alternative option to consider. All tentative routes should be reviewed
with the project arborist beforehand, and any authorized digging within a TPZ shall
only be performed under supervision by the project arborist. Where within a TPZ,

shoring shall be utilized for the trenches to avoid cutting beyond trench walls.

The erosion control design should consider that any straw wattle or fiber rolls require
a maximum vertical soil cut of 2 inches for their embedment, and are established as

close to canopy edges as possible (and not against a tree trunk).

The permanent and temporary drainage design, including downspouts, should not

require water being discharged towards a tree's trunk.

Hampton Inn; 1704 El Camino Real, Menlo Park Page 11 of 16
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11. Show the future staging area and route(s) of access on the final site plan, striving to

avoid TPZs (or if needed, reviewed with the project arborist).

12. Avoid specitying the use of herbicides within a TPZ; where used on site, they should

be labeled for safe use near trees. Also, avoid liming within 50 feet of a tree's canopy.

13. Where within 10 feet from a TPZ, overexcavation shall be avoided, or at a minimum,

confined 6 inches from back of curbs (and supervised by the project arborist).

14. Adhere to the following additional landscape guidelines:

Establish irrigation and lighting features (e.g. main line, lateral lines, valve boxes,
wiring and controllers) so no trenching occurs within a TPZ. In the event this is
not feasible, they may require being installed in a radial direction to, and
terminate a specific distance from a tree's trunk (versus crossing past it). The
routes and overall layout should be reviewed with the project arborist prior to any
trenching or excavation occurring.

Design any new site fencing or fence posts to be at least 2 to 5 feet from a tree’s
trunk (depending on trunk size and growth pattern).

Avoid tilling, ripping and compaction within TPZs.

Establish any bender board or other edging material within TPZs to be on top of
existing soil grade (such as by using vertical stakes).

Utilize a 3- to 4-inch layer of coarse wood chips or other high-quality mulch for
new ground cover beneath canopies (gorilla hair, bark or rock, stone, gravel,

black plastic or other synthetic ground cover should be avoided).

5.2 Before Demolition, Grading and Construction

15. Pruning shall only be performed under direction of the project arborist. The work

shall be conducted in accordance with the most recent ANSI A300 standards, and by

a California licensed tree-service contractor (D-49) that has an ISA certified arborist

in a supervisory role, carries General Liability and Worker’s Compensation

insurance, and abides by ANSI Safety Operations.

Hampton Inn; 1704 El Camino Real, Menlo Park Page 12 of 16
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16. Begin supplying water to all retained trees, applied where possible for roots to
uptake, but not against trunks. The methodology, frequency and amounts shall be
reviewed with the project arborist prior to application; various methodologies include

flooding the ground, soaker hoses or deep-root injection.

17. Conduct a site meeting between the general contractor and project arborist several
weeks or more prior to demolition for the purpose of reviewing tree fencing, routes
of access, staging, necessary pruning, watering, drilling, limits of grading, building

location, and protection measures presented in this report.

18. Install tree protection fencing prior to any demolition for the purpose of restricting
access into unpaved sections of ground within a TPZ. Where existing pavement can
remain within a TPZ, fencing is not needed (in effect, the pavement allows access
beneath canopies while serving as a superior root zone buffer). Fencing should
consist of 6-foot tall chain link mounted on roughly 2-inch diameter steel posts,
which are driven into the ground, where needed, for vertical alignment. Fencing
shall remain in place throughout site development, and will need to be installed,
when needed, in various phases (e.g. demolition is phase 1, grading and construction
phase 2). Note that prior to the City issuing a permit, they require a letter by the

project arborist confirming fencing has been installed per this report.

19. The removal of asphalt within a TPZ will trigger any fencing layout to be

immediately modified to capture the newly unpaved area.

20. Spread, and replenish as needed throughout the entire construction process, a 4- to 5-
inch layer of coarse wood chips (%- to %-inch in size) from a tree-service company
over unpaved ground within TPZs. The source and type should be reviewed with,

and consent provided by, the project arborist before spreading.

21. Fertilization may benefit a tree’s health, vigor and appearance. If applied, however,
soil samples should first be obtained to identify the pH levels and nutrient levels so a
proper fertilization program can be established. I further recommend any fertilization
is performed under the direction and supervision of a certified arborist, and in

accordance with the most recent ANSI A300 Fertilization standards.
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Mr. Sagar Patel, Property Owner

J15



David L. Babby, Registered Consulting Arborist® March 13, 2019

5.3 During Demolition, Grading and Construction
22. Take great care during demolition of existing pavement and other features to avoid

damaging a tree's trunk, crown and roots within a TPZ.

23. Great care must be taken by equipment operators to position their equipment to avoid
trunks and branches, including the scorching of foliage. Any tree damage or injury

should be reported to the project arborist for review of treatment.

24. Construction of the new pedestrian walkway between the hotel and El Camino Real,
including demolition of the pertinent section of parking lot, shall not require

excavation or disturbance of ground within the planters containing trees #25 thru 28.

25. The drilling of piers to support the building above the parking lot shall not require the
loss of large limbs or branches. As such, drilling locations shall be reviewed with the

project arborist beforehand.

26. Construction scaffolding shall not extend into canopies, and where needed to
accommodate this, narrowed in width (e.g. <5 feet wide), or avoided altogether and a

manlift used.

27. Removing existing hardscape (including curbs and gutters) within a TPZ must be
carefully performed to avoid excavating roots and soil during the process, and the
removal of base material shall be performed under direction of the project arborist

(and where necessary, shall remain in place and utilized as future base course).

28. Avoid disposing harmful products (such as cement, paint, chemicals, oil and
gasoline) beneath canopies or anywhere on site that allows drainage within or near
TPZs. Herbicides should not be used with a TPZ; where used on site, they should be

labeled for safe use near trees. Liming shall not occur within 50 feet from a trunk.

29. Any authorized access, digging or trenching within designated-fenced areas shall be
foot-traffic only and manually performed under supervision by the project arborist,

and without the use of heavy equipment or tractors.
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30. Avoid using the trees' trunks as winch supports for moving or lifting heavy loads.

31. Avoid damaging or cutting roots with diameters of >2 inches without prior
assessment by the project arborist. Should roots of this size be encountered, within
one hour of exposure, they should either be buried by soil or covered by burlap that
remains continually moist until the root is covered by soil. If they are approved for
cutting, cleanly severe at 90° to the angle of root growth against the cut line (using
loppers or a sharp hand saw), and then immediately after, the cut end either buried
with soil or covered by a plastic sandwich bag (and secured using a rubber band,
removed just before backfilling). Roots encountered with diameters <2 inches and

require removal can be cleanly severed at 90° to the direction of root growth.

32. Spoils created during digging shall not be piled or spread on unpaved ground within a
TPZ. If essential, spoils can be temporarily piled on plywood or a tarp.

33. Dust accumulating on trunks and canopies during dry weather periods should be

periodically washed away (e.g. every 3 to 4 months).

34. New irrigation and lighting features (e.g. main line, laterals, valve boxes, wiring and
controllers) should be established so that no trenching occurs within a TPZ. In the
event this is not feasible, the trenches may require being installed in a radial direction
to a tree’s trunk, and terminate a specific distance from a trunk (versus crossing past
it). The use of a pneumatic air device (such as an Air-Spade™) may be needed to
avoid root damage. Additionally, any Netafim tubing used should be placed on
grade, and header lines installed as mentioned above. All routes within and near a
TPZ shall be reviewed with the project arborist several weeks or months prior to

installation.

35. Digging holes for fence posts within a TPZ should be manually performed using a
post-hole digger or shovel, and in the event a root >2 inches in diameter is
encountered during the process, the hole should be shifted over by 12 inches, or as

needed to avoid the root(s) and the process repeated.

Hampton Inn; 1704 El Camino Real, Menlo Park Page 15 of 16
Mr. Sagar Patel, Property Owner

J17



David L. Babby, Registered Consulting Arborist® March 13, 2019

6.0 ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS

= Information regarding the size of inventoried trees, condition of offsite trees and photographs
were derived from my prior 9/14/18 report. The condition of onsite trees was ascertained on
3/8/19. All observations were obtained from the ground.

= My observations were performed visually without probing, coring, dissecting or excavating.

» The assignment pertains solely to trees listed in Exhibit A. I hold no opinion towards other
trees on or surrounding the project area.

= [ cannot provide a guarantee or warranty, expressed or implied, that deficiencies or problems of
any trees or property in question may not arise in the future.

* No assurance can be offered that if all my recommendations and precautionary measures
(verbal or in writing) are accepted and followed the desired results may be achieved.

= [ cannot guarantee or be responsible for the accuracy of information provided by others.

= [ assume no responsibility for the means and methods used by any person or company
implementing the recommendations provided in this report.

* The information provided herein represents my opinion. Accordingly, my fee is in no way
contingent upon the reporting of a specified finding, conclusion or value.

=  Numbers shown on the site map in Exhibit B are intended to only roughly approximate a
specific tree's location and shall not be considered surveyed points.

= This report is proprietary to me and may not be copied or reproduced in whole or part without
prior written consent. It has been prepared for the sole and exclusive use of the parties to who
submitted for the purpose of contracting services provided by David L. Babby.

» Ifany part of this report or copy thereof be lost or altered, the entire evaluation shall be invalid.

Prepared By: Date: March 13,2019
David L. Babby
Registered Consulting Arborist® #399
Board-Certified Master Arborist® #WE-4001B
CA Licensed Tree Service Contractor #796763 (C61/D49)
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EXHIBIT A:

TREE INVENTORY TABLE

(three sheets)
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Valley oak
1 (Quercuslobata) 44 70 65 60% 40% Fair Good X
Comments: Crown is asymmetrical, the dominant and sinuous limb structure sweeping west and southwest.
Within a very narrow, tear-drop shaped planter, and its trunk is surrounded by river rock up to 5'
away, and beneath dripline beyond planter is predominantly pavement. Trunk's base is somewhat
buried by the rock and soil. Trunk's base is lower than surrounding asphalt lot grade. Structure
formed by a main trunk dividing into codominant leaders at 13' high, forming a seemingly stable
attachment. Below this union is a large wound filled with foam, and a substantial amount of
woundwood has developed around the perimeter. Above the union is another large wound, with
a decaying wall and limited woundwood (and has a fruiting body growing on the wound's face).
Valley oak
2 (Quercuslobata) 39 70 80 30% 20% Poor Low X
Comments: To be removed. Unsafe condition detailed within the 2/14/16 report by Mr. Straun Edwards
(provided in Exhibit D of this report).
European white birch
3 (Betula pendula) 7 35 15 70% 40% Fair Moderate
Comments: Asymmetrical crown growing NW away from a prior oak on neighboring site.
European white birch
4 (Betula pendula) 6 40 10 50% 40% Poor Moderate
Comments: Asymmetrical crown growing NW away from a prior oak on neighboring site. Soil is piled at
trunk's base (between a boulder and trunk). Crowded conditions between #3 and 29.
Coast live oak
6 (Quercus agrifalia) 25 50 35 60% 40% Fair Moderate X
Comments: Offsite. Narrow form, and trunk has a slight lean towards project site. Structure bifurcates at 6'
high, has a rangy form, and grows mostly vertical above property line. Trunk is 8.5' from fence.
Top is thinning.
Coast live oak
7 (Quercus agrifolia) 14 40 25 60% 60% Fair Moderate X

Comments:

Offsite. Sinuous and narrow form, trunk grows entirely away from site. The top center, northern-
most section is sparse. Trunk is 9.5' from fence.

Address: 1704 El Camino Real, Menlo Park
Prepared for: Mr. Sagar Patel, Property Owner
Prepared by: David L. Babby
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TREE INVENTORY TABLE
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Coast live oak
8 (Quercus agrifolia) 19 35 35 60% 70% Fair Moderate X
Comments: Offsite. Structure comprised of three main leaders dividing as low at 5.5' high, two growing into
project site. Sparse and asymmetrical canopy. Trunk is 9.5' from fence. Dominant surface root
along opposite site of project.
Coast live oak
9 (Quercus agrifolia) 31 50 75 70% 20% Poor Moderate X
Comments: Offsite. Pronounced, severe lean towards SE. Trunk divides at 2' along trunk into one smaller
lateral, which forms a weak union with the main stem. Trunk's base is 4' from fence. Browning
canopy at the very top, south side, and some along north perimeter. Pole support beneath, and
embedded into main stem 11" high. Broad canopy, branches nearing 3.5' above the ground.
Coast redwood
10 (Sequoia sempervirens) 35 120 35 40% 70% Poor Moderate X
Comments: Offsite. Sparse and thin canopy with deadwood. Trunk is 5.6' from fence.
Monterey pine
13 (Pinusradiata) 31 70 40 40% 30% Poor Low X
Comments: Moderate level of infestation by bark beetles to 9' high. Excessive limb weight. Large lower 12-
13" diameter limb removed at trunk, and remaining canopy is narrow. Some dieback seemingly
caused by pine pitch canker.
Monterey pine
14 (Pinusradiata) 30 65 35 40% 50% Poor Moderate X
Comments: Moderate level of infestation by bark beetles (at trunk's base). High crown along side adjacent to
neighboring building. Excessive limb weight. Has a 4" root surfacing north of trunk, and mounds
are formed in asphalt up to existing storm drain inlet. Chlorotic foliage and low canopy. Has
several large dead limbs. Asymmetrical canopy, weight of which is dominant over site.
Coast redwood
15 (Sequoia sempervirens) ~48 12 45 60% 70% Fair Moderate X

Comments:

Offsite. Sparse and thin canopy. Lower trunk is not visible. Adjacent wall is pushed into site,
likely from expansion of the root crown, and has created many vertical and horizontal cracks.
Adjacent to existing building (at its corner). Limbs are elongated. Large mounds in asphalt, up
to 20' from the wall.

Address: 1704 El Camino Real, Menlo Park
Prepared for: Mr. Sagar Patel, Property Owner
Prepared by: David L. Babby
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TREE INVENTORY TABLE
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Glossy privet
16 (Ligustrum lucidum) 8,5,5,4,2 30 25 60% 40% Fair Moderate X*
Comments: Multi-trunk with narrow, poor attachments. Some dieback along canopy's north side.
* Assigned per the City's request.
Lemon bottlebrush
17 (Callistemon citrinus) 9 15 20 60% 50% Fair Moderate
Comments: Large limb cut from mid-trunk area sometime ago.
Lemon bottlebrush
18 (Callistemon citrinus) 7 10 15 70% 30% Fair Low
Comments: Has a pronounced SE lean, and a distinct mound has along the opposite side (indicating the tree
potentially partially uprooted in the past).
Jacaranda
25 (Jacaranda mimosifolia) 7 20 25 40% 40% Poor Low
Comments: Offsite. Originates beneath oak #1 and grows towards SW. Trunk bifurcates at 5.5' high. Has a
fairly low canopy. Thin with dieback and excessive limb weight. Within a 3' wide planter.
Jacaranda
26 (Jacaranda mimosifolia) 6 15 20 30% 50% Poor Low
Comments: Offsite. Limbs originate along trunk at 5.5' high. Girdling root and has a thin canopy.
Jacaranda
27 (Jacaranda mimosifolia) 5 10 15 40% 30% Poor Low
Comments: Offsite. Leans SW, and has a slight mount opposite lean. Limbs originate along trunk at 5.5' high.
Jacaranda
28 (Jacaranda mimosifolia) 5 15 15 80% 50% Fair Moderate
Comments: Offsite. Limbs originate along trunk at 5' high. Healthy.
European white birch
29 (Betula pendula) 6 40 10 60% 40% Fair Moderate
Comments: Growth sweeps away from adjacent birch #4 and trunk nears within 1' of building's eave.

Address: 1704 El Camino Real, Menlo Park
Prepared for: Mr. Sagar Patel, Property Owner
Prepared by: David L. Babby
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EXHIBIT B:

SITE MAP

(one sheet)

Hampton Inn; 1704 El Camino Real, Menlo Park
Mr. Sagar Patel, Property Owner

J23



EL CAMINO REAL
(100" RIGHT—OF—WAY)

BUCKTHORN WA
(60" RIGHT—OF—WAY)

31°36'00" E —

25.000 \

z

xg

SIDEWALK

EXISTING
BUILDING
8
S
S

WOQD_FENCE ON TOP CONC. RETAINING WALL

s 8
N
B
EXISTING [
BUILDING E
EXISTING EXISTING 2
BUILDING BUILDING o
<+
43
N g
B
3
Sw
=
2]
& s 50
o o 5& os £
., N i’ ©
" o RIS AR g™ S 31°36'00" W 23500 wooo Fence § B
— 3 —5e.

WoQD TIRE "STOP” (TYP.)

EXISTING N
BUILDING

y

EXISTING
BUILDING

|

3 3 2

18 17 16\\ g1

EXISTING
BUILDING

CONCRETE

@
(33
/// CONCRETE 2 % &
//
GoncReTE ‘ § —
=N E EXISTING
\ o . EXISTING BUILDING

BUILDING CONCRETE

\

Ceccers

XISTING
BUILDING

Ch

ARECRRRRRRNRTRRRRTY

EXISTING
BUILDING

X4

12

b(2TREE

P 347TREE

TREE

| |

EXISTING
BUILDING

[
9

| Project N

Y existing
§ BUILDING §
' N

J24




David L. Babby, Registered Consulting Arborist® March 13, 2019

EXHIBIT C:

PHOTOGRAPHS

(seven sheets)

Photo Index
Page C-1: Tree #1 Page C-5: Trees #10 thru 15
Page C-2: Tree #2 Page C-5: Trees #15 thru 18
Page C-3: Trees #3 thru 7, 29 Page C-7: Trees #25 thru 28

Page C-4: Trees #8 and 9
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#1
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#1
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#5 (fell over)

#29 #6
H4

#3

#7

#5 (fell over)

#5 (fell over)
Ho6 H#7

#7
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#9

#9

#9
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#10

#10

#14

#H12 (removed)
#15 l

#14
#13

#11 (remoued)

H12 (removed)
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#15 / #15 #15

(behind wall)

#16
#18

#17
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#27

#26

#28
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EXHIBIT D:

REPORT FOR TREE #2

(seven sheets)
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Location: 1704 El Camino Real
Menlo Park, CA

Straun Edwards
Trees 360 Degrees
Certified Arborist #WE5612-A
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Red Cottage Inn & Suites
1704 El Camino Real
Menlo Park, CA 94025

ASSIGNMENT:
On Friday, February the 12th, 2016 I was asked to inspect two Quercus lobata (valley

oak) trees. The trees are located at the Red Cottage Inn & Suites in Menlo Park, CA. The client
has plans for construction and is therefore concerned about the condition of the trees. The
purpose of my investigation is to assess and determine both the health and structural stability of

the valley oaks.

OBSERVATIONS:
Tree No. 1. Quercuslobata (valley oak)

This tree is a large, mature specimen with a trunk diameter of 44in. (measured at breast
height) with a canopy height and spread of approximately 75ft.x 55ft. It is centrally located in
the driveway. Although fill soil in the driveway exists over the entire root area, the trunk of the
tree appears to have stayed relatively dry. I attribute this to the tree location and the road which
has allowed drainage away from the tree. There is no obvious basal decay evident. This tree has
very good structure with a fairly symmetrical canopy, good health and vigor. All major branch
unions appear sound with no major structural defects apparent at the branch unions. There are a
few obvious, large hollows in the upper canopy which have previously been filled with
expanding foam.

Tree No. 2: Quercus lobata (valley oak)

The tree in questions is a large, mature Quercus lobata (valley oak) with a height and
spread of approximately 80ft. x 110ft. and a trunk dbh of 42in. The tree is located in the center
of the courtyard area and leans heavily to the west. It has good structure with well-developed
main branch unions. This tree has been well maintained in the past, with weight reduction
pruning and the installation of cable support systems on the largest of the lateral limbs. The
trunk of the tree has been buried, approximately 20in. deep and the surrounding root area of the
tree has also been compromised with fill soil and hardscape installed over the top. There is
extensive decay in both the lower trunk and large supporting roots. Both Armillaria sp. and
Phytophthera sp. appear to be present, with mycelial fans and bleeding from below the bark
respectively (see photos A-D). The base and trunk of the tree, at original ground level, has

approximately 4in. - 6in. thick of sound wood around the exterior. The interior area, where large

P.O. Box 2280 « Saratoga, CA 95070-0280 ¢ office 408.866.1010 ¢ cell 408.898.0625 » www.trees360degrees.com
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Red Cottage Inn & Suites
1704 El Camino Real
Menlo Park, CA 94025

support roots would typically be attached, is hollow (see photos E-F). Tused a hose to measure
the depth of the cavity and was able to insert it approximately 2ft. into the cavity, horizontally
and 9ft. vertically up into the hollow interior of the trunk (see photos G).

DISCUSSION & CONCLUSION:

The valley oak listed as (Tree No. 1) appears to be a healthy and stable specimen with no
obvious, large defects within the lower base/trunk area. This tree appears to have been well
maintained. The second valley oak (Tree No. 2), I assume, that during the original construction
many years ago, the tree had excess soil filled around its base. I also understand that a root
crown inspection was conducted by Barry Coate and associates, approximately 6 years ago. In
his report, he confirmed that the tree had been extensively buried for many years and Armillaria
mellea (oak root rot fungus) was found in the lower root bowl. At that time, the area was
excavated and the fungus treated. I also conducted a root crown excavation on Tree No. 2,
which was a little deeper than the previous excavation by Mr. Coate, I noted extensive decay in
the lower trunk and large supporting roots but also found extensive internal decay.

It was confirmed that both the below grade large supporting roots and the main lower
trunk, continue to be infected with bacterial and fungal pathogens. After much consideration,
given to the aesthetic value and cultural significance of this tree, I believe whole tree failure is a
valid concern. Although the tree has a good branch structure and appears to be in good health
above soil grade, due to the extent of the below grade degradation I have come to the conclusion
that the tree is hazardous. It is my professional opinion that this tree has a high probability of
failure due to the long term conditions it has been subjected to. Furthermore, the locations of the
decay in the tree lead me to believe that this tree will inevitably fail, as a whole, from ground
level. This would cause catastrophic damage with the primary target being the adjacent

buildings and/or their inhabitants.
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Photo A was taken on the North side of the tree.

Note: Black bleeding is evident in .
several locations around the

trunk/base of tree and root union
area. These sorts of lesions are
typically associated with
Phytophthera infections.

Photo B was taken on the West side of tree.

Note: The silver ring on the

shovel handle is 22in.above
original soil grade. The
limited root zone &

extensive hardscape
surrounding the tree is also
visible.
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Red Cottage Inn & Suites
1704 El Camino Real
Menlo Park, CA 94025

Photo C was taken on the South side of the tree.

Note: The evidence of a large
wound closure and black bleeding
at the soil line.

Photo D was taken on the North side of the tree.

Note: Bleeding and discolored
sapwood indicate a fungal
infection in a large supporting root.

P.O. Box 2280 « Saratoga, CA 95070-0280 ¢ office 408.866.1010 ¢ cell 408.898.0625 » www.trees360degrees.com
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Red Cottage Inn & Suites
1704 El Camino Real
Menlo Park, CA 94025

Photo E was taken
from the West
side.

Note: Hollow areas all connected
with the absence of any interior,

solid, healthy wood tissue. 1 .

Photo F below was taken on
the South side.

Note: A 14in. long hand tool was
easily inserted into the center of
the tree. Any decay wood was
simply removed by hand.
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Red Cottage Inn & Suites
1704 El Camino Real
Menlo Park, CA 94025

Photo G Hose used to measure depth of cavity.

Hose being used to measure the
depth of the interior cavity. A tot
of 9ft. )was inserted up into the

holTow.

Should you have any questions regarding the above information please do not hesitate to call me

at (408) 898-0625.

Straun Edwards
Trees 360 Degrees
ISA Certified Arborist. # WE5612-A
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ATTACHMENT K

SAGAR PATEL (1704 EL CAMINO REAL)
BELOW MARKET RATE HOUSING IN LIEU FEE AGREEMENT

This “Agreement” is made as of this day of , 2019 by and between
the City of Menlo Park, a California municipality (“City”) and SAGAR PATEL, an individual,
(“Developer”), with respect to the following:

RECITALS

A. Developer owns certain real property in the City of Menlo Park, County of San
Mateo, State of California, commonly known 1704 El Camino Real and consisting of
approximately 0.8 acres (assessor’s parcel number 060-034-379) (the “Property”). The
Property is zoned SP-ECR/D (ElI Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan) which allows for a
maximum public benefit bonus level floor area ratio of 110 percent.

B. The Property currently contains a 28-room hotel. The existing gross floor area
(“GFA”) of all the buildings is 10,775.8 square feet.

C. Developer proposes to construct a 40,004.2 square foot commercial non-office
building on the Property (the “Project”), by demolishing an existing 28-room hotel and
constructing a new 70-room hotel consisting of three stories and an underground parking
level. The net new square footage resulting from the project would be 29,228.40 square
feet of gross floor area. Developer has applied to the City for architectural control, a
variance request to permit reduced floor-to-floor height on the first floor, sign review, and a
request for a public benefit bonus and intends to apply for a building permit to construct the
Project.

D. Developer is required to comply with Chapter 16.96 of City’s Municipal Code, (‘BMR
Ordinance”), and with the BMR housing program guidelines adopted by the City Council to
implement the BMR Ordinance (“Guidelines”) as the project would exceed 10,000 square
feet in gross floor area. The BMR ordinance requires the applicant to submit a below market
rate housing proposal for review by the Housing Commission. The Housing Commission
reviewed and approved the draft BMR in lieu fee Agreement term sheet on November 2,
2016. The BMR term sheet is used to prepare the BMR in lieu fee Agreement, which is
subsequently reviewed and acted on by the Planning Commission along with the main
project actions. In order to process its application, the BMR Ordinance requires Developer
to submit a BMR in lieu fee Agreement. This Agreement is intended to satisfy that
requirement. Approval of a below market rate housing Agreement is a condition precedent
to the approval of the applications and the issuance of a building permit for the Project.

E. Residential use of the property is allowed by the applicable zoning regulations;
however, residential use is not being pursued as part of the proposed project. Site
constraints due to developing a financially viable hotel project on a 0.8-acre infill site limits
opportunities to develop residential uses as part of the proposed project. The applicant does
not own any sites in the city that are available and feasible for construction of sufficient
below market rate units to satisfy the requirements of the BMR Ordinance, which in this
case is 0.77 unit. Based on these facts, staff has found that development of such a unit on-
site or off-site in accordance with the requirements of the BMR Ordinance and Guidelines is

Page 1
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not feasible.

F. City has determined not to require Developer to provide below market rate units and,
under the terms of the BMR Ordinance and the Guidelines, Developer therefore is required
to pay an in lieu fee as provided in this Agreement. Developer is willing to pay said fee on
the terms set forth in this Agreement, which the City has found are consistent with the BMR
Ordinance and Guidelines.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. Developer shall pay the applicable in lieu fee as provided in the BMR Ordinance and
Guidelines. The applicable in lieu fee is that which is in effect on the date the payment is
made. The method of calculating the fee for the Project consists of multiplying the gross
floor area of the net new square footage resulting from the Project (29,228.4 square feet)
times the fee for Group B uses, which include non-office uses. The current “Group B” use
fee, which is subject to escalation each July 1, is $9.66 per square foot. The total amount
due is $282,575.29 (based on the fee currently in effect, subject to escalation).

2. The fee shall be paid before issuance of a building permit for the project and may be
paid at any time after approval of this Agreement by the Planning Commission. If for any
reason, a building permit is not issued within a reasonable time of payment of the fee, upon
request by Developer, City shall promptly refund the fee, without interest, in which case the
building permit shall not be issued until payment of the fee is again made at the rate
applicable at the time of payment.

3. This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and
their successors and assigns. Each party may assign this Agreement without the consent
of the other, provided the assignment is in writing. Execution of this Agreement by
Developer shall satisfy the requirements set forth in the BMR Ordinance.

4, If any legal action is commenced to interpret or enforce this Agreement or to collect
damages as a result of any breach of this Agreement, the party prevailing shall be entitled
to recover all reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in such action from the other

party.

5. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of
the State of California.

6. The terms of this Agreement may not be modified or amended except by an
instrument in writing executed by each of the parties hereto.

7. This Agreement supersedes any prior agreements, negotiations and
communications, oral or written, and contains the entire agreement between the parties as
to the subject matter hereof.

8. Any and all obligations or responsibilities of Developer under this
Agreement shall terminate upon the payment of the required fee.

Page 2
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9. To the extent there is any conflict between the terms and provisions of the
Guidelines and the terms and provisions of this Agreement, the terms and provisions of this
Agreement shall prevail.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day
and year first written above.

CITY OF MENLO PARK:

By:

SAGAR PATEL
Starla Jerome-Robinson,
City Manager

Page 3



ATTACHMENT L

Memorandum
To: Corinna Sandmeier, City of Menlo Park
From: David Shiver, Stephanie Hagar, & Chelsea Guerrero, BAE Urban Economics
Date: February 28, 2018

Re: Analysis of Proposed Density Bonus for 1704 EI Camino Real Project

Key Findings

This memorandum presents the findings of a static pro forma analysis that BAE conducted to
estimate the project profit from a proposed redevelopment of a 28-room hotel to construct a
70-room Hampton Inn at 1704 ElI Camino Real in Menlo Park. The proforma analysis
compares the project profit of the proposed project, which is seeking a density bonus under
the City’s public benefit program for the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan, to the
potential project profit from an alternative project developed at the base level density for the
site. The pro forma analysis uses information provided by the developer as well as BAE’s own
research of development costs and market conditions. Pro formas for the proposed project
and a project that could be developed at the base level density are attached to this
memorandum. Key findings include:

e Based on cost and income assumptions shown in the attached pro forma, the proposed
project (developed at the public benefit level), would result in approximately $3.4 million in
profit to the developer. This figure is based on the estimated capitalized value of the
completed project, less total development costs, and includes both a 10 percent baseline
developer profit ($2.2 million) and the remaining project profit after accounting for all
development costs ($1.2 million).

e The proposed project is feasible in part because the developer currently owns the project
site, and therefore has no land acquisition cost associated with the redevelopment of the
property.

e The developer has indicated that a hotel project at the base level density would not be
financially feasible. BAE research supports the assumption that the developer would
experience significant challenges in achieving financial feasibility for a hotel project at the
base level density. This analysis does not include analysis of a potential alternative project
that would include a mix of uses (e.g., residential units, or a mix of office and residential
uses) at the base level density that might result in a profitable development.

2600 10™ St., Suite 300 803 2" St., Suite A 448 South Hill St., Suite 701 1400 | St. NW, Suite 350 215 Park Ave. S, 6™ Floor
Berkeley, CA 94710 Davis, CA 95616 Los Angeles, CA 90013 Washington, DC 20005 New York, NY 10003
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e The development return shown in the pro forma is highly sensitive to changes in the
assumptions used for the analysis. The results could change substantially based on
differences in construction costs, hotel room rates, operating expenses, occupancy rates,
or other factors.

e Once stabilized, the proposed project would generate an estimated $680,500 per year in
transient occupancy tax (TOT) to the City of Menlo Park in 2018 dollars. This figure is
based on the average room rate ($274 per night) and occupancy (81 percent)
assumptions used for the financial analysis included in this memorandum. Higher room or
occupancy rates would result in higher TOT revenues to the City, whereas lower room or
occupancy rates would result in lower TOT revenues to the City.

Overview of the Analysis

This memorandum presents the results of BAE's analysis, based on a development pro forma,
to estimate the increase in value that could arise from a proposed public benefit bonus for a
potential development project at 1704 El Camino Real in Menlo Park. The Project Applicant
owns the property, which is the site of an existing 28-room hotel property (the Red Cottage Inn)
and has proposed construction of a 70-room Hampton Inn hotel on the site.

The site is in a location eligible for a public benefit bonus pursuant to the EI Camino
Real/Downtown Specific Plan (Specific Plan), which establishes the formula for the additional
built area that is allowed in return for public benefits acceptable to the City. The public benefit
bonus program outlined in the Specific Plan anticipates that public benefits provided pursuant
to the program can take the form of on-site improvements, offsite improvements, cash
payment to the City for future use toward public benefits, or a mixture. As a hotel use, the
proposed development would generate Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) revenue for the City,
which is an inherent public benefit.

Proposed Project

The project site consists of an approximately 0.84 acre parcel located at 1704 El Camino Real,
between Buckthorn Way and Stone Pine Lane, in the SP-ECR/D (El Camino Real/Downtown
Specific Plan) zoning district. The site is primarily accessed via shared access easements over
two parcels (1702 and 1706 El Camino Real).

Public Benefit Bonus Project

The developer’s proposed project with the public benefit bonus under the Specific Plan
(Project) would consist of a 70-room Hampton Inn hotel consisting of three stories and an
underground parking garage. The ground floor would contain the hotel lobby, a breakfast
area, a board room, a fitness room, back-of-house space, and guest rooms. The second and
third floors would be developed entirely with guest rooms. The proposed project would contain
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39,950 square feet, resulting in a FAR of 1.1, the maximum allowed at the Public Benefit
Bonus level. The underground garage would provide 58 parking spaces.

As discussed in more detail below, the proposed project would generate TOT revenue for the
City, which the City could potentially evaluate as a public benefit from the Project.

Base Zoning Project

Although the developer has not prepared plans for a project that would conform to the existing
base zoning (i.e. without the public benefit bonus), BAE evaluated a base level project for this
analysis (Base Project). Under the base zoning, the maximum allowable square footage for the
Project would total 27,299 square feet, at a FAR of 0.75. BAE conducted a high-level capacity
study to identify a project typology that would conform to the base level density and estimated
that the site could potentially accommodate a three-story building with 47 hotel rooms.
Assuming that the Base Project would have the same parking ratio as the Public Benefit Bonus
Project (0.83 spaces per room) this Base Project would require 39 spaces. Although this
analysis did not include preparation of detailed drawings of a project that would be possible at
the Base Level density, BAE estimates that the site could accommodate 47 hotel rooms in
three floors along with 39 surface parking spaces. To the extent that development standards
or other factors make surface parking infeasible for the Base Project, the construction costs
for this scenario would be substantially higher than shown in this analysis.

Due to the small number of rooms that would be possible at the base level density, the Base
Project would not meet the size requirements for a Hampton Inn and would be unlikely to meet
the size requirements for another hotel brand. Therefore, the Base Project would consist of an
independent hotel property. The pro forma assumptions for the Base Project generally reflect
a lower-quality hotel property than the proposed project, with lower quality finishes that are
more similar to an economy property.

Methodology for the Financial Analysis

BAE used information provided by the Project Applicant and information from BAE’s
independent research to formulate proforma assumptions. BAE met with City staff and the
Project Applicant to review the proposed site plan and development program and review
assumptions regarding costs, rental rates, operating costs, and other factors. The developer
provided a comprehensive package describing the project, with estimated construction costs
as well as operating costs and revenues for the first year of operation. BAE also researched
development costs, operating costs, and revenues for other comparable hotel properties to
identify costs and revenues that would be typical a limited service hotel property. This
included a review of published data on local market area capitalization rates and hotel
construction cost figures as published by HVS and the R.S. Means Company square feet
construction cost guides. BAE also obtained data on hotel room and occupancy rates for
similar limited-service hotels in the local market from STR. In addition, BAE consulted with a
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hotel development expert familiar with current hotel development and operating conditions to
vet all key assumptions provided by the developer and BAE research, both for the proposed
Public Benefit Project and the hypothetical Base Project.

This information was then used to prepare a project pro forma model for the proposed project.
The pro forma consists of an Excel worksheet that shows assumptions for the development
program, development costs, income, operating expenses, and financing costs. The
worksheets show the calculation of project cost by category, an analysis of the revenue from
the new development by component, and the resulting developer profit.

The model is set up to calculate project profit as a residual value. The calculation starts with
the market value of the completed project at stabilization, and then deducts total development
costs. The pro forma model is attached to this memorandum.

Key Assumptions

The pro formas that are attached to this memorandum set forth all assumptions used in the
analysis. Following is an overview of key assumptions:

o BAE classified hard construction costs provided by the developer into the following
categories: (1) site preparation costs for demolition of existing buildings, environmental
remediation, grading, and other improvements, including hard surfaces and landscaping;
(2) hard construction costs for the shell and core of the hotel portion of the building,
including the rooms, corridors and circulation, lobby, back of house functions, and meeting
and event space; (3) hard construction costs for underground parking; and (4) developer
contributions toward furniture, fixtures, and equipment (FF&E).

To estimate hard construction costs in categories (1) through (3) above, BAE used the
estimates provided by the developer via a contractor. Based on these figures, hard
construction costs would average $43 per site square foot for demolition and site
improvements; $201 per square foot for hotel rooms, corridors and circulation, lobby, back
of house functions, and meeting and event space; and $157 per square foot for
underground parking. With the exception of the underground parking cost, the hard costs
shown the pro forma are consistent with typical hotel development costs for similar
properties in the region, as well as cost estimates from RS Means. The underground
parking costs are higher than typical underground parking costs, but within a reasonable
range given the inefficiencies associated with constructing a small underground parking
lot. BAE used an estimate of $16,000 per room for FF&E, based on data for limited
service hotels provided by HVS. These assumptions result in a total hard construction
costs of $218,500 per room for the Public Benefit Bonus Project.

To estimate hard construction costs for the Base Zoning Project, BAE generally used the
same assumptions as in the Bonus Level Project, with two key exceptions: 1) the costs for
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surface parking are included in the site improvement costs that were provided by the
developer, with no underground parking cost; 2) the cost of FF&E average $14,000 per
room, reflecting a lower quality of finishes that would be more similar to an economy hotel
than the proposed limited service property. Overall, these assumptions result in total hard
construction costs of $169,300 per room for the Base Zoning Project.

Soft costs were estimated at 20 percent of total hard costs, not including impact fees,
developer profit, financing costs, or contingency. Soft costs totaled $3.1 million for the
Public Benefit Bonus Project and $1.6 million for the Base Zoning Project.

The pro forma analysis for the Public Benefit Bonus Project uses the average daily room
rate (ADR) provided by the developer ($274.40), plus the developer’s estimate of other
non-room revenues ($1.36 per occupied room night), totaling $276 in revenue per
occupied room rate. This is higher than the ADR for existing properties as indicated by the
STR data ($205). However, compared to each of the existing properties included in the
STR sample, the proposed Project will be in a superior location and/or of a higher quality,
and therefore the developer’s ADR estimate is within a reasonable range. BAE confirmed
the reasonableness or the ADR assumption with a hotel industry expert.

BAE assumed $220 in revenue per occupied room night for the Base Project, which
reflects input from a hotel industry expert that a project of a size that would be consistent
with the Base Level Density would likely consist of a small, un-branded property more
similar to an economy hotel.

The pro forma analysis for the Public Benefit Bonus Project uses an 81 percent occupancy
rate, which reflects the average occupancy trends over the past several years as indicated
by STR data, and is lower than the occupancy rate provided by the developer (86 percent).
BAE estimates that an 81 percent occupancy rate is consistent with stabilized operations,
whereas the developer’s occupancy rate estimate is for year one of operations, which
could coincide with the current high point in the hotel market cycle.

The pro forma for the Base Project uses a lower average occupancy rate of 77 percent,
reflecting an assumption that occupancy rates will be lower because the Base Project will
not be a branded property.

BAE assumed that operating expenses for the Public Benefit Project will be equal to 65
percent of operating revenues. This assumption is higher than the operating expense ratio
provided by the developer (43 percent), but consistent with operating expense ratios for
similar limited-service hotels as reported by CBRE. 1

Based on consultation with a hotel industry expert, BAE assumed that operating expenses
for the Base Project would be equal to 70 percent of room revenues, reflecting the lower
overall room revenues.

1 CBRE Research (2017). Trends in the U.S. Hotel Industry, 2016.
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BAE estimated the City of Menlo Park Building Construction Street Impact Fee, Traffic
Impact Fee, El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Preparation Fee, and school district
impact fees that would apply to each project. The City of Menlo Park provided calculations
for the City’s Supplemental Transportation Impact Fee and Below Market Rate Housing In-
Lieu Fee. Water Capital Facilities Charges and Sewer Connection Fees were not calculated
for either project due to the unavailability of the information needed to calculate these
fees.

BAE assumed a developer profit equal to ten percent of total development costs. This
results in approximately $2.2 million in profit to the developer under the Public Benefit
Bonus Project. This figure is separate from the $1.3 million in project profit that the
Project would generate ($25.0 million capitalized value less $23.7 million in development
costs, land cost, and developer profit) from the project. In other words, the $1.3 million in
excess profit from the project is net of a base ten percent profit to the developer, making
the total potential profit approximately $3.4 million. As demonstrated by the pro forma for
the Base Zoning Project, a hotel project at the base level is infeasible.

Financing assumptions are based on current market rates and BAE experience, and
assume a construction loan interest rate of 6.0 percent, with two points for fees. The
capitalization rate to value the finished project is eight percent.

Sensitivity Analysis

The development returns shown in the pro forma are highly sensitive to changes in

construction costs, hotel room rates, and occupancy rates. Although Silicon Valley currently
has a strong hotel sector with some of the highest hotel room rates in the nation, hotels are
generally considered risky investments relative to other types of real estate investments
because occupancy and room rates are often highly affected by downturns in the economic
cycle. BAE conducted a sensitivity analysis of a number of these risk factors to identify how
changes could impact the pro forma findings. The results of this analysis are shown in the
table below:
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Sensitivity Analysis for Potential 1704 El Camino Real Project Profit ($ millions)

Scenario Project Profit
BAE Estimate $1.2
Construction Hard Cost
10% Higher Costs $0 (project is infeasible)
10% Lower Costs $3.4
Average Daily Room Rate (ADR)
Decrease to $240 per occupied room night $0 (project is infeasible)
Increase to $300 per occupied room night $3.6
Occupancy Rate
Decrease to 77% $0 (project is infeasible)
Increase to 86% $2.8

Source: BAE, 2018.

The sensitivity analysis shows that the estimate of $1.2 million in profit from the proposed
project falls within a range of potential outcomes from a profit of zero, making the project
infeasible, to $3.6 million. As shown, the project would become infeasible as a result of a 10-
percent increase in construction hard costs, a decrease in room rates to $240 per occupied
room night, or a decrease in the occupancy rate to 77 percent.

The sensitivity analysis evaluates the impact of a decrease in the ADR to $240, which is the
lower bound of the likely ADR range for the proposed Hampton Inn Project. The sensitivity
analysis also evaluates the impact of room rates that are approximately 10 percent higher
than those shown in the pro forma. Profit will increase if the proposed project achieves room
rates that are higher than projected and will decrease if a future downturn in the economic
cycle leads to a decrease in room rates.

To the extent that the occupancy rate for the proposed project differs from the occupancy rate
shown in the pro forma, this difference will have a substantial impact on revenues and profit.
BAE included a 77-percent occupancy scenario in the sensitivity analysis, which is consistent
with the lowest annual occupancy rate between 2011 and 2017 among a sample of
comparable hotels, as indicated by data from STR. As shown, the hotel would be infeasible if
occupancy rates average 77 percent. If the occupancy rate averages 86 percent, which is
consistent with the developer’s projections for the first year of operations, the total project
profit would total $2.8 million.

Transient Occupancy Tax Analysis

The City of Menlo Park collects TOT at a rate of 12 percent of room revenues from hotel stays
of 30 days or less in Menlo Park hotels. Based on the average room and occupancy rates
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shown in the attached pro forma, the proposed project would generate approximately
$680,500 per year in TOT revenue to the City in 2018 dollars.

The exact TOT generated by the project will fluctuate year-to-year depending on the extent to
which room and occupancy rates differ from those shown in the pro forma. BAE prepared a
sensitivity analysis to estimate hotel room revenues and resulting TOT receipts during low,
moderate, and high revenue and occupancy years. For example, if room rates average $240
per night and the average occupancy rate is 77 percent, the project will generate
approximately $566,600 per year in TOT revenues to the City. If room rates are 10 percent
higher than the rates shown in the pro forma (or approximately $300 per night) and the
occupancy rate averages 86 percent, the proposed project will generate approximately
$791,000 per year in TOT to the City.

Projected Annual TOT Revenue for the City of Menlo Park from Proposed Hotel Project at 1704
El Camino Real at Project Stabilization

Low Estimate Moderate Estimate High Estimate
Annual Transient Occupancy Tax $566,597 $680,468 $791,028

Assumptions

Average Room Rate $240

Average Occupancy 77% 81% 86%
City of Menlo Park TOT Rate 12% 12% 12%
Number of Rooms 70 70 70
Sources: City of Menlo Park; STR; BAE, 2018.

Limiting Conditions

The above analysis is based on cost and valuation factors along with hotel room rates provided
by the potential developer, as well as research conducted by BAE during the first quarter of
2018. The project is in pre-development, and as design and development work proceeds, it is
possible that changes in design, building code requirements, construction costs, market
conditions, interest rates, or other factors may result in significant changes in costs, profits,
and TOT revenues.



Pro Forma for Hampton Inn Hotel Development at 1704 El Camino Real, Menlo Park

Development Program Assumptions Cost and Income Assumptions

Project Characteristics

Site

Site area (acres) 0.84
Site area (sq. ft.) 36,398
Off-site work area (sq. ft.) 5,275
Building

Hotel rooms 70
Building gross sq. ft. 39,950
Parking

Below grade parking garage (sq. ft.) 27,629
Below grade parking spaces 58
Parking ratio (spaces per room) 0.83
Built Project FAR 1.10

Notes:

(a) Construction costs provided by the developer
were supported by contractor detail and were
reorganized by BAE for this proforma.

(b) Includes the following FY 2017-18 impact fees:
Building Construction Road Impact Fee, Traffic
Impact Fee, Supplemental Traffic Impact Fee, BMR
Housing In-lieu fee, ECR/Downtown Specific Plan
Preparation fee, Sequoia Union High School
District Impact Fee, Menlo Park City Elementary
School District Impact Fee. Excludes sewer
connection fees, water capital facilities charges,
storm drainage connection fees, pending City
calculations. Figures are net of existing hotel

Development Costs

Hotel Per Room
Construction hard costs (a) $114,714
FF&E $16,000
Impact and connection fees (b) $7,138
Parking Per Space
Construction hard costs (a) $74,765

General Development Costs

Site prep cost, per site work area sq. ft. (a)(c)
Soft costs as % of hard costs (d)

Developer fee as % of hard and soft costs
Developer profit as % of total construction costs
Contingency as % of hard and soft costs

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenue (per occupied room night) (e)
Expenses (as % of operating revenue)
Hotel occupancy rate

Construction Financing

Construction loan to cost ratio

Loan fee (points)

Interest rate

Loan period (months)

Drawdown factor

Total construction costs (excluding financing costs)

Capitalization rate

Per SF

$201
$28.04
$12.51

Per SF
$157

$43.47
20%
5%
10%
5%

$276
65%
81%

65.0%

2%

6%

18

50%
$20,692,625

8%

rooms to be demolished. Does not include any potential impact fee from Menlo Park Fire Protection District.
(c) Site prep costs include demolition, underground utilities, and landscaping costs. Overall site prep work area includes

off-site work area.

(d) Developer soft costs exclude financing costs, contingency fee, developer fee, and other line items in this proforma.
(e) Operating revenue (per occupied room night) includes $274.40 in room revenues and $1.75 in other revenues.
(f) The analysis assumes a developer fee to cover the costs of managing the development of a project; the developer

fee does not represent profit.

Development Costs

Development Costs Per Room
Building hard construction costs $114,714
FF&E costs $16,000
Underground parking costs $61,948
Demolition and site prep costs $25,877

Subtotal, Hard Costs $218,539
Soft costs (d) $43,708
Impact and connection fees $7,138
Contingency Fee $13,112
Developer Fee (f) $13,112
Construction financing - interest $8,647
Construction financing - loan fees $3,843

Subtotal, Soft Costs $89,560
Total Construction Costs $308,098
Developer Profit $30,810

Total Development Costs (Excluding Land)
Cost per built sq. ft.
Cost per room

Total
$8,029,990
$1,120,000
$4,336,362
$1,811,365

$15,297,716

$3,059,543
$499,640
$917,863
$917,863
$605,259
$269,004
$6,269,172

$21,566,888
$2,156,689
$23,723,577

$593.83
$338,908.25

Value Analysis

Projected Income Per Room Total
Gross Hotel Revenues $81,528 $5,706,965
Less Operating Expenses ($52,993) ($3,709,527)
Net Operating Income (NOI) $28,535 $1,997,438
Yield as % of Total Development Cost 8.4%
Development Feasibility
Capitalized Value $356,685 $24,967,970
Less Development Costs ($338,908)  ($23,723,577)
Less Land Cost $0 $0
Project Profit $17,777 $1,244,393

Source: BAE, 2018.
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Pro Forma for Baseline Hotel Development at 1704 El Camino Real, Menlo Park

Development Program Assumptions Cost and Income Assumptions

Project Characteristics Development Costs
Site Hotel Per Room Per SF
Site area (acres) 0.84  Construction hard costs (a) $116,745 $201
Site area (sq. ft.) 36,398 FF&E $14,000 $24.10
Off-site work area (sq. ft.) 5,275  Impact and connection fees (b) $5,692 $9.80
Building General Development Costs
Hotel rooms 47  Site prep cost, per site work area sq. ft. (a)(c) $43.47
Building gross sq. ft. 27,299  Soft costs as % of hard costs (d) 20%
Developer fee as % of hard and soft costs 5%
Parking Developer profit as % of total construction costs 10%
Surface parking spaces 39  Contingency as % of hard and soft costs 5%
Parking ratio (spaces per room) 0.83
Operating Revenues and Expenses
Built Project FAR 0.75  Operating revenue (per occupied room night) $220
Expenses (as % of operating revenue) 70%
Notes: Hotel occupancy rate 7%
(a) Construction costs provided by the
developer were supported by contractor Construction Financing
detail and were reorganized by BAE for this Construction loan to cost ratio 65%
proforma. Loan fee (points) 2%
(b) Includes the following FY 2017-18 Interest rate 6%
impact fees: Building Construction Road Loan period (months) 18
Impact Fee, Traffic Impact Fee, Drawdown factor 50%
Supplemental Traffic Impact Fee, BMR Total construction costs (excluding financing costs) $10,769,967
Housing In-lieu fee, ECR/Downtown Specific
Plan Preparation fee, Sequoia Union High Capitalization rate 8%
School District Impact Fee, Menlo Park City

Elementary School District Impact Fee. Excludes sewer connection fees, water capital facilities charges, storm
drainage connection fees, pending City calculations. Figures are net of existing hotel rooms to be demolished.
Does not include any potential impact fee from Menlo Park Fire Protection District.

(c) Site prep costs include demolition, underground utilities, and landscaping costs. Overall site prep work area
includes off-site work area.

(d) Developer soft costs exclude financing costs, contingency fee, developer fee, and other line items in this
proforma.

(e) The analysis assumes a developer fee to cover the costs of managing the development of a project; the
developer fee does not represent profit.

Development Costs

Development Costs
Building hard construction costs
FF&E costs

Demolition, site prep and surface parking costs

Subtotal, Hard Costs

Soft costs (d)

Impact and connection fees

Contingency Fee

Developer Fee (e)

Construction financing - interest

Construction financing - loan fees
Subtotal, Soft Costs

Total Construction Costs
Developer Profit
Total Development Costs (Excluding Land)

Cost per built sq. ft.
Cost per room

Per Room
$116,745
$14,000
$38,540
$169,285

$33,857
$5,692
$10,157
$10,157
$6,703
$2,979
$69,545

$238,830

$23,883

Total
$5,487,026
$658,000
$1,811,365
$7,956,390

$1,591,278
$267,532
$477,383
$477,383
$315,022
$140,010
$3,268,608

$11,224,999
$1,122,500
$12,347,498

$452.31
$262,713

Value Analysis

Projected Income
Gross Hotel Revenues

Less Operating Expenses
Net Operating Income (NOI)

Yield as % of Total Development Cost

Development Feasibility
Capitalized Value

Less Development Costs
Less Land Cost

Project Profit

Per Room
$61,831

($43,282)

$18,549

$231,866

($262,713)
$0
($30,846)

Total
$2,906,057
($2,034,240)
$871,817

7.1%

$10,897,714

($12,347,498)
$0
($1,449,785)

Source: BAE, 2018.
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ATTACHMENT M

From: S Liao

To: Planning Commission; _CCIN

Subject: PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING TO VOTE ON HAMPTON INN HOTEL
Date: Wednesday, June 19, 2019 4:18:24 PM

Dear Commissioners -

| live on Buckthorn Way in the Buckthorn Park development. I'm writing to express the
views of several residents in our HOA, along with Park Forest. We have studied Mr.
Patel's proposal to build an expanded Hampton Inn since the fall of 2016. I've spoken
at one meeting and relayed our concerns about noise, density, privacy, traffic and
design and signed the petition along side the Park Forest residents.

We as neighbors have proactively campaigned, against size and design of the
development, considering it will replace a large oak tree and lots of greenery with an
unobtrusive business. We tried working with Mr. Patel, but received less
consideration than our more populous neighboring HOA, but tried to work with them
to reach a compromise. We shared our concerns and desire for underground
parking, property line set backs, and a visual set back to the Forest Lane and
Buckthorn sides of the hotel, in addition to tall trees that would shield the building
from view. We were concerned about the unreasonableness of the Public Benefit
Bonus for the Low Density NE area, in which we reside, and continue to strongly
protest its application. Mr. Patel's change to his plans in 2018, moving the
underground parking to the ground level, changing the setback, and increasing the
bulk and the proposing blinding color of the building, etc., showed his total lack of
concern about the issues we raised. | have spoken at a meeting, and continue to
oppose that plan.

As some of my neighbors have mentioned and | would like to echo herein, we need to
guestion the application of this Public Benefit Bonus for the Low Density NE area.
The traffic congestion seems to have quadrupled, so that turning into and from El
Camino or Middlefield takes several minutes, due to lack of stop lights or stop signs.
A large hotel in this area would significantly exacerbate the situation. The city needs
to revisit the circumstances for granting a right to high density in a low-density zoned
district, especially since the hotel location is not on EI Camino Real, but several
hundred feet back from the road.

Furthermore, it is unclear that the Transit Occupancy Tax will be collected as
expected and that will not resolve any of the traffic, noise, and size/decor issues that
would result if this project is approved.

In addition, the large mature trees that are "diseased" or "dying" should be examined
by a third party, before they are removed.
Thank you in advance for considering my concerns.

Kind regards,

Suzan Liao


mailto:liaosuzan@gmail.com
mailto:planning.commission@menlopark.org
mailto:city.council@menlopark.org
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132 Buckthorn Way
Menlo Park
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From: Eric Easom

To: Planning Commission

Cc: ParkForestPlus@groups.io; _CCIN

Subject: 1704 ECR Development - Hampton Inn Proposal
Date: Tuesday, June 18, 2019 11:53:22 PM

Dear Planning Commission,

| am writing in regards to the 1704 ECR project. As a resident of 171 Forest Lane in the Park Forest
neighborhood, my wife have raised our two kids, ages 11 and 13, here since 2011. While | am
generally very supportive of development in Menlo Park and, especially along ECR, | do not support
having a large Hampton Inn sitting right in plain sight of our main living area. The proposed 1704 ECR
project proposes to build a three story Hampton Inn on a flag lot that sits some 200 feet back from
ECR via an access road. This is behind the local businesses along ECR and smack dab in the middle of
three residential areas surrounding all sides of the proposed development. This area is designated
“low-density” in the overall master development plan. The planning commission is being asked to
approve a project that would allow a public benefit bonus that would
building by 30% based solely on the rationale of getting an additional transient occupancy tax
without any consideration of the negative effects on the surrounding neighbors and neighborhoods.

i

‘increase” the size of the

| ask you to please strongly consider the public benefit of such a project that puts a large Hampton
Inn with transient occupants in the middle of a neighborhood with families and children. This does
not create a sense of community and will have a negative public benefit to more than 80 homes in
the surrounding area.

| also want to mention that the current site has two amazingly beautiful heritage oaks that have
been claimed to be “dying” and, two more 100+ tall pine trees that have been labelled beetle-
infested that must be removed and replaced by this large structure. | think it is worth inspecting this
decision further to make sure that an independent assessment was made, as the removal of these
trees and replacing them with a three story Hampton Inn will change the entire landscape and
western skyline of this unique property and neighborhood.

I’'m certain if the negative impacts of the proposed development are considered there is no
justification for a public benefit for such a project.

Thank you for your consideration of our views and opposition the public benefit bonus.

Kind regards,
Eric Easom

171 Forest Lane
Menlo Park, CA 94025


mailto:hopepharma@hotmail.com
mailto:planning.commission@menlopark.org
mailto:ParkForestPlus@groups.io
mailto:city.council@menlopark.org
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From: Dave Forter

To: Planning Commission

Cc: ParkForestPlus@groups.io; _CCIN

Subject: 1704 El Camino Real(ECR) Development Project
Date: Monday, June 17, 2019 4:02:31 PM

Planning Commission,

| am one of the many signatories on the Petition to remove the Public Benefit Bonus(PBB) from the
1704 ECR Development Project (aka Hampton Inn). | believe that the PBB for this project is entirely
unwarranted. The stated public benefit is increased occupancy tax. While this will add to the city’s
coffers, it has no benefit for the surrounding neighborhood. There is no green space; no amenity;
only unwanted mass in the middle of residential buildings.

I am a member of the public and the neighborhood. | live on Forest Lane and will be directly
impacted by this massive proposed structure. | see only diminished light and increased refuse from
this project. | don’t see any benefit whatsoever. | am a constituent and voter, who hopes that you
are listening to and working for me as much as for a developer who does not live in the
neighborhood.

This project is inappropriate for its location. It is enclosed on three sides by residential structures. It
is well set back from ECR and only has access via an easement. | don’t believe that the either the city
council or the residents intended this section of the Menlo Park Specific Plan to have incompatible,
commercial structures in the midst of residential areas. This is not downtown.

The PBB revenue from this project is a pittance compared to the tax revenue generated by the
Facebook, Stanford, etc. developments. Is it really worth upsetting a couple of hundred voters?
How much is enough? | hope that is not what this is all about.

Please represent your constituents when you consider this project on June 24™. please consider the
negative impacts on the residential neighborhoods. Please deny the PBB for the 1704 ECR
Development Project.

Thank you for considering my request,
David Forter

151 Forest Lane
Menlo Park, CA 94025


mailto:davef@lcdsystems.com
mailto:planning.commission@menlopark.org
mailto:ParkForestPlus@groups.io
mailto:city.council@menlopark.org
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From: Scott Barnum

To: Planning Commission

Cc: ParkForestPlus@groups.io; _CCIN

Subject: 1704 El Camino - Overhauling The Red Cottage Inn - Resident Feedback
Date: Monday, June 17, 2019 9:41:32 AM

Members Of The Planning Commission:

| am a resident of the Park Forest neighborhood where the conversion of the Red Cottage to a
Hampton Inn at 1704 El Camino is being proposed. This project is coming up for a hearing on June

24™M | am also a member of the Park Forest Plus group of residents from the area representing
three Homeowner Associations along Stone Pine Lane, Forest Lane and Buckthorn as well as the
independent residents of the neighborhood. Park Forest Plus has coalesced to deal with this
commercial development project in our backyard. As you know, we have invited Planning
Commission members to view our neighborhood (there are invites out to the two new members)
and see first-hand how the hotel is situated within Park Forest and why nearly 80 people have signed
a petition noting concern about the plans, the Public Benefit Bonus for hotel projects like this one
and about commercial development generally within a low-density residential neighborhood.

In my view, commercial development in a residential neighborhood, like ours, should be mitigated.
Additionally, the City should think long and hard when and how it uses the Public Benefit Bonus and
about eliminating the PPB altogether where there is no real benefit to the public. Asyou can
understand, it’s about resident homeowners defending our property values, quality of life, privacy
and mitigating noise, light, traffic et.al, to the maximum extent possible. If someone desires lots of
noise, light, traffic and less privacy in a residence, they can move into a City or high-rise living in a
downtown core. Proximity to downtown without most of the “stuff” that comes with a downtown is
what |, and most of my neighbors, bought into in Park Forest. It is a unique neighborhood that is
worth defending.

Personally, | doubt officials in charge of developing the City’s ECR Downtown Specific Plan at the
time understood where 1704 El Camino was actually situated, i.e., a couple of hundred yards back
off of El Camino and embedded deeply within a neighborhood that has been historically zoned low-
density residential. The property had an ECR address so it was included in the plan, likely without
much thought. Please note. | don’t think that all commercial development is evil. Nor is the
developer of 1704 El Camino, Mr. Sagar. He’s looking to improve his property and it’s ROl. He has
also been reasonable in dealing with our group/neighborhood. Indeed, he and his family used to live
in our neighborhood and president of one of its HOA’s. That said, the granting of the PBB is likely
the lynchpin in making the project economically viable for the developer. You, the Council and the
City attorney need to ask is collecting the extra hotel occupancy taxes that the additional hotel
rooms provide, but which is already mandated by law, a true public benefit and worthy of granting a
PBB as defined in the meaning and intent of the PPB statute? | and many others don’t think so.

As this project specifically is reviewed and commercial development in general for the City is
reevaluated, please give some real deliberation to the appropriateness and validity of the PPB grant
in projects like the Hampton Inn, especially for projects situated in low-density neighborhoods like
Park Forest throughout Menlo Park.


mailto:microbarny@msn.com
mailto:planning.commission@menlopark.org
mailto:ParkForestPlus@groups.io
mailto:city.council@menlopark.org
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Cheers,

Scott Barnum

137 Stone Pine Lane
Menlo Park, CA 94025
microbarny@msn.com

(650-224-5671 (m)


mailto:microbarny@msn.com
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From: John Dearborn

To: Sandmeier, Corinna D

Cc: Harlan Matles; Sarah Watson; Darren Phelan
Subject: Re: 1704 ECR - Proposed Hampton Inn
Date: Saturday, June 8, 2019 9:51:29 PM
Attachments: emailDearAssoc Logo 4.16.18.pdf

ATTO00001.htm

Greetings,

| am an orthopaedic surgeon and my outpatient office occupies the ground floor of 1706 ECR.
| have ajoint replacement practice. We see patients M-F and some are quite elderly and frail.
Access to our building isacritical issue. On occasion we have needed emergency vehiclesin
our parking lot to help. Given the traffic on ECR and the obstruction to our parking lot that a
construction project might bring, | wonder if it makes sense to create an access point from
Buckthorn. | am concerned that we could have a problem with one of our patients and not be
able to manage it appropriately during a construction project. | am sure that the medical group
upstairs shares my concern.

Please advise. | do not know the timing of your meeting on June 24th.

John T. Dearborn, MD


mailto:jdearborn@dearbornassoc.com
mailto:cdsandmeier@menlopark.org
mailto:matles@md2.com
mailto:watson@md2.com
mailto:docphelan@hotmail.com

DEARBORN

& ASSOCIATES
INSTITUTE FOR JOINT RESTORATION







Serving People in Jesus' Name through Unmatched Joint Replacement Care


1706 El Camino Real, Suite 101, Menlo Park, CA 94025
(650) 325-1395	Fax (650) 325-2019


Center for Joint Replacement Building
2000 Mowry Avenue, Fremont, CA 94538
(510) 818-7200	Fax (510) 742-9334


www.DearbornAssoc.com 


“It's only in Christianity that you get the verdict before the performance.”  Tim Keller










On Jun 7, 2019, at 12:32 PM, Sandmeier, Corinna D <cdsandmeier@menlopark.org> wrote:

Hi All,
 
I wanted to let you know this project is scheduled for the June 24th Planning Commission hearing. Information on the project is available on the project webpage: https://www.menlopark.org/1352/1704-El-Camino-Real
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.
 
Thanks,
Corinna

 

		<CMP_Email_Logo_100dpi_05d92d5b-e8e3-498f-93a6-d0da509bd602111111111.png>		  Corinna D. Sandmeier
  Senior Planner
  City Hall - 1st Floor
  701 Laurel St.
  tel  650-330-6726 
  menlopark.org
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From: Ching-Yu Hu

To: Sandmeier, Corinna D

Cc: Wei Gu

Subject: Re: 1704 ECR - Proposed Hampton Inn

Date: Saturday, June 8, 2019 10:40:17 AM

Attachments: CMP_Email Logo 100dpi 05d92d5b-e8e3-498f-93a6-d0da509bd602111111111.png
Hi Corinna --

Thank you for sending this update. | will not be able to make the hearing due to work
constraints but wanted to outline further thoughts below on my objection for your
consideration. Is there abroader team that | can forward this email to?

1) this hampton inn tarnishes the menlo park atmosphere and is sandwiched on 3 sides with
quiet, residential units. even though there is a parking garage, there will certainly be overflow
and greater unnecessary traffic into the residential parking areas. i urge you to come take a
look at the area to see how strange it would be to have a hampton inn here - all the stone pine
3 story units aren't even allowed to be rented due to HOA (just for this reason to be quaint,
quiet, low traffic).

2) the marginal tax benefits of such a building do not outweigh the inconvenience and oddity
of having a hampton inn in the heart of menlo park

3) there at least 4 hotels in a one mile radius that are underutilized, the demand for such a hotel
will be minimal and there's a non-zero chance it won't be a profitable venture that will need to
be redone in the future

4) i do not live alongside the border of the construction area but want to speak on behalf of all
the units adjacent to them and voice my concerns that it will reduce their property value as
well as serve as a nuisance for having a hotel nearby (noise, traffic, etc.)

5) if thereis significant interest from the city to have a new hotel in thislot, why not find a
developer of ahigh-end luxury hotel vsathird rate hotel chain?i'd venture there's areason
why there aren't ANY hampton inns along most of the peninsula - and are only in
fremont/south mountain view/south san jose/milpitas. there isn't demand and i would not be
surprised if most city planning commissioners denied proposals to do so for a variety of
reasons.

Thanks for your consideration and review. Happy to discuss via phone/email aswell if helpful.
CY

On Fri, Jun 7, 2019 at 12:33 PM Sandmeier, Corinna D <cdsandmeler@menlopark.org>
wrote:

Hi All,

| wanted to let you know this project is scheduled for the June 24th Planning
Commission hearing. Information on the project is available on the project webpage:

https://www.menlopark.org/1352/1704-El-Camino-Real


mailto:chingyu.hu@gmail.com
mailto:cdsandmeier@menlopark.org
mailto:microfluidics@gmail.com
mailto:cdsandmeier@menlopark.org
https://www.menlopark.org/1352/1704-El-Camino-Real

MENLO PARK
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Please let me know if you have any questions.

Thanks,

Corinna

Corinna D. Sandmeier
Senior Planner

City Hall - 1st Floor
701 Laurel St.

R tel 650-330-6726

MENLO PARK | menlopark.org



http://www.menlopark.org/
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From: Susan Neville

To: Sandmeier, Corinna D

Subject: Comments on 1704 ECR

Date: Wednesday, May 15, 2019 4:15:58 PM
Hi Corinna,

In response to your request for a summary of neighborhood concerns and follow up to
our meeting on May 7, 2019, I've asked for input from the Park Forest Plus group of
homeowners. We all live adjacent to 1704 ECR (north, east and south) and have
been following the developments of 1704 ECR since its initial proposal and

inception. For 3 years now, we have collected input, studied plans, met with city staff
and collaborated with the developer, Mr. Patel, about the impact of his proposed
plans on our neighborhood and community. From the outset our efforts have been to
work with, not against, him. We recognize some development will happen and we
want that development to be in the interest of people who live here.

Here are the concerns that we see with current project design/plans (dated Apr 2019).
| can’t be sure that there aren’t others. This is what | have at hand. Will you be
sharing this with Planning Commissioners?

1. The second floor roof top terrace: There was agreement between the
developer and neighbors to set back the third story and create a clean, not for
public use, second story roof top terrace. Visually, this would break-up the mass of
the rear view and be an attractive add to the view. However, the current plans
show a hotel room has been added at the rear of the 2nd floor that juts out on this
terrace. A trellis is planned there to add some decorative greenery, but it was
never the intention to use this trellis to hide a building afterthought. This room
addition takes away from the visual integrity of the design; it is unattractive and
compromises what we agreed to. This architectural projection will be the first thing
that anyone on Forest Lane sees. The room should be eliminated. There are
alternative ways to get the extra room that the developer wants. (We believe this
modification to the March 2018 plans was made because of a request from a 3rd
party city designer who may not understand the follow-on consequences of the
proposed change he suggested to the north side.)

2.  Fencing: The fencing details are not laid out on the plans that we could see.
Neighbors would like assurance that the fencing along each of the sides, including
the access drive to the east, will be at least 8 feet in height and solid wood (no
lattice). The Forest Lane fence line is getting additional attention from residents.
There may be a request for a different treatment of the fence directly facing Forest
Lane.


mailto:scneville@gmail.com
mailto:cdsandmeier@menlopark.org
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3. Drainage: Neighbors on all sides are concerned about potential drainage
from the landscaping and irrigation being proposed, that will affect trees and
landscaping on their properties,. Of particular concern are the oaks and redwood
on the south side of the project, as well as the trees at the end of Forest Lane. We
can't tell where the runoff water from 1704 ECR goes and want to make sure that
the engineers consider the health of adjacent trees.

4. Building Color: The bright white color of the facade that faces north is of
concern to neighbors on that side. They are glad to see the alternate choices that
were submitted and prefer a warmer and more subdued shade. They are taking a
closer look at the options.

5. Lighting: We couldn’t accurately determine the specs of the lighting fixtures
on the plan. We believe many to be bollards, which are low to the ground, but
would like to know more about the spot lights and safety lights and what the
impact is on the surrounding properties at night.

6. Transformer: The neighbors at Buckthorn Park are very concerned about
the placement of the transformer so close to their homes. It is a potential hazard
and they would like it located further away.

7. Potential alley disturbance: Neighbors on the north side and those
bordering the alleyway would like assurances that the alley will not be used for
deliveries to the hotel and that trash pickup will be no earlier than 8 am, given the
very close proximity of the homes.

We appreciate the time and consideration your staff is giving this project because
of the potential impacts on and legitimate concerns of the many residential
neighbors that border 1704 ECR (e.g., property values, light/noise pollution,
privacy, security and quality of life).

In light of the above, we would like to reiterate a more general and strategic
concern of our neighborhood. If we were starting out today, we would likely
oppose ANY project of this scope and commercial nature within a residential
neighborhood. In the past 3 years, anxiety about the amount of development
along ECR and the related traffic, congestion and noise has certainly increased.
Our neighborhood, Park Forest, is a designated “low-density” zone and that
should afford some protection against a large commercial structure, such as the
one being proposed, that is situated not on ECR but several hundred feet off of
ECR tucked in between residential buildings within a predominantly residential
neighborhood. We believe the Public Benefit Bonus and FAR waivers should not
apply in “low-density” zones. At least 80 people signed a petition to this effect.
Unfortunately, there is no real Public Benefit being offered in this project that we
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can see. The occupancy tax that a hotel collects is required by law and paid by the
customers - not the owner. We believe that carefully specifying what is and is not
allowed in a “low density” zone (including size/type of building and any
PBB’s/exemptions) is an important consideration for the Planning Commission

and City Council to review going forward with its Master and Downtown Specific
Plans.

If you or any of the Planning personnel have any questions regarding this, please
contact me for further input.

Warmest regards,

Susan Neville

On behalf of Park Forest Plus



1704 El Camino Real — A Planning Misfire

To The Commissioners:

As you know, Menlo Park has been pursuing its Downtown Specific Plan along El Camino Real in an effort to
enliven a land of barren ground and chainlink fences. Those laudable efforts have to date concentrated in the
southern and middle sections of the city. Now comes the first big effort at the very northern edge of the city, and
it's a perfect misfire, putting a large, unwelcome hotel in a low-density, residential section of the city.

Flying in the face of current practice in the El Camino planning area, Planning Staff seems to assume a special
deal for the proposed Hampton Inn at 1704 El Camino Real that brings elements of a freeway-inn to a residential
area (zoning ECR NE-L), including above-ground parking. While all other important projects along El Camino
in Menlo Park's Downtown Specific Planning zone have been designed with underground parking, the Hampton
Inn's plan is to squat atop its parking, which, by a loophole, doesn't count in computation of the Floor Area
Ratio. At the same time, staff seem to be assuming award of a Public Benefit Bonus that allows a substantial
increase in building size. These Public Benefit Bonuses are intended for projects that provide a special element
for the public good, such as a plaza for public enjoyment.

Yet, there's no such plaza at the Hampton Inn. Instead, the project's purported special contribution is to pay the
same 12% Transient Occupancy Tax that every other hotel in town pays. In return for sticking by the law, the
project's developers are apparently to be rewarded an FAR up to 1.10—30% bulkier than the standard FAR in
Menlo Park's Downtown Specific Plan. With the fatter FAR, there's simply more Hampton Inn, which at 38 feet
will loom over neighboring houses that are less than two-thirds that height and cram far closer to those houses.

The originally-proposed Hampton Inn project had underground parking, and as of late last year there was a hard-
fought pact crafted with neighbors that had brought many improvements to the initial design. All seemed in
balance until the developer, Sagar Patel, unilaterally walked away from that agreement this May, saying at the
time that he couldn't afford the deal. The current design (as of drawings filed for October 8 study session) cut
costs by an estimated $4 million through elimination of under-ground parking. In addition, design details have
been removed and the design's increased footprint means razor-thin clearances next to neighboring houses,
clearances that had been widened by the earlier neighborhood pact.

It's impossible to fathom the Planning Staff's persistent assumption of a Public Benefit Bonus application to a
design that violates standard parking practice in the downtown planning area. It's difficult to figure the public
benefit from a plan that saves money for the developer and yet worsens the lot of the public. It's an astonishing
turn of events that could be resolved by re-establishing the earlier agreement with the neighborhood that includes
the underground parking. I urge that you, as commissioners, reverse the assumption of a Public Benefit Bonus
and require re-establishment of underground parking plus other elements foreseen by the earlier neighborhood
agreement.

Sincerely,

Frederick B Rose,
Menlo Park Resident

M13
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From: Healey. Panteha

To: Planning Commission

Subject: Hampton Inn Development

Date: Wednesday, October 31, 2018 1:21:15 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Importance: High

To The City Council Persons and or Planning Commissioners,

| am a resident within the Park Forest Community and | have concerns regarding the potential
Hampton Inn development at 1704 El Camino Real.

I'm not clear on why the City Planners have taken the step of granting a discretionary Public Benefit
Bonus for this project, without taking into consideration the perpetual negative impacts of
congestion, traffic, noise (air, light and sound) and a general lack of privacy that this new structure
will represent to the Park Forest community, and I'd like to understand the reasoning here.

| feel strongly that a project of this magnitude, if approved, will permanently and negatively affect
the desirability and economic viability of our neighborhood. Over 100 concerned residents will have
to bear not only the long-term economic costs that are sure to affect our home values but also the
more "personal" costs of this project that effect our quality of life. How is this fair? What is the
tipping point to influence your decision, if 100 is not enough?

Surely there are more creative ways to get this project built the proper way (underground parking
making the most sense). | urge you to reconsider the many costly, long-term impacts of this project
on our neighborhood. Also, to not simply look to the “benefit” that both the developer (in cost
savings) and City (via collecting more TOT) reap. The residents of Park Forest are the ones who will
bear the greatest costs of your decisions.

Best,

Panteha Healey

Startup Business Development
Amazon Web Services | San Francisco

panteha@amazon.com

adWsS



mailto:panteha@amazon.com
mailto:planning.commission@menlopark.org
http://aws.amazon.com/
mailto:panteha@amazon.com
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From: Carol Broadbent

To: Planning Commission; _CCIN

Cc: Susan Neville

Subject: 17-year resident of Menlo Park: Opposed to Misguided Hampton Inn Proposal
Date: Tuesday, October 30, 2018 11:48:58 AM

Dear City of Menlo Park Leadership,

After two years of constructive communication, planning and collaboration with the hotel developer Sagar
Patel, we of the Park Forest home community are now opposed to the revised plan (unveiled in May 2018)
for redevelopment of the existing Red Cottage Inn. I’ m writing to reiterate my opposition to the current plan
because it does not include underground parking, and instead creates a hardship on our City, and on our
Park Forest home community in particular, with increased noise, traffic congestion from the proximity and
size of the new structure.

The City leaders have granted a discretionary Public Benefit Bonus for this project without taking into
consideration the serious negative impacts of congestion, traffic, noise, lack of privacy and undesirable
encroachment of this new, large commercial building on our residential community. Without the
underground parking as part of the plan, the new building will be nearly double the size allowed for our
low-density zoning. Further, this new hotel appearsto violate Municipal Code Section 16.68.020 by
diminishing the character of our neighborhood and negatively impacting the desirability of our Park Forest
neighborhood which is directly adjacent.

Wein the Park Forest community had supported the previous plan which was far more reasonable, and was
designed to include underground parking. Simply put, without underground parking, this large commercia
building will no longer include the setbacks from property lines that would make the new structure a
favorable addition to the City that “fit” into our community.

We are asking the City leaders to consider the long-term impacts of their decisions so that we can preserve
the character and quality of our neighborhood. I’ m asking the Commissioners again to please take alonger-
term view of their decisions and find away to compel developer Sagar Patel to incorporate underground
parking with reasonable setbacks and hotel size into his plans. | attended the City Planning Commission
meeting on October 8, and it struck me that the Commissioners were bending over backwards to
accommodate Mr. Patel’ sincreasing costs. But it’s not fair for the Commissioners to make the Park Forest
residents bear those costs in terms our diminished quality of life.

Respectfully,
Carol Broadbent

Buckthorn Way
Menlo Park


mailto:carol@crowdedocean.com
mailto:planning.commission@menlopark.org
mailto:councilmail@menlopark.org
mailto:scneville@gmail.com

To: Menlo Park Planning Commissioners
From: Fred Rose, Menlo Park Resident
Date: October 22, 2018
Re: The Proposed Hampton Inn

This correspondence addresses the concept of “Public Benefit,” more specifically, just how much
Public Benefit does the proposed Hampton Inn project provide, and to whom? In doing so, we look at a
number of factors, from the Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT), to the massed structure that would be
permitted by a Bonus, and to the uncomfortably rapid development of hotel rooms. What follows
demonstrates clearly that the Public Benefit Bonus is being erroneously applied to this project.
Accordingly, the Planning Commission should immediately withdraw any grant of a “Public Benefit
Bonus” from the planning process. *

1) Let's start at the beginning: When the ECR/Downtown Specific Plan was first approved, the
little Red Cottage Inn wasn't really a part of that ambitious vision to reshape the city. A close
look at maps in the initial program shows the Red Cottage Inn, while technically backed into
the Plan area, as an “existing building not included in opportunity sites.” As a result of
circumstances rather than planning, a change occurred around 2016. Now the Red Cottage Inn's
proposed successor, a freeway-style Hampton Inn, is being considered among other things to
enhance “downtown vibrancy.”

2) Neighborhood involvement with the site started early: Beginning in 2016, the group that has
since become Park Forest Plus undertook negotiations with the developer, Sagar Patel. (A
detailed timeline of those talks is attached.) As has been widely noted, after negotiating for a
year and a half, the neighborhood came to an agreement with Mr. Patel, a pact that was
unilaterally abrogated by the developer this May. This agreement included underground
parking, called for wider setbacks at property lines and other considerations. However, Mr.
Patel has since said that construction costs had risen to the point where he was unable to put
parking underground, as agreed to. From there, once underground parking shifted above-
ground, the mass of the structure was drastically altered and increased, as we shall see shortly.

3) The purported Public Benefit: This “Public Benefit” being applied to the Hampton Inn is
based solely on the TOT, estimated at $680,500 annually. However, this gross figure overlooks
the current contribution of the Red Cottage Inn, which is to be torn down. The Hampton Inn's
net contribution to the public purse, after deducting the Red Cottage Inn's existing payments, is
projected at $390,000, or a slim 3.5% of the currently-budgeted $11.2 million city-wide TOT.
Note here that TOT is the second-largest revenue item in the city budget and by far the fastest-
growing category. Such rapid growth strongly suggests Menlo Park's scant need for further,
small contributions such as that of the Hampton Inn. The Inn's prospective contribution is not a
“significant” public benefit (in Commission staff's words) but in fact a very small and costly
one in terms of neighborhood integrity. On this basis alone, the Commission should strike the
Public Benefit Bonus.
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4)

5)

6)

7)

Good Planning?: In return for this small TOT contribution, the Hampton Inn project is being
granted an extraordinary 40% increase in Floor Area Ratio (1.05 FAR) over the standard 0.75
FAR for projects in the ECR/Downtown Specific Plan. There's more. Since covered parking
spaces are now above ground, the mass of the building has mushroomed. By city definition,
covered parking spaces are not counted in an “official” FAR calculation. Thus, by this loophole,
a large part of the structure is excluded from the Commission's math. Counting the above-
ground (but-covered) parking pushes the bonus boost to an outrageous 78%. This commercial
bulk is in sharp contrast to the surrounding leafy residential area of residential townhouses and
park-like wooded area. For this alone, good planning and equity argue that the Planning
Commission should immediately stop further consideration based on the Public Benefit Bonus
planning assumptions.

Massing of the Hampton Inn: Without question massing has exploded with the elimination of
under-ground parking. The building has pushed ever wider in a residential neighborhood never
intended to be exposed to such commercial pressure under the initial ECR/Downtown Specific
Plan. This is shocking—nowhere else in the ECR/Downtown Specific Plan is a large, new
commercial building jammed up against a residential neighborhood as the Planning
Commission now proposes. Suddenly, under a September 14 plan, a 40 foot-high combined
wall and roof slope loomed over the much shorter 26-foot height of neighboring townhouses.
This hotel face, with trash bins against the fence, was squeezed within just 24 feet 5 inches of
its eastern boundary instead of the earlier-negotiated 38 feet of clearance. On the north side,
cars will be parking within 5 feet of neighboring houses. To the south, clearance is currently
planned at 10 feet. What was the first floor under the agreed-upon plan has become a parking
level, moving the hotel's first floor to the second level, above the parking, in turn squashing the
building's vertical flooring. One easily might ask the question: “What kind of planning is this?”

What's happened with construction costs?: Like everything else, they've grown—but not
nearly to the extent put forth by the developer. In the core of this case, under-ground parking
has gone from $74,800 per space (cited in a March 2018 staff study) to $80,000 a space, now
declared by Mr. Patel. While an unfortunate increase for the developer, it's well short of the
doubling that's sometimes spoken of.

There really is no precedent: The newly-opened Park James Hotel also used the TOT as the
basis for its Public Benefit Bonus; while it's tempting to cite the newly-opened hotel as a
precedent, the Park James is a completely different case study. The hotel is set far closer to the
heart of the city, in a commercial area across from a gas station and next door to an office
building. There is underground parking. Unlike the Hampton Inn, the Park James was approved
without significant neighborhood opposition. In 2016, Planning Commission staff
commissioned a study by BAE Urban Economics that estimated TOT of $445,000 to $756,000
annually, somewhat higher at the top end than the Hampton Inn's and with more room for
revenue growth. City-wide TOT receipts at that time the Park James was approved were a lesser
$6.7 million, meaning that the Park James' contribution to city coffers promised 7.1% to 12.1%
of the city's TOT take—more than twice the 3.5% that the Hampton Inn is now said to offer.
Looking ahead, the boutique hotel will likely will have room rates considerably higher than the
Hampton Inn. While staff termed the Park James contribution “substantial,” it throttled that
back in the Hampton Inn description to “significant.”
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8)

9)

In either case the TOT contribution presents a poor case for a Public Benefit Bonus:
Paying one's taxes shouldn't be the basis for a Bonus. The Commission's two TOT mistakes
don't make for good planning. Indeed, the defacto presumption that the Public Benefit
allowance is also applicable for the Hampton Inn project has been more an exercise in
expeditious permitting than sound planning. To avoid a second error, the Commission should
remove the TOT as a basis for a bonus immediately.

More planning needed: The need for the Hampton Inn's 68 rooms is questionable in Menlo
Park, where not only has the Park James Hotel recently opened but also the new 200-room
Hotel Nia. In the works as well is another 200-room hotel in the Facebook development. In
2012, the ECR/Downtown Specific Plan forecast some 380 new hotel rooms over the next 30 to
40 years. That figure is already about to be exceeded in only seven years by projects already on
the books. Too many hotels with too many rooms now threaten cannibalization of the city's
eventually limited demand. What Menlo Park needs aren't more hotel rooms, but more common
sense and good planning.

10) On the matter of neighborhood involvement: It has been disappointing to note that

commission staff has put all mention of residential views at the bottom of its studies, suggesting
callous disregard for public opinion in the Commission's decisions. Some Commissioners seem
not to have studied the file thoroughly. In remarks at a public study session, on Oct. 8, 2018, I'm
told that Commission Chair, Ms. Susan Goodhue, said of an issue before the Commission that
it's no big deal. I'd strongly argue otherwise. The Commission clearly needs to improve its
understanding of the interface between town planning and the political plane.

-0-

* [ want to emphasize that these remarks are entirely my own. I do not speak in any official
capacity for the neighborhood.



PARK FOREST NEIGHBORHOOD'’S TIMELINE OF ENGAGEMENT:

1704 ECR DEVELOPMENT

October 12, 2016

Petition letter opposing the development circulated to Park Forest and
surrounding communities, garnering widespread support. Exhibit A

November 8, 2016

First meeting between Neighborhood representatives and Corinna
Sandmeier (Associate Planner, Menlo Park).

December 5, 2016

Neighborhood meeting at Pacific Union. Sagar Patel (Developer) was
invited to answer residents’ many concerns. 35 neighbors attended. Many
letters sent to City Planning following the meeting.

December 14, 2016

Summary of issues raised at 12/5 meeting circulated to residents. Exhibit B

February 4, 2017

First meeting of Neighborhood Committee (Susan Neville, Mike Brady,
Dave Forter, Margaret Race, Carol Diamond, Glenna Patton).

February 6, 2017

Updated petition letter submitted to Corinna Sandmeier to reflect
additional signatures (final total of 80). Exhibit C

March 13, 2017

Neighborhood Committee meeting (same participants as noted above).

March 27, 2017 Neighborhood Committee pre-meeting for Sagar Patel meeting.

April 3, 2017 First meeting with Sagar Patel (Developer) to view the site from 190 Forest
Lane (closest to 1704 ECR property) and discuss neighborhood concerns.
Verbal agreement from Sagar Patel to move 3™ story rooms from rear-
facing side of hotel (facing Forest Lane).

May 3, 2017 Second meeting with Sagar Patel to discuss additional modifications to the
plans. Initial agreements summarized in letter to Menlo Park. Exhibit D

May 8, 2017 Susan Neville sends Sagar Patel a recap of the outstanding issues, as well
as a draft letter to neighbors summarizing Patel’s agreed changes. Patel
had the opportunity to weigh in on letter prior to circulation.

May 9, 2017 Updated letter on agreed changes by Sagar Patel circulated to

neighborhood residents. Exhibit E

June 11, 2017

Sagar Patel sends renderings of new exterior design, which reflects a shift
to a “Mediterranean” look in line with other buildings along ECR, as
requested by Neighborhood Committee.

July 28, 2017 Sagar Patel circulates updated renderings of the exterior design, reflecting
a shift to a “taupe” color to better blend into the surrounding nature, as
requested by Neighborhood Committee.

September 19, 2017 Susan Neville submits a letter of support for the development on behalf of

the Neighborhood Committee, based on extended negotiations to reflect
the issues raised by residents. Exhibit F

November 17, 2017

Neighborhood Committee meets with Corinna Sandmeier to inform her of
agreements with Sagar Patel. She informs us that the City has issues with
the design and a public Study Session will take place in January.

November 21, 2017

Glenna Patton submits letter to Corinna Sandmeier on behalf of the
Neighborhood Committee requesting that the new designs are previewed
with the Committee prior to the January Study Session.

December 4, 2017

Sagar Patel provides preview of updated exterior design, which he
characterizes as a “more authentic, classic Spanish design”.




February 26, 2018 Neighborhood receives notice of Menlo Park Planning Committee Study
Session, scheduled for March 12", at 7pm.
March 7, 2018 Neighborhood Committee meets to prep for Study Session, agrees to send

a letter to the City stating its formal position prior to the Study Session.

March 12, 2018
(12pm)

Susan Neville submits letter to Planning Commissioners saying the
Neighborhood’s preference is for the development not to move forward
but if it does, residents won’t oppose it as long as our agreed changes are
approved. Exhibit G

March 12, 2018
(7pm)

Neighborhood Committee attends Study Session, where the City requests
a number of design changes to the hotel — none of which affect
agreements with the Neighborhood.

May 29, 2018 Sagar Patel sends Neighborhood Committee an email backtracking on all
prior agreements due to moving parking from underground to street level
(driven by “skyrocketing costs” of underground garage).

June 5, 2018 Neighborhood Committee meets with Sagar Patel to review the new plans,

confirming that no prior agreements have been honored (beyond design).

June 18, 2018

Susan Neville emails Sagar Patel the Neighborhood’s opposition to the
plans and lays out its top requirements. Email forwarded to Corinna
Sandmeier to inform her of the Neighborhood'’s position. Exhibit H

August 18, 2018 Petition to declare neighborhood petition against the new plans is
launched via Change.org, securing 70 signatures (online and hard copy).

September 16, 2018 Neighborhood coffee event to update residents attended by 30 neighbors.
Neighborhood Committee is expanded due to residents’ urgent concerns.

September 19, 2018 Neighborhood reps meet with Corinna Sandmeier to communicate

(4:30pm) opposition to the City’s process. Sandmeier indicates a Formal Review by
the Planning Commission will be held October 8. Neighborhood requests
a Study Session instead given the dramatic changes in the plans.

September 20, 2018 Sagar Patel informs Neighborhood that the request for a Study Session on
October 8™ is accepted, replacing the previously planned Formal Review.
Glenna Patton emails Corinna Sandmeier to acknowledge Study Session
and voice continued opposition by the residents.

September 24, 2018 Resident Eric Easom meets with Sagar Patel to discuss the Neighborhood’s

issues with the development. Patel indicates an openness to explore
further changes — although the details appear to be fluid.

September 24-28,
2018

Various residents submit letters of opposition to the City Planning
Commissioners.

September 26, 2018 Neighborhood Committee meeting to discuss updates and further actions
prior to the October 8 Study Session.

October 1, 2018 Neighborhood Committee submits to Planning Commission a formal letter
of opposition with changes required to gain residents’ support. Exhibit |

October 8, 2018 Sagar Patel presents a further evolution of the plans at a Planning

Commission Study Session attended by 25 neighbors, who oppose the
plans and advocate for what was agreed prior to the March Study Session.
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From: Herren, Judi A

To: Herren, Judi A

Cc: Brady, Michael J.

Subject: FW: the red cottage--deterioarion in the quality of project proposed
Date: Wednesday, October 17, 2018 3:10:35 PM

Hello City Councilmembers, Planning Commission members and City Attorney Bill McClure,
Below isan email from Mr. Michadl J. Brady, esq.

Thank you,
Judi

Judi A. Herren

City Clerk

City Hall - 2nd Floor

701 Laurel St.

tel 650-330-6621

menlopark.org

----- Original Message-----

From: Brady, Michael J.

Sent: Wednesday, October 17, 2018 1:58 PM
To: Brady, Michael J.

Cc: Brady, Michael J.

Subject: the red cottage--deterioarion in the quality of project proposed

Introduction: the new Red Cottage or Hampton Inn project has now been in the works for more than 3 years.
Unfortunately, it has recently deteriorated materially and no longer deserves approval or the finding of a public
benefit. The project needs to go back to the drawing boards in light of what has occurred.

Thiswriter has lived in the Park Forest townhouses for more than 20 years and in the MP areafor ailmost 50 years; |
have also had alaw practice in Redwoodd City for 50 years THE ORIGINAL IDEA:

The developer is Sagar Patel. More than 3 years ago, he proposed erecting a Hampton Inn at 1704 ECR. The
original concept was a giant, massive, bulky "sgared off" buildiding painted grey, red, and white (like other
Hapmpton Inns) and towering more than 40" high.

The Park Forest townhome residents (more than 100 townhomes) and others in the Buckthorn neighborhood
strongly objected; this massive new commercia building INTRUDED INTO their purely residential neighborhood
and was unsightly and depressed property values, not to mention loss of privacy and quietude.

An intensive period of negotiations commenced more than 2.5 years ago with Mr. Patel. Much time and effort was
invested, and good faith was shown by both sides. An agreement was reached which called for the project to be less
massive in scope and less intrusive, with important areas pushed back away from the townhomes and toward ECR.
A complete underground parking garage was in the plans, and we agreed.

Several months ago this plan (the one we all agreed on) was put before a study session of the Planning Commission
(PC); the main aspect that they wanted to see changed was the design-to make the project morein the " Santa
Barbara' style.

THE FIRST NEGATIVE DEVELOPMENT:

But then things turned negative; Mr. Patel indicated that he could no longer afford an underground parking garage
(parking was proposed to be surface only) and he abandoned the agreement that had been reached (he did suggest
some modifications, but they have been unacceptable to the homeowners).

Another study session of the PC was held in early October of thisyear. No important substantive changes were
proposed.

Itisunfair to criticize the homeowners ; they spent more than two years in countless meetings whch DID RESULT


mailto:jaherren@menlopark.org
mailto:jaherren@menlopark.org
mailto:michael.brady@rmkb.com
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in an agreement with Mr. Patel. Thereis no reason to believe that that agreement would not have been accepted by
the City. It iswhat the city likes to see (cooperation).

Rather, it was Mr. Patel, alegedly for economic reasons, who made aHUGE ALTERATION in the project,
abandoning what has become sacred to Menlo Park, namely, underground parking for such projects. | ask the city to
examineitsfiles: isit not true that in recent years, underground parking has become the Bible for such projects and
is essentia to city planning? Witness Park James Hotel at Glenwood and ECR with its extensive and deep
underground garage.

The abandonment of underground parking is therefore THE ESSENTIAL factor that has occurred with this project
to make it DETERIORATE materially since its conception. The City seemsto be ignoring this. Why should 1704
ECR be treated differently from other commercial ECR corridor developments? How isthis considtent with the
city's general planning processes?

THE EFFECT

City officials should now send this project back to the drawing boards. When the project was originally before a
study session (more than ayear ago), it DID HAVE underground parking; maybe (not certain at al given the legal
requirements) at that time, a " public benefit bonus" would have been merited. But now!? Things have gone sour
and important public concerns no longer are being pursued; no possible public benefit exists, and this enire issue
needs to be explored in depth (it has not been analyzed thus far). Another surprising (and negative) development that
has occurred is this: with the abandonment of the underground parking garage, the MASSIVENESS IN SCALE of
the project has returned, with estimates that without the garage the building is approximately 28% larger in scope.
The reduction in massiveness was the principal reason for the original homeowers' concern.

Maybe the devel oper needs to take alittle less profit in order for the underground parking garage to continue; is this
being explored? Maybe a different concept needs to be considered, for example: amore expensive "boutique” type
hotel, withi more expensive per night rooms, but with fewer rooms and less massivenessin size, while still proviiind
the devel oper with adequate financial return.

CONCUSION:

It would be premature and illegal to allow this project to proceed as currently proposed. The homeowners, as
always, will entertain reasonable plans (and spent two years doing so with success), but we and the City are getting
no where with the present project. Most projects improve with city input; not so with thisone. Itistimetotakea
hard look.

Michael J. Brady, esq

191 Forest Lane

MP 94025
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From: Carol Broadbent

To: Planning Commission; _CCIN

Cc: Susan Neville

Subject: Underground Parking Benefits All City Residents
Date: Monday, October 15, 2018 5:31:31 PM

To the City Planning Commissioners

| attended the Planning Commission’ s study session on October 8 on the Red
Cottage Inn expansion. | have lived in Menlo Park since 1995. My first home was
in West Menlo Park. | have been aresident and homeowner in the Park Forest
community since 2014.

With all of the building under way in Menlo Park, especially along the El Camino
Real corridor, has there been any tally of the number of structures that are
incorporating underground parking? Is that decision (and approval and support by
the City) to use underground parking guided by policies of the City of Menlo Park?

In other words, has the City Planning Commission undertaken, or even considered,
anything akin to a“policy” that would require new commercia building projects to
put parking underground? The benefits of such a policy would be enormous and
long-lasting.

Asalong-timeresident, thisideais akin to adopting a policy regarding placing
utilities underground — aforward-thinking plan that I’ m guessing a magjority of
residents would love to find a way to make happen for the safety of every
neighborhood.

Just as there are so many good reasons to place utilities underground, there are
equally strong, and forward-thinking reasons to plan for parking underground for
commercial projects. Asyou heard from the cooperative and collaborative
presentations made by Park Forest residents at the October 8 meeting, none of us
wants to force the devel oper of the Red Cottage Inn expansion, Mr. Patel, to bear an
Inappropriate burden, or to become the test case for an onerous city building policy.
But I’ m asking why the City of Menlo Park commissioners won't take a forward-
thinking position in this immediate opportunity to get creative about how to
incentivize and reward a plan for the Red Cottage Inn devel opers that includes
underground parking, which will support our city values and quality of life for the
Park Forest residents and our entire community.

With respect to the Red Cottage Inn expansion, say, ten years down the road, all of
us — the 30,000+ residents of Menlo Park — will be grateful to our City leadership
if they have the foresight to protect the quality, values, and privacy of our residents
with support for underground parking. It’s just smart.


mailto:carol@crowdedocean.com
mailto:planning.commission@menlopark.org
mailto:councilmail@menlopark.org
mailto:scneville@gmail.com

Respectfully,
Carol Broadbent
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October 14, 2018

Dear Members of the Planning Commission

We would like to thank you for hearing the views of the Park Forest Neighborhood residents that
attended the October 8, 2018 study session regarding the proposed 1704 El Camino Hampton Inn
project. We represent a significant block of concerned Menlo Park citizens opposing the development
consisting of over 100 affected homes, over 115 signed petitions submitted to the City Council opposing
the project and 25 home owners that were present for the study session.

As stated in the meeting, we are not fundamentally opposed to development on the proposed site. We
worked closely with Mr. Sagar Patel, the developer, for nearly 18 months in good faith, making many
concessions, and agreed to a plan that was acceptable to all parties. In late May, a new set of plans were
submitted to the commission that were massively different than the previously agreed-to plans. The
building structure was substantially larger, solely due to the removal of the underground garage. A new
parking garage was included as part of the first floor structure of the building, causing the size of the
overall building to be substantially increased. This larger structure resulted in an overall building size
that exceeds the base FAR allowed in the Downtown Specific Plan and requires a public benefit bonus
exception. This is before even considering the additional expansion of the structure and FAR
implications added by the first level parking. The developer has stated that underground parking needed
to be eliminated as it is too expensive to make the project economically viable. We note that there is
another new hotel, the Park James, that is smaller (61 rooms vs 68 rooms), that recently opened and
includes under-ground parking and most other projects planned for the ECR corridor will also include
underground parking.

We believe that returning to underground parking is the only way to reduce the size of the structure and
create a win-win, not only for the neighbors in the greater Park Forest area (which there are
approximately 100 homes and approximately 200 voters opposed to the current plan), but also the
developer, hotel guests and the city. Underground parking is the optimal use of land and would enable a
smaller structure to be built, and create a more park-like setting surrounding the hotel.

We propose that the developer return to the agreement we previously reached that results in a smaller
building that is in line with the Downtown Specific Plan. If underground parking is not economically
feasible our default position is that the building must be reduced in size to conform with the 0.75 FAR.

Some follow up items brought forth at the planning commission that we ask the planning committee
and staff to respond to are as follows:

1. Conduct and make publically available a full public benefit bonus (PBB) impact analysis. This
should not only consider the additional tax revenue the city would receive (TOT), but at a very
minimum, an analysis of the negative impact on surrounding property values that accrue from
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having such a large nearby structure that occupies a very small lot. The negative impacts of
traffic, noise, congestion and a huge commercial intrusion in a residential setting have impacts
beyond this neighborhood — they should also be considered. The PBB cannot be solely based on
the rationale stated “that it brings in more money to the city”. We believe the long term
negative impacts of this development will offset the TOT gains. Note, the current plan proposed
by the developer significantly exceeds the allowed FAR from the Downtown Specific Plan and is
relying on a public benefit bonus to justify the deviation. It is our understanding that the study
session should have incorporated the appropriate fiscal/economic review (with work overseen
by City staff), which should broadly quantify the benefits/costs of the bonus FAR/density/height
and the proposed public benefit. We have not seen this full analysis.

2. Provide a formal response as to the acceptance of the developer’s proposed FAR calculation
and why this does not include the first floor garage, which is part of the building structure. The
current FAR, which already exceeds the base FAR that is allowed in the Downtown Specific Plan
zoning without the public benefit bonus, does not include the first story parking garage. The
purpose of the FAR is to ensure the size of the structure falls within a range that is reasonable to
the surrounding developments. The FAR calculation is not an accurate reflection of the
proportion of mass to site because FAR does not include ground floor parking located within the
footprint of the building. A better calculation is to compare the total size of visual above ground
mass between the March and current plans. This building is too large for the site.

3. Explore creative ways the city can incentivize the developer to make underground parking
available (fewer spaces required in the modern age of Uber, etc).

We look forward to further discussions and coming to a reasonable resolution similar to the one we
struck previously that is a win-win for all constituents.

Sincerely,

Park Forest Plus

Susan Neville; scneville@gmail.com é%?ﬁ.h C%&_Q/
Frederick Rose; fred_rose@sbcglobal.net W e

Carolyn Diamond; carolx@tenofus.com (‘a’&,‘,,v DeammcSL

Glenna Patton; glenna.patton@gmail.com

Mark Clayton; mjclayton31@yahoo.com Wﬁ/ \//&—‘—.

Michael J. Brady; michael.brady@rmkb.com § ‘%
Peter Carpenter; peterfcarpenter@me.co, 4’
Scott Barnum; microbarny@msn.com )4;44 ‘P —




Carol Boyden; boydenc@yahoo.com

Margaret Race; mracemom@aol.com W ’ ﬂ

Dave Forter; davef@Icdsystems.com Z\,

Eric Easom; hopepharma@hotmail.com z,\,
Deborah Melmon; debmelmon@gmail.com DMMMV\_/

Linda Sadunas; Isadunas@comcast.net @W%yw
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From: Carol X

To: Sandmeier, Corinna D; _Planning Commission; _CCIN
Subject: Redevelopment of 1704 El Camino Real

Date: Monday, October 15, 2018 8:45:57 AM
Attachments: Hampton Inn Study Session 101018.docx

ATT00001.txt

Attached please find my comments and concerns about the October 8, 2018 Study Session regarding the
redevelopment of 1704 El Camino Real.

Thank you,

Carolyn Diamond

180 Forest Ln.

Menlo Park, CA 94025
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Carolyn Diamond
180 Forest Ln., Menlo Park, CA 94025

Home: 650-328-1153  Email: carolx@tenofus.com




October 15, 2018





To: City of Menlo Park City Council Members, Planning Commissioners and Planning Staff



RE: Redevelopment of 1704 El Camino Real, Study Session on October 10, 2018





Since attending the above-mentioned Study Session, I have been trying to understand what the session accomplished.  The Planning Commissioners listened to the project developer and to the public comments but they seemed to ignore basic facts.  



· Commissioners seemed to dismiss the fact that after lengthy negotiations between